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1 I NDEX 1 PROCEEDINGS
2 2  HEARING OFFICER FONG: All right. Good morning, everyone.
3 WTNESS DIRECT OROSS REDIRECT RECROSS VAR DIRE | 3 Thehearing will bein order.
4 Nahin Alberto 27,94 4  Thisisaformal hearing in the matter of IKEA Distribution
5 Mchael Wedeking 126 5 Services, Inc. in case number 31-RC-266527 before the National
6 6 Labor Relations Board. The facility at issueislocated at
7 7 4104 Industrial Parkway Drive, California, Lebec, ZIP code
8 8 093243-9719.
9 9  TheHearing Officer appearing for the National Labor
10 10 Relations Board is Rudy Fong Sandoval. You can simply address
1 11 measMr. Hearing Officer or Mr. Fong.
12 12 All the parties have been informed of the procedures at
13 13 formal hearings before the Board by a service of a description
14 14 of procedures and certification and decertification cases with
15 15 notice of hearing. | have additional copies of this document
16 16 for email distribution if any party wants more.
17 17 Atthispointintime, I'll ask the partiesto note their
18 18 appearances for the record.
19 19  Will the Petitioner please state their full name for the
20 20 record?
21 21 MR. WEDEKING: Michael Paul Wedeking.
22 22  HEARING OFFICER FONG: Thank you. And from hereon, I'll
23 23 address you as either Michael Wedeking, but mostly likely
24 24 Mr. Petitioner.
25 25

For the Employer -- for the Employer's legal counsel, will
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1 counsel please state their appearances for the record? 1 the-- the Employer'sjurisdictional standards. And |
2  MR.HART: Jeremy Hart for the Employer. 2 believe -- and this -- well, the exhibit speaks for itself.
3 MS.INESTA: I'm Nancy Inestafor the Employer. 3 Any objectionsto the receipt -- to the introduction and
4  HEARING OFFICER FONG: And canyou pleasegiveusjust-- | 4 receipt of Board Exhibit 2?
5 Mrs. Nancy, can you give us your firm's name and address? 5  Employer's counsel?
6 Actudly, just the name. 6  MS. INESTA: No objection.
7 MS. INESTA: Baker Hostetler. 7 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Mr. Petitioner?
8 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Thank you. Arethere any other 8 MR.WEDEKING: No.
9 appearances? | takeit there are no formal appearances from 9  HEARING OFFICER FONG: Thank you.
10 anybody else. So let therecord so reflect. 10  Sonoted. Hearing no objections, Board Exhibit 2 is
11  Arethere any other persons, parties, or labor 11 received into evidence.
12 organizationsin the hearing besides the Petitioner, obviously, 12 (Board Exhibit Number B-2 Received into Evidence)
13 who currently isvirtual in the meeting, who claim an interest 13  HEARING OFFICER FONG: Cases pending in -- cases pending in
14 in these proceedings? I'm pretty certain there is none, so 14 other regions.
15 I'll let the record reflect no other labor organizations have 15  Employer's counsel, do you know if there's any petitions
16 claimed an interest in this proceeding. 16 pending in other regional officesinvolving other facilities of
17 Atthispointintime, | now propose to receive the formal 17 the Employer, petitions?
18 papers. They have been marked for identification as Board 18 MR.HART: We are aware of none.
19 Exhibit 1(a) through 1(g) inclusive, 1(g) being an index and 19 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay. Petitioner, are you aware of
20 description of the entire exhibit. The exhibit has been 20 any?
21 aready emailed and shown to all the parties. 21 MR.WEDEKING: No, | am not.
22 Arethere any objections to the receipt of this 22 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Thank you.
23 Exhibit Number 1 into the record? 23  Theparties are reminded that prior to the close of the
24 Employer's counsel? 24 hearing, the Hearing Officer will solicit the parties’ position
25 MS. INESTA: No objections. 25 on election details, including the type, whether mail, manual
Page 7 Page 9
1 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Mr. Petitioner? 1 or partial mail/manual, best days of the week, times, and
2  MR.WEDEKING: No. 2 locations for conducting an election, any datesin which an
3 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Thank you. 3 election could not occur, including the reason, where and how
4 Attheissueof intervention, are there any motionsto 4 to conduct a count of ballots, the eligibility period, most
5 intervene in these proceedings to be submitted to the Hearing 5 recent payroll ending date, frequency of pay periods. But |
6 Officer? 6 will not permit litigation of the logistics of the election.
7 ltakeit nomoreinsp -- interventions. So let the record 7  TheHearing Officer will also inquire as to the need for
8 reflect no responses to that. 8 foreign language ballots and notices of election and the
9  Nextin order, I'm going to move on to Board Exhibit 2. 9 proposed number of observers for each party at each voting
10 The parties to these proceedings have executed -- with my 10 period. And | would also ask for information about COVID
11 assistance, they have -- have executed a document which is 11 issuesat the plant. So please have that relevant information
12 marked as -- let me backtrack. 12 with you towards the end of the hearing. And as-- again, |
13  Ms. Madam -- Ms. Madam Court Reporter, I'll move to 13 will ask of such from each party then.
14 introduce Board Exhibit Number 1 into the record -- 14  The parties have been advised that the hearing will
15 THE COURT REPORTER: Thank you. 15 continue from day to day, as necessary, until completed unless
16 HEARING OFFICER FONG: -- having heard no objections. 16 the Regional Director concludes that extraordinary
17 Okay. 17 circumstances warrant otherwise.
18 (Board Exhibit Numbers B-1(a) through 1(g) Received into 18  The parties are also advised that upon request, any party
19 Evidence) 19 isentitled to areasonable period at the close of the hearing
20 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Back to Board Exhibit 2. Again, | 20 for oral argument, if they so desire, which shall include --
21 with my assistance, the parties have executed a document marked | 21 which shall be included in the transcript of the hearing.
22 asBoard Exhibit Number 2. That exhibit contains a series of 22 Any party desiring to submit a brief to the Regional
23 dtipulations, including, among others, no disputed issues such 23 Director shall be entitled to do so within five business days
24 asthe Petitioner being not an organization within the meaning 24 dfter the close of hearing. | will provide further
25 of the Act, there's no contract bar to these proceedings, 25 instructions asto what to be included at the -- in those
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1 briefs pending completion of the record through the day, and | 1 arguing any issue with regard to the appropriateness of the
2 will noteit as such prior to the closing of the hearing, and | 2 petitioned-for unit in this matter. And we would request that
3 will revisit theissue. 3 the Regional Director permit the Employer to present evidence
4 Atthispointintime, I'd like to note for the record the 4 through its witnesses, to question its witnesses, and to cross-
5 purpose of this hearing is the issue of community of -- of 5 examine witnesses presented by the Petitioner in this matter.
6 interest. | note for the record that -- and | will note before 6 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Do you have -- do you have any
7 we start the proposed bar -- petition for a unit, and | will 7 additional -- anything additional by way of case law or
8 briefly touch upon additional employees that are excluded by 8 additional argumentation for me to consider and take to the RD,
9 the petitioned-for unit. 9 oristhat -- or isthis sufficient, what you have stated?
10 | notefor therecord that it is the Petitioner's burden to 10 MR.HART: Yesah, | could-- | can go ahead and fully
11 prove community of interest in according with the-- in 11 explain the motion now, if that's appropriate, for the record.
12 accordance with the -- in accordance with the Board'sdecision | 12 Precluding IKEA or the Employer from presenting evidence
13 in PCC Structurals, Inc., 365 NLRB No. 160. Assuch, the 13 denies IKEA due process and prevents the Region from fulfilling
14 Petitioner bears the burden of providing -- or establishing 14 itsobligations under Section 9(b) of the Act. Section 9(b) of
15 that the petitioned-for unit is areadily identifiable group 15 the Act requires the Board, quote, "in each case to decide the
16 that shares a community of interest that is sufficiently 16 appropriateness of the proposed bargaining unit so asto assure
17 distinct from those employees that it seeks to exclude. 17 employees of both freedom and exercising protected rights.”
18 Inavery brief hearing conference call and also, more 18  TheRegion'sduty is affirmative and mandated by the Act
19 accurately, previous emailsto the parties, the Region has 19 and exists apart from any rules and regulations or statement of
20 notified that there might be additional -- that there might be 20 position filing deadlines, so much so that the Region may
21 an additional -- the standard community of interest might also | 21 disregard alate-filed statement of position and direct the
22 apply. | will revisit thisissue towardstheend. Butin 22 noncompliant party to submit evidence in furtherance of the
23 briefs, I'll -- | probably -- well, the Region will allow the 23 Board's 9(b) statutory mandate. In fact, 29 CFR 102.66, which
24 partiesto -- to brief whether PCC Structurals applies or 24 you previoudly cited, is clear, and it states the Regional
25 whether the more standard community-of-interest issue applies. | 25 Director may -- quote, "may direct the receipt of evidence
Page 11 Page 13
1 And | will revisit that toward the end. 1 concerning any issue, such as the appropriateness of the
2 The--I'd notefor the record per the Board -- per the 2 proposed unit, as to which the Regional Director determines the
3 Board'srulings and regulations, the Employ -- at Sections 3 record evidence is necessary."
4 102.63(b)(1)(ii) and double -- (i), (ii), and (iii), the 4 Member Ms. Camara (phonetic throughout) explained, citing
5 Employer submitted a position statement. That'sincluded in 5 IGT Global Solutions, that noncompliance with the statement of
6 Exhibit 1. Unfortunately, the -- that Employer's position 6 position requirement does not, quote,
7 statement did not conform to said Board rules and regulations. | 7 "Limit the Regional Director's discretion to direct
8 Therefore, pursuant to Section 102.66(d) from the Board'srules | 8 the receipt of evidence concerning any issue, such as
9 and regulations, the Employer is precluded from raising any 9 the appropriateness of the proposed unit, as to which
10 issue, presenting any evidence relating to any issue, cross- 10 the Regional Director determines the record evidence
11 examining any witnesses concerning any issue, and presenting | 11 is necessary."
12 argument concerning any issue where the party failed to 12 Here, the Union has petitioned for a unit that is not
13 properly raise said issue in its statement of position, as so 13 presumptively appropriate. In order to determine whether the
14 noted happened here. 14 petitioned-for unit is appropriate, the Region needs evidence
15  Assuch, inview of Section 102.666 -- excuse me -- 15 from the Employer in order to fulfill its 9(b) statutory
16 102.66(d), the Regiona Director has instructed me asthe 16 obligation.
17 Hearing Officer to refuse to take any evidence or allow 17 | -- the Employer isin the best position to present the
18 argument from the Employer on any matter whatsoever. 18 facts necessary for the Region to determine whether a community
19  Atthispointintime, | understand the Employer's counsel 19 of interest exists, and whether the petitioned-for unit is, in
20 isprepared to make amotion for reconsideration of this 20 fact, appropriate. While the Region may be able to ask
21 particular preclusion issue. 21 questions about the operation, it lacks the institutional
22 MR. HART: Thank you, Mr. Hearing Officer. 22 knowledge of the Employer's operation to make -- needed to make
23 At thistime, the Employer moves that the Regional Director | 23 afully informed determination. By precluding the Employer
24 reconsider her pre-hearing decision to preclude the Employer | 24 from presenting evidence, the Region has chosen form over
25 from presenting evidence, cross-examining the witnesses, or 25 substance, an approach that limitsits ability to carry out the
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1 Board's statutory obligations. 1 election rule changes, in 79 FR 74307, the nonpetitioning party
2 Thisis, infact, contrary to the logic set out in 2 wasrequired to file a statement of position by noon the day
3 Brunswick Bowling Products. In that case, the Board found that | 3 before the pre-election hearing. Under the old rules, afew
4 it was appropriate for the Regional Director to receive 4 hours may have mattered. However, that's no longer the case.
5 evidence from noncompliant parties to make determinations 5 Under the 2019 revisions to the Board's election rules, the
6 relevant regarding relevant issues even if those determinations 6 statement of position isno longer filed at noon the day before
7 favor the party that failed to comply with the statement of 7 the pre-election hearing; instead, the statement of positionis
8 position requirement set forth in the Board's election rule. 8 filed six days before the hearing.
9  That holding Ms. -- member Ms. Camara explained was, quote, | 9  The Union here received a statement of position even
10 "rightly placing substance over form." Relying on Section 10 further in advance, more than seven days before the pre-
11 102.66(b) of the Board's rules and regulations, the Board there 11 election hearing. Additionally, the Union representative was
12 heldthat, 12 not prejudiced in any way by the late receipt of the Employer's
13 "It's clear from the context of the provision within 13 statement of position. Additionally, any notion of prejudice
14 the structure of the Act and rules, including Section 14 isdispelled by the Petitioner filing its responsive statement
15 102.66(b), which authorizes the Regional Director to 15 of position aday prior to its deadline. There was no
16 direct the receipt of evidence concerning any issue 16 maliciousintent by the Employer. The Union has not been
17 as to which she determines that record evidence is 17 unfairly prejudiced in any way by adight delay in receipt of
18 necessary, even if the parties have not taken adverse 18 the statement -- the Employer's statement of position.
19 positions on that issue." 19  To preclude the Employer's participation in afact-finding
20  Because the Union petitioned for a group of employees that 20 proceeding whereit isin position -- possession of the
21 isnot presumptively appropriate, evidence must be presented 21 relevant evidence that may lead to the fundamental alteration
22 evenif the Employer has not taken an adverse position. 22 of itsfacility over adelay of under two hoursis unduly harsh
23 Section 9(b) makes clear that the Region has a statutory 23 and violates our due process.
24 obligation to investigate these issues prior to allowing any 24 Accordingly, despite the slight nonprejudicial delay in the
25 election to proceed. Here, the employeeisin possession of 25 service of the statement of position, the Employer objectsto
Page 15 Page 17
1 theinformation -- the Employer, rather, isin possession of 1 theRegion's preclusion of it from presenting evidence asto
2 theinformation necessary to make that unit determination 2 unit determination matters raised in its statements of
3 issue-- or determination iss -- determination. Without that 3 position. In doing so, the Union -- or the Region has denied
4 evidence, the Region cannot fully effectuate its statutory 4 the Employer due process and prejudices both the Employer and
5 mandate and determine whether the petitioned-for unit is 5 the Region's obligations under a statutory -- under the
6 appropriate. 6 statute. Placing form over substance in thisway is
7  TheEmployer is not asking the Region to do anything it 7 inappropriate.
8 does not have the authority or the discretion to do and has not 8  For thelegitimacy of these proceedings, the Employer
9 done before. The Region has authority and discretion to allow 9 requests that the Region reconsider its decision and permit the
10 the Employer to present evidence in this fact-finding hearing. 10 Employer to present evidence through its witnesses and cross-
11 Andthe Employer is aware of other instances whereregionshave | 11 examine the witnesses presented by the Petitioner.
12 utilized this discretion and allowed the employer in those 12 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Thank you, Employer's counsel.
13 casesto present evidence on the appropriateness of the 13 Mr. Petitioner, | understand that -- your position on that.
14 petitioned-for unit, notwithstanding even longer delaysin the 14 | believeit has been represented in your reply statement of
15 service and statement of position. 15 position. Do you have anything additional to say beyond what's
16  Thisisaninvestigative and fact-finding hearing. The 16 aready said there?
17 Region'sinterest and responsibility is to determine the facts, 17 MR. WEDEKING: Just that it wasn't just the statement of
18 not to rely on rules that preclude the party with the greatest 18 position that was late. There was -- the posting of the notice
19 knowledge from participating. Additionally, precluding the 19 of election was aso not timely, aswell as -- if the burden of
20 Employer from presenting evidence denies -- at the pre-election | 20 proof is on the Petitioner, then it's my understanding that the
21 hearing denies IKEA due process and imposes an unduly harsh | 21 Employer really doesn't need to do anything because the burden
22 pendlty that is arbitrary and capricious. 22 of proof'sonme. So -- so | have to prove the case. So they
23 Thepurpose of thefiling deadlineis not to punish parties 23 can till technically win even without saying anything.
24 for dight delays, but to prevent undue gamesmanship by 24  HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay. Anything -- isthat all?
25 employerswith maliciousintent. Implemented in the 2014 25 MR.WEDEKING: Just that there's also timely deadlines that
eScribers, LLC

(800) 257-0885 |

reporting@scribers. net |

WWW. escri bers. net



18..21

Page 18 Page 20
1 the Petitioner had to make. And the very first one, | had -- 1 discussions from both parties that the third job description,
2 there's plenty of timely things the Petitioner had to do and 2 preventative maintenance technicians, have been discontinued
3 wasabletodo. Somewherein the paperwork that -- that the 3 andis-- there'sno -- it isno longer being used at the
4 NLRB gave me, it says multiple times there's a deadline and the 4 facility.
5 consequences for it for both parties. 5  Assuch, Mr. Petitioner, | understand that you're moving
6  HEARING OFFICER FONG: Thank you so much. So noted. 6 forward with the petitioned-for unit being the maintenance
7  Okay. Atthispointintime, | need to confer with the RD 7 technicians and power equipment technicians; is that correct?
8 on the Employer's motion for reconsideration. So momentarily, 8 MR. WEDEKING: Yes.
9 I'mgoing -- I'm going to go off the record and take 15 -- 15 9 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Thank you.
10 to-- 20to 30 minutes. Let's say 20 minutes, and then I'll 10  Soagain, for the record, the petitioned-for unit isall --
11 send -- at 20 minutes, I'll email everyoneto seeif we need 11 it will read as, "All full-time and regular part-time
12 additional time. 12 maintenance technicians and power equipment technicians
13 Before doing that, though, I just -- for -- again, for 13 employed at the Employer's facility at issue."
14 everyone's convenience regarding the logistics and -- of -- of 14  Isthat correct, Petitioner?
15 the hearing, | was -- | wanted to speak to the basis alittle 15 MR.WEDEKING: That is correct.
16 hit on one of the Petitioner's exhibits so that perhaps, during 16 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Thank you.
17 thisbreak, | can get the Petitioner to explain a bit more what 17 Theexclusion will read as Employer -- as employees who are
18 that exhibit entails, and we will assist it down thelinein 18 tobeexcluded. Per Board standard language, it will read,
19 therecord. And by that, I'm referring to -- 19 "dl" -- again, the employees to be excluded to be, "All other
20  Let's-- let'sgo off the record for now and have the 20 hourly employees' -- "all other employees®. Strike that again.
21 discussion on (sic) the record becauseit's just for -- just a 21 "All other employees. office clericals, professional
22 matter of logistical purposes. 22 employees, guards, manager, managerial employees, and
23 So Madam Court Reporter, let's go off the record for now. 23 supervisors as defined by the Act."
24 (Off therecord at 9:32 am.) 24 Isthat so, Mr. Petitioner?
25 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay. We are -- we're back on the | 25 MR. WEDEKING: That is correct.
Page 19 Page 21
1 record for the Region to have -- reconsider the -- the 1 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Thank you.
2 Employer's motion for reconsideration. 2 Atthispointintime, | would aso like to note for the
3 | discussed it at length with both the RD and the ARD. We 3 record that the Employer submitted a position statement.
4 further examined Brunswick, and she fully -- | explained to her 4 Again, that isincluded in Exhibit 1. But again, due to the
5 the due process known for additional arguments and the 5 preclusion issues, unless otherwise specifically detailed by
6 remaining arguments made by the Employer's counsel. 6 me-- | just want to get this by the Petitioner -- that the
7  TheRD'sdecision -- unfortunately for the Employer, sheis 7 substance of that position statement will not be -- it -- it
8 not persuaded, and she's again re-reviewing the Brunswick 8 won't be considered in the record.
9 decision. Sheisreaffirming her -- her prior determination 9  Atthispoint in time, though, we have noted that there was
10 that preclusion applies. And as such, sheisrejecting the -- 10 an attachment B to the Employer's position statement, which is
11 the date the Employer sought for approve. 11 the-- which liststhe 15 -- which lists 15 current employees
12 MR. HART: Mr. Hearing Officer, at this point, we'd like to 12 that -- with their names and shifts that hold the petitioned-
13 put a continuing objection on the record to -- to that ruling. 13 for job positions of maintenance technicians and power
14 HEARING OFFICER FONG: So noted. So noted. 14 equipment technicians. Again, that's attachment B.
15 MR.HART: Okay. 15 | understand, Mr. Petitioner, that -- | would like to
16 HEARING OFFICER FONG: That'sintherecord. Yes. All | 16 introduce-- | would like to give that -- for the record, note
17 right. 17 that Exhibit (sic) C will be admitted into the record for
18  Atthispointintime, I'm going to move forward on 18 substantive purposes. And we have no objection to having that
19 explaining the petitioned-for unit as requested by the -- by 19 exhibit be to position -- to Employer's position statement so
20 the Petitioner. 20 admitted, Mr. Petitioner?
21  Wehad some -- at the pre-election conference, there was 21  MR.WEDEKING: Yesh, no objection.
22 agreement from both parties that there was -- there's three job 22  HEARING OFFICER FONG: All right.
23 classifications requested by the Petitioner: maintenance 23 (Board Exhibit Number 1(b) Received into Evidence)
24 technicians, power equipment technicians, and preventative 24 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Likewise, the Employer's position
25 maintenance technicians. There was agreement in off-the-record | 25 statement had an attachment C, which was entitled, "Employees
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1 to be added to the petitioned-for unit." Obviously, that 1 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay. What about the same question
2 sentencewill be -- will be stricken, but the -- regardless of 2 for theinternal hauler? There's-- | seethere's nine of
3 that, attachment C includes what we understand to be the 3 thoseinthe Exhibit C. The same question for internal hauler.
4 additional -- in addition to the petitioned-for unit -- 4 Werethe Regional Director to determine that those should be
5  THE COURT REPORTER: Mr. Hearing Officer -- 5 included, are you willing to proceed for an election?
6  HEARING OFFICER FONG: -- an additional 404 employees that 6 MR.WEDEKING: Yes. If the Regional Director found that
7 existatthe-- 7 made the unit appropriate as well, we would.
8 Yes? 8 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay. Nextin order -- and I'm
9 THE COURT REPORTER: You were breaking in and out. 9 skipping the auditor. I'll leave that toward theend. | see
10 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay. Well go back on. Thank you | 10 that Exhibit C lists then recovery coworkers. Same question.
11 for that. 11 Will you be willing to proceed to an election if the RD
12 We'releaving Exhibit B (sic) to the Employer's position 12 determined recovery workers to be included in the petitioned-
13 statement, so that's been admitted for substantive purposes. 13 for unit?
14 Attachment C to the Employer's position statement as well 14  MR. WEDEKING: Wewould not.
15 includes the denomination of an additional -- it's broken down 15 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Y ou would not. Okay. So you will
16 by job classification, the number of employeesin each 16 not proceed. How about for the stock controllers, the same
17 classification. | understand aswell that it will be helpful 17 question, will you be willing to proceed to an election?
18 for the record to have attachment C be given -- be admitted 18 MR.WEDEKING: Wewould not.
19 into the record for substantive purposes. 19  HEARING OFFICER FONG: Youwould not. Okay. Same question
20  And | understand there's no objection from Petitioner? 20 for the auditor.
21  MR.WEDEKING: No objection. 21  MR.WEDEKING: Wewould not.
22 HEARING OFFICER FONG: No objection from Petitioner. As 22 HEARING OFFICER FONG: All right. And then the last
23 such, attachment C will be named -- so noted, and it's 23 question, same question, would you be willing to proceed to an
24 introduced into the record. 24 election if the RD determined the warehouse coworkersto be
25 (Board Exhibit Number 1(c) Received into Evidence) 25 included in the petitioned-for unit?
Page 23 Page 25
1 HEARING OFFICER FONG: In addition, the Petitioner 1 MR.WEDEKING: Wewould not.
2 submitted areply statement of its position. | note that that 2  HEARING OFFICER FONG: All right. Thank you. All right.
3 isincluded in Exhibit 1, and that isincluded for whatever 3 The-- the base on the --
4 evidentiary vaueit'sworth. Andthe-- it'snoted in 4  THE COURT REPORTER: Mr. Hearing Officer, sorry. | didn't
5 Exhibit 1(a). 5 hear anything.
6 (Board Exhibit Number 1(a) Received into Evidence) 6 HEARING OFFICER FONG: -- election --
7 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Next in order, | had would like to 7  THE COURT REPORTER: Could anybody else hear him?
8 visit some additional points for the petitioned-for unit were 8 MR. HART: We can't hear you, Mr. Hearing Officer.
9 the Regional Director were to determine that additional 9  UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: | didn't hear -- | didn't hear the
10 employess listed on its attachment C should be included in the 10 last minute of the --
11 petitioned-for unit. 11  HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay. Thank you for that.
12 Atthispointintime, Mr. Petitioner, I'm going to ask you 12 And| was saying that the Board standard eligibility
13 afew questions, preliminary questions subject to find your 13 formulafor voting would be applied to this petition, and
14 final position toward the end of this proceeding. 14 again, full time, part time. Thisis not such a consumption
15 | understand that were the Regiona Director to include the 15 industry employer, so the Board standard eligibility voting
16 additiona job classification of cleaners, that you -- you 16 ruleswould apply.
17 would still like to proceed with an election if the cleaners 17 | do hear afunny echo. | don't know if anybody else does,
18 wereincluded as an -- were determined to be properly included 18 so-- but it comes and goes. We'll do the best we can.
19 inyour petitioned-for unit. Isthat right, Mr. Petitioner? 19  Okay. All right. Moving on to the presentation of
20 MR.WEDEKING: If the Regiona Director found that the -- 20 evidence, again, we have noted the Petitioner's responsibility
21 the cleaners would make the unit appropriate, then we would -- 21 to establish community of interest for the petitioned-for unit.
22 we would accept them. 22 Atthispointintime, I'd like to start the presentation of
23 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay. And you won't proceed for a | 23 evidence.
24 new -- you'd be okay proceeding with an election as such? 24 Mr. Petitioner, let's go ahead and get started. Would you
25 MR.WEDEKING: Yes. 25 liketo present your first witness, and we can hear some
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Page 26
testimony on him?

MR. WEDEKING: Yes.

HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay. Can you state for the record
who your next witness will be?

MR. WEDEKING: It will be --

HEARING OFFICER FONG: Your first witness. 1'm sorry.

MR. WEDEKING: My first witness will be Nahin Alberto.

HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay. Canyou -- Nahin --
Mr. Alberto, can you go ahead and start your video feed?

MR. ALBERTO: Yeah, of course.

Thank you so much for making yourself available.

Thisisanonadversarial hearing. It'sjust afact-finding
hearing. | want you to be at ease. Pleasejust -- because
there a court reporter, just ensure that -- et the Petitioner
ask the questions before you answer. | don't anticipate any
objections. If there were some objections, just wait until |
make aruling.

And again, | told the parties that the decision writer will
give the evidence its proper weight. | will try to -- | will
try myself to clean up if there'saneed for cleanup. Let's
try to keep thisfactual as opposed to conclusory. We'l go
along as -- explain those if need be.

But again, thisis anonadversarial hearing. Wait for the
guestions to be ans -- wait for the question to finish before
you answer. And | will -- we'll move forward as best we can.

Page 28
1 Q Howlonghaveyou worked there?

2 A Alittlebit over three years.
3 Q What prior experiencein maintenance have you had before
comingto IKEA?
A Using -- using power tools, hand tools, troubleshooting,
mechanical, mechanical troubleshooting, installation of various
motors, lawn motors, electrical troubleshooting.
Q Youknow what? Just what'syour typical day like? What's
your typical shift like?
A Clockin--
Q What timedoyou clock -- I'm sorry to interrupt. What --
which -- what work -- what shift do you work?
A | work second shift. | clock inat 1:00. | get to the
maintenance shop, have atalk with my team leader about some
tasks that need to be addressed immediately. If none, | go on
CAFM application and seeif there's any work ordersin my box,
jobs to perform for the day that need to be addressed, and kind
of determine the priority of them.

And then usually, if | don't have anything or if I'm
assigned to our automation system, then -- which most of the
time I'm, in charge of, then | will head -- head down that way
and then seeif there's any immediate tasks that need to be
addressed for the day such as downed equipment that has -- that
isout of service that can be repaired, jams that need to be
addressed so that our product can flow and regular coworkers --
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Thisis not aperfect proceeding. We're doing a virtual

meeting. So welll -- we'll do the best we can. We're going
to--

THE COURT REPORTER: Mr. Hearing Officer, we lost you
again.

MR. ALBERTO: You cut off about 30 seconds ago.

HEARING OFFICER FONG: Mr. Petitioner, go ahead, please.

Okay. | think I'm back on.
Let me swear you -- | was saying that thisis a nonadversarial
hearing. Let me go ahead and swear you in, Mr. Alberto. Raise
your right hand.
Whereupon,

NAHIN ALBERTO

having been duly sworn, was called as awitness herein and was
examined and testified as follows:

HEARING OFFICER FONG: Mr. Petitioner, he'sal yours.

DIRECT EXAMINATION

Q BY MR.WEDEKING: Nahin --

HEARING OFFICER FONG: Go ahead, Mr. Petitioner.

MR. WEDEKING: You'remuted. If you wanted to object, |
don't know if you can. But you're muted.
Q BY MR.WEDEKING: Nahin, will you state your name and the
title of your job position?
A Yeah. My nameisNahin Alberto. I'm a maintenance
technician at IKEA Distribution Center in Lebec, California

Page 29

1 or warehouse -- warehouse coworkers can pick product and then
2 get the product out to -- to the customer. And then just

3 monitor the system to keep the flow going and keep the product

4 moving.

5 Q Now, you said you walk in -- or you clock in, and then you
6 walk to the maintenance shop. How long of awalk isthat? How
7 long doesthat take you?

8 A Fiveminutes.

9 Q Fiveminutestowalk from whereyou clock in to -- tothe
10 maintenance shop?

11 A Yes

12 Q Describethe maintenance shop.

13
14
15
16
17

A The maintenance shop has cabinets wherein -- where we hold
our -- our replacement parts for conveyors, automation system.
We have atable. We have a couple of vice. We have viceon

the tables, two vices. We have the team leader's office right

next toit. Three client computers. We have laddersin the

18 area Wehave--

19 Q Theteam leader office, that'sin the maintenance shop --

20 A Yes

21 Q --area?

22 A Yes.

23 Q Wheredotheother team leadersfor the other departments
24 havetheir office?

25 A Atthe--inthe main administration areain the north of
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1 thebuilding, building 1. 1 east of building 2 isbuilding 3. And that's where the -- the
2 Q Soyou work second shift. What time did you say second -- | 2 building ends on the east end. To the west of building 1is
3 your shift starts? 3 building 4. To the wes -- to the west of building 4 is
4 A 1t09:30. 4 building 5. To thewest of building 5 isbuilding 6. And
5 Q What time does second-shift operations start? 5 that's where the -- that's where it ends.
6 HEARING OFFICER FONG: I'msorry. 1 p.m. to 9:30 p.m.? 6 MR.WEDEKING: Mr. Hearing Officer, can | show Nahin one of
7 THEWITNESS: Yes. 1p.m.to9:30 p.m. 7 the exhibits -- the -- specifically the one that we were
8 A Second-shift operations, they start at 3 p.m. And then 8 taking about, the --
9 aso CDC operations startsat 2 p.m. | don't -- | don't -- 9 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Yes. Isthat Petitioner's 3?
10 I -- I'm not sure what time they get out because sometimes | 10 MR.WEDEKING: Yes.
11 work overtime and spe -- I'm not sure. The time that they get 11 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Yes.
12 out varies, because I'm not sure -- 12 MR.WEDEKING: Sol'djustliketo preface this. Just
13 Q BY MR.WEDEKING: But your start timein maintenance | 13 is-- give me one second.
14 second shift isdifferent from the other departments start 14 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Mr. Petitioner, is Petitioner's 3,
15 times, correct? 15 isthat aformal document that wasissued? | mean, isthat
16 A That'scorrect. 16 something that was given. Did you create that document or is
17 Q Thetool bag, IKEA's-- can you describe what toolsyou're | 17 that something created by IKEA and --
18 issued, thetoolsfor you -- your job specifically just from -- 18 MR.WEDEKING: And soit --it's-- it was on the IKEA
19 A Screwdrivers, wrenches, sockets, various types -- types of 19 common public hard -- public drive of IKEA, but it is something
20 pliers. 20 | obtained from --
21 Q Wheredoyou keep that tool bagwhen you'renot --when |21 ~ HEARING OFFICER FONG: That's okay. | just kind of wanted
22 you'renot at work? 22 to make sure-- | just want to know if it's something you
23 A My locker room (sic) at the maintenance shop. 23 created or it was something -- like you said, something that
24 Q Inthemaintenance shop? 24 came from IKEA, like something that IKEA created, right, asa
25 A Uh-huh. 25 work product.
Page 31 Page 33
1 Q Wheredo generally thewarehouse coworkershavetheir 1 MR WEDEKING: Itis--itisan IKEA document, but the
2 lockers? 2 markingson it are from me.
3 A Inthemain administration building, building 1. 3 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay. | getit. | getit. Andyou
4  HEARING OFFICER FONG: Mr. Petitioner, can you ask him 4 say you got thisfrom -- well, what is this document used in
5 basicaly how many different buildings there are? | just hope 5 IKEA -- inyour normal business, do you use this exhibit,
6 that -- that would help. 6 Petitioner's Exhibit 3 when you perform --
7 MR.WEDEKING: Sure. 7  MR.WEDEKING: No. Thisisjust a--just an overview of
8 Q BY MR.WEDEKING: Nahin, describethelayout as 8 thewarehouse. It was on the -- the maintenance drive. It
9 warehouse -- or describe the war ehouse. 9 just shows basically the top view of the warehouse. The
10 A So--sowakingin, to the north sideisbuilding 1. To 10 warehouseisso big, if you realy wanted to get into more
11 the-- which is-- and then you walk out. And then that's 11 detail, it would take multiple pages and --
12 wherethefirst -- building 1 also has racking where we have 12 HEARING OFFICER FONG: | see. | see.
13 store product. To the east of that, the next building over 13 MR. WEDEKING: -- those would --
14 will bebuilding 2. To the east of -- 14 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay. And | know -- and | know
15 Q Butthey'reunder thesameroof? Building 1 and building | 15 you'll ask this of the Petitioner -- of your witness, but just
16 2areunder the sameroof? 16 which oneisbuilding 1 on the -- on Petitioner's 3?
17 A Yeah. Yeah. Yes, they are. 17 MR.WEDEKING: So building 1 isthe oneright in the middle
18 Q Okay. 18 with-- so | don't know if you can see --
19 A Yes They're-- they'rejust separated by fire -- by fire 19 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Isit right below the|? Likeyou
20 doors. 20 know, IKEA -- there's IKEA ontheright. There'sthel. Is
21 Q Okay. Soyou can -- you can go from 1to 2 without having | 21 that parallel to the 1?
22 togooutside? 22 MR.WEDEKING: Yes. Soright underneath thel, that's
23 A That'scorrect. 23 building 4. So --
24 Q Okay. 24 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Oh, okay.
25 A Sototheeast of -- of building 1isbuilding 2. To the 25 MR.WEDEKING: -- withtheblack dotsinit, that's
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1 building 1. And then from theright of that is2 and 3. 1 is. Eadt, buildings 2, 3. And hejust testified about what's
2  HEARING OFFICER FONG: | see. | see. Theblack dots. So | 2 west of the building. So -- so if you need to show him the
3 theblack dots, | seeit askind of like on the -- parallel to 3 document, you may do so. But since he already testified, do
4 theletter A. 4 the best you can in terms of having him lay out who -- where
5 MR.WEDEKING: Yes. 5 the maintenance employeeswork at, since he already testified
6 HEARING OFFICER FONG: That's building 1? 6 heunderstands what buildings are the facility and where --
7 MR.WEDEKING: Yes. Andto therightisbuilding 2, and 7 which specification for this and that.
8 then building 3. And then to the left of building 1is 4, 5, 8  You can proceed as -- like that. But feel freeto -- you
9 6. 9 can show him the documents there to assist him.
10 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay. 10 MR.WEDEKING: Okay.
11 MR. WEDEKING: It's built in that where they both see -- 11 Q BY MR.WEDEKING: Nahin, whereis-- thisisbuilding 2,
12 HEARING OFFICER FONG: | see. | see. 12 correct?
13 MR.WEDEKING: So that'swhy that'swhy it's -- 13 A Yes
14  HEARING OFFICER FONG: So 4 would beunderneaththel?| 14 Q What isthe highlighted part around the outside of
15 MR.WEDEKING: Yes. 15 building 2?
16 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Andtotheleft, 5, 6. Okay. 16 A Oh, that's-- building 2. That's the conveyors and the --
17 MR. WEDEKING: Yes. 17 thecross--
18 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Y ou not that, Nahin? 18 Q Thisis--
19 THEWITNESS: Yes. 19 A --asde downtheaisle. The north end would be the
20 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay. All right. I'm sorry. 20 crossasles.
21 Proceed, Mr. Petitioner. Thank you for that. 21 Q Yes
22 RESUMED DIRECT EXAMINATION 22 A The-- thewest would be -- and | -- by cross aisles, |
23 Q BY MR.WEDEKING: Nahin, can you -- 23 mean conveyors. They run -- excuse me. Let me get my son to
24  MR.WEDEKING: I'mnot sure how to sharethat. Canljust |24 play away.
25 hold it up to the Petitioner -- 25 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Go ahead. Please, sir.
Page 35 Page 37
1 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Yes, yes. 1 Zoom -- these are -- this -- the Zoom Y ouTube moments. |
2 Q BY MR.WEDEKING: SoNahin, can you seethis? 2 appreciate everyone's patience and cooperation with this
3 A Yeah. Justholdit steady. Yeah, | can see. 3 process. You know, itiswhat itis. At leastit saves of one
4 Q Canyou seethe--the number 1? 4 ahuge trip from -- down to the regional office. In that
5 A Yes 5 respect, | think it's helpful.
6 Q Whatisnumber 1? 6 THEWITNESS: Sorry.
7  MR.HART: Mr. Hearing Officer, at this point, I'm going to 7  HEARING OFFICER FONG: As| said to everybody, don't worry
8 object to thisdocument. Petitioner has not laid a foundation 8 about it. You know, we're -- thisisvirtual. Thisisone of
9 asto permit Mr. Alberto to testify about this document, nor 9 those YouTube Americas funniest video moments. So don't worry
10 has he established that it's -- that it's not hearsay. This 10 about that. It happens.
11 document's hearsay. He's not established that it's a business 11 THEWITNESS: Oh, yeah. No. | -- yeah. Thank you for
12 record or any other exception to the hearsay rule. 12 understanding. Y ou know --
13  HEARING OFFICER FONG: Well, we have -- we haven't 13 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Yesh, of course. Of course.
14 introduced the document yet. Perhapsit's now beingintroduced | 14 ~ THE WITNESS: -- I'm asingle father, so.
15 for purposes of assisting the witness for his testimony. I'll 15 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Yeah. Weget it.
16 alow it. | don't intend to introduce this doc -- the document 16 THEWITNESS: Okay.
17 through thiswitness. I'll probably address that issue once 17 A Soif | can seethe sheet up -- if | can see the sheet
18 Petitioner testifies. And for purposes of just assisting the 18 again.
19 witness, I'll allow it since there hasn't been a mation for the 19  Butthenorth endisbasicaly the crossaisle, whichis
20 document to be introduced yet. Again, we'll revisit that issue 20 only really maintenance. It'slike arotor -- it's a conveyor
21 with the Petitioner. But I'll allow it. 21 system. The purple on the west -- on the west would be
22 For now, Mr. Petitioner, you can show the document to 22 conveyor 11, which is also maintenanceis only really allowed
23 the-- to the -- to Nahin and just enough for him to 23 togointhere. And then the east end would be -- would be
24 understand. | think he already did say -- he testified asto 24 conveyor -- conveyor 2 -- Conveyor --
25 like, you know -- in his mind, he understands where buildingl |25 Q BY MR.WEDEKING: Thisisanother conveyor system?
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1 A Yeah, that's another conveyor system. But -- 1 Mr. Petitioner. Soisbuilding 5 north or south? If you can
2 Q Something with the building, correct? 2 ask more specifically --
3 A Yes 3 MR.WEDEKING: Okay. Okay.
4 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Whilewereon building 2, isthere | 4  HEARING OFFICER FONG: -- maybe one at atime.
5 asgpecific nameto that area? |sthere a specific name or 5 Q BY MR.WEDEKING: Thefront or the back of building 1,
6 reference to building number 2? 6 right around there. Can you read -- can you tell me what
7  MR.WEDEKING: To assist -- are you asking me for the 7 maintenance areasthose are only? Why arethose maintenance-
8 witness? 8 only areas?
9 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Yeah. I'm sorry. Nahin. 9 A | would say electrical cabinets.
10  Mr. Nahin, isthere a particular -- 10 Q Correct. Thank you. And inthefront or back of every
11  THEWITNESS: It'sacrane. It'sbasically the crane -- 11 one-- of all the buildings, arethere electrical cabinets?
12 thecrane areathey're at. 12 A Yes
13 Q BY MR.WEDEKING: What'sanother word for thecranes? | 13 Q Thisback corner right here, can you seethat?
14 A Thesilo, you mean? 14  HEARING OFFICER FONG: Which building?
15 Q Exactly. Okay. 15 MR. WEDEKING: Inthe back of building 6. I'm sorry.
16 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay. Thank you. I'm sorry. | 16 A Uh-huh. Yes.
17 didn't mean to interrupt. So building 2 conveyor belts. And 17 Q BY MR.WEDEKING: Isthat -- that maintenance-only area,
18 you said east west al in building 2. Okay. Go ahead. 18 what isthat?
19 Proceed, please. 19 A Whereareyou pointing to?
20 Q BY MR.WEDEKING: Would you say that building5is 20 Q Right--right back here.
21 exactly -- ailmost similar to building 2 in the -- 21 A That'sat the very south of -- that's another -- isit
22 A Yes. 22 out--isit outsideor --
23 Q --inthatregard? 23 Q Yes, yes that'soutside. I'm sorry.
24 A Yes 24 A 1'd say that probably the pump house or --
25 Q Building 6, thisarearight here -- 25 Q Right.
Page 39 Page 41
1 A Yes 1 A Yeah
2 Q --whatisthat? 2 Q Sowould you agreethat all these -- all these highlighted
3 A That's our automated system, our ASRS. That's -- 3 areason my map here are maintenance only areas?
4 Q Could you describethat for, you know, the -- 4 A That'scorrect.
5 A About 50 feet wide, 100 feet in length, |'d say about 4 -- 5 HEARING OFFICER FONG: And by that, you mean the back of
6 30feet high. Inthat area, we have automated shuttles that 6 each building has a maintenance area?
7 aredesigned to pick up and lift product. We have some lifts 7  MR.WEDEKING: Maintenance only.
8 that also do the same and bring out the product out to the 8 THEWITNESS: Yeah. We actually have --
9 conveyors or back into the system to be put back in and 9  HEARING OFFICER FONG: Outside?
10 stationed there. And it'sjust an automated system we have. 10 THEWITNESS: We actualy have keys that only were allowed
11 HEARING OFFICER FONG: And we'rein building 6, right? 11 toaccessthose areas. Mainly the electrical panels and then
12 THE WITNESS: Thisisbuilding -- 12 the pump house; we have afew designed to enter those areas.
13 MR. WEDEKING: Yes. 13 And then out -- building 1, the maintenance shop, really, we're
14 THEWITNESS: -- 6, yes. 14 only alowed to go in there. And then automation, the building
15 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay. And building -- are we 15 6 whereit says-- | think there'sa 2 right there, really,
16 talking about the middle -- the center of building 6 or on the 16 only we're allowed to work in that area a so.
17 outside perimeter of building 6? 17 Q BY MR.WEDEKING: Okay. Intheback of building 1 outside
18 THEWITNESS: Thisisabout the center of building 6. 18 here, can you seethe number 4| wrote?
19 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay. I'msorry. Go on. 19 A Yes That'sthe-- that's the hazmat building or -- where
20 Q BY MR.WEDEKING: Nahin, | don't know if you can see, but | 20 we -- where we store hazardous material waste.
21 theseother little marksin the front and the back of all the 21 Q So--okay.
22 buildings, can you see those? 22  HEARING OFFICER FONG: But that's -- Nahin, that's
23 A Yes 23 outside -- that's outside of their building --
24 Q What arethose? 24  THEWITNESS: That'soutside.
25 HEARING OFFICER FONG: And let's break it down, 25 HEARING OFFICER FONG: -- the hazmat?
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1 THEWITNESS: Building 1 to the south of -- 1 A It'sal eectrical. By batteries. 48-volt batteries,

2 HEARING OFFICER FONG: What's hazmat? 2 36-volt batteries.

3 THEWITNESS: Hazardous material waste. So used ballasts, 3 Q Haveyou ever -- have you ever worked on thetracks, or

4 used oil that we can't just depose and -- and throw into the 4 pieces of equipment?

5 irrigation system or just dispose of on -- on -- on property 5 A Havel ever worked on the -- what do you -- when you say

6 ground or just throw away. This-- thisiswaste that needs to 6 the-- | troubleshoot them and | -- if there were an incidence,

7 betreated properly and wasted properly because of state laws 7 1 would -- but as -- operate them -- | -- | do not operate,

8 and protection of -- of the environment. 8 only counterbalance; that's if I'm to move something that's too

9 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay. I'm sorry. Go on, 9 heavy and, you know, to do my daily task, | would say, but as

10 Mr. Petitioner. 10 far asoperating them on adaily basis, | do not.

11 Q BY MR.WEDEKING: Besidesyour tool bags, you'reissued | 11 Q As-- who does oper ate those pieces of equipment?

12 keys. Did we-- did we cover the keys, the maintenance -- 12 A Regular warehouse coworkers, which they basically pick

13 A No, we have not. 13 product and racks.

14 Q How many would you say that IKEA issuesyou? How many | 14 Q Sowhat kind of -- what kind of equipment is attached to

15 are--areonthere? 15 the-- the-- what kind of piece of other accessoriesare

16 A I'd say about 20. 16 attached to the -- the pieces of equipment?

17 Q Okay. 20. And thoselet you access ar eas that normal -- 17 A Wrapping -- like, wrapping paper used to -- to some --

18 general co -- warehouse -- 18 shrink-wrap, | believe, to protect product, fire extinguishers;

19 A Yes 19 that's pretty muchit.

20 Q --workerscannot, correct? 20 Q When -- when a general warehouse coworker isoperating one

21  MR.HART: Mr. Hearing Off -- 21 of those pieces of equipment, how -- how do they -- how do they

22 A That'scorrect. 22 know whereto go?

23  MR.HART: Mr. Hearing Officer, Mr. Petitioner is-- is 23 A They use-- by the -- the -- this d-log tells them what --

24 leading the witness continually. He's going to have an 24 where they're supposed to go, and they just -- they'll scan the

25 opportunity to testify himself. And | would ask that you 25 product and move on to their next function. Basically, the d-
Page 43 Page 45

1 instruct him to -- to not lead the witness and |et the witness 1 logis--it displaysthe -- an application that tells them

2 tedtify. 2 what their next job function is.

3 HEARING OFFICER FONG: There's some -- there's been a 3 MR. HART: Mr. Hearing Officer, objection here. There's

4 little bit of leading. | guess|'m not so concerned. But -- 4 no foundation for that testimony. He's not testified that he's

5 but with proper cautionary advice, go on, Mr. Petitioner. You 5 ever worked in the classification of general warehouse coworker

6 know by leading means to ask them -- 6 or provided any other basis for that testimony.

7 MR. WEDEKING: Yes. 7 HEARING OFFICER FONG: I'll overrule. | will alow it.

8 HEARING OFFICER FONG: -- the question rather than--you | 8  You can-- can you just explain alittle bit what the d-

9 understand that, right? 9 logisandif you have accessto it?

10 MR.WEDEKING: Yeah. Givingaquestionthat | expecta |10  THEWITNESS: | -- | -- 1 do not, but I've been asked by

11 certain answer to, yes. 11 many coworkers to troubleshoot, which, at that point,

12 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Right, right, right. 12 maintenance does not troubleshoot because that's more of alT

13 Q BY MR.WEDEKING: Nahin, tell me about thefleet of | 13 issue, so wewill --

14 equipment. 14  HEARING OFFICER FONG: Have you seen this-- have you seen

15 A Sowe have walkies designed to pick up pallets. We have 15 thisd-log? Can you explain what the d-log is?

16 reachesthat are designed to pick product off racks. They 16~ THEWITNESS: Well, wedo -- the d-log isjust basically

17 go-- | believe they go about maybe 28 feet high with -- the 17 like asmall monitor that -- it has an em -- embedded software

18 forks extend and then pick the product from the -- the racks 18 that it carries the -- the application and -- for regular

19 about 20 feet high. We have counterbalance designed to offload | 19 coworkers to know what their job functioniis. Various-- it --

20 trailersor C trains at dock doors and move product around, 20 it'sa--thelocation of their next product, what -- how much

21 load them onto the conveyors with the forks. We have -- 21 of that product we haveto -- they have to pick, and -- yeah.

22 Q How many pieces of equipment would you say wehave? |22  MR.HART: Mr. Hearing Officer --

23 A Oh,it'shardtotell. 1'd say maybe 100. Something like 23 HEARING OFFICER FONG: How do you know -- how do you know

24 that. 24 this-- how do you know this? What -- how do you know what

25 Q What istheequipment powered by? 25 you'rejust telling me?
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1 THE WITNESS: |'ve asked other coworkers what -- 1 word counterbalance afew times. Can you explain what it
2 MR. HART: Objection. Hearsay. 2 means?
3 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Overruled. And -- and you're 3 THE WITNESS: It'sa--it'saforklift.
4 saying that who -- whose schedul e goes by the d-log? 4 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Oh, counterbalanceis aforklift?
5 THE WITNESS: Warehouse coworkers. 5 THEWITNESS: Yes.
6 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Thisisfrom discussion you've had 6 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Andis-- are most of this
7 with the warehouse coworkers, you've stated? 7 equipment repair request -- you mentioned that, you know, if
8 THE WITNESS: |, myself, have never interacted with the d- 8 you happen to be by and if some -- and awarehouse -- a
9 log. Theonly thing | usually doisif the power cable becomes 9 warehouse man will call you on the spot to fix it. Are most of
10 loose, then | will -- I will respliceit, the connecter, and 10 the equipment requests of such nature, or most of them them
11 then just, you know, troubleshoot it and fix it, just mainly 11 given to you by management? Or isdirectly by the warehouse
12 the power. That'sthe only interaction I've had with it. 12 coworkers?
13 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay. That'sfine. Itiswhat it 13 THE WITNESS: It's-- it's-- it'salittle bit of both.
14 is. I'll allow the testimony and it will be given its 14 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay. Okay.
15 appropriate weight. 15 THE WITNESS: Yeah.
16 I'm sorry, Petitioner. Carry on, please. 16 HEARING OFFICER FONG: I'll explore that more with Mr.
17 Q BY MR.WEDEKING: Nahin, the general warehouse coworker, | 17 Petitioner, perhaps some follow-up questions.
18 haveyou ever -- have you ever worked hand-in-hand with them? 18 But go on, Mr. Petitioner.
19 A | havenot. 19 Q BY MR.WEDEKING: Besidesthe ASRS, Nahin, what other --
20 Q What kind of interaction do you have, if any, with the 20 what other -- what other job duties do you have?
21 general warehouse coworker? 21 HEARING OFFICER FONG: I'm sorry, R-S- -- RSRS?
22 A Usualy then there's an issue with their equipment, or 22 MR. WEDEKING: ASRS, the-- thething in building 6.
23 they -- they -- there's something they notice that is out of 23 THE WITNESS: It's our maintenance system. It's designed
24 service or that is malfunctioning, they will let me know, and | 24 to bring product out of the racking without having a
25 will go and troubleshoot the -- whatever needs to be fixed or 25 physica -- what | would say a-- a human interaction.
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1 tagged out, be placed out of service, things like that. 1 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay. Thank you.
2 Q Let'sseehere-- 2 Q BY MR.WEDEKING: Yes. Yeah, you said when you --
3 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Can you give us some examplesof | 3 MS. INESTA: I'm hearing -- I'm sorry to interrupt. | do
4 some -- some examples of equipment requests that you'd service, 4 have an objection. Mr. Hearing Officer, | understand that
5 referring with the warehouse coworkers? 5 under these circumstances, you giving some relay time on
6 THEWITNESS: Yeah. Soif they hear, like -- if they're 6 leading questions, but the problem with these questionsis he's
7 inanareapicking product and they start hearing, like, a 7 dso assuming factsthat are not in evidence yet. Soiit's
8 knocking sound, which may be like aloose chain on a sprocket, 8 amost like he's going to the next step before he's laying a
9 then | will go check it out and see what the knocking noiseis 9 foundation for anything, and he did that earlier. Well, he did
10 and then address the issue or if it needs to be placed out of 10 that thistime when he said, you know, in addition to you
11 service. Also, if thereis, like, an equipment that has a 11 waorking this -- or on this without even establishing that fact.
12 faulty wheel, say if a counterbalance has a faulty wheel, then 12 MR. WEDEKING: No, hetestified that --
13 they will -- they will come to me or report it to their team 13 MS. INESTA: And moving on to the second part of it.
14 leader. 14 MR. WEDEKING: Hetestified earlier in his day-to-day that
15 It depends. If they see me and I'm in the ares, they'll 15 one of hisjobs was he works the ASRS.
16 let me know, hey, you know, this wheel is not turning or it's 16 MS. INESTA: So for example, in the --
17 coming off, then | will check out the unit and I'll be like, 17 HEARING OFFICER FONG: That's correct. 1'll make my
18 okay, well, let's see what we can do here, try to fix it, or if 18 ruling. The-- | do understand Employer's concerns; however, |
19 aticket needsto be placed, if | need to create awork order 19 do know that this -- this particular witnessis being called
20 to -- for our contractor, Hyser (phonetic), to address the 20 out of -- out of order, and so --
21 issue, so | would tag up aunit. What else? If there'sajam 21 MS. INESTA: Yeah.
22 onaconveyor and they seeit, then they will -- they will call 22 HEARING OFFICER FONG: -- I'll go ahead and clean up with
23 meand then I'll go take alook at the jam and either -- and 23 Mr. Petitioner and try to fill up any holes as the best we can.
24 then -- and then clear the jam. 24 For the time being, again, because this witness is somewhat out
25 HEARING OFFICER FONG: What counter -- you mentioned the | 25 of order, | will alow it. Ultimately, again, the decision
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writer obviously will not include conclusory or facts that are

not properly given their foundation. But you -- you're
overruled, but your concern is noted for the decision-maker who
will pick up on these things. And again, will -- the witness,
again, is-- is-- isout of order, so welll -- we'll clean up

with Mr. Petitioner as best we can and I'll do some follow ups
aswell. But ultimately do know that any statements that are
conclusory or lack foundation will be given the appropriate
weight, okay?

MS. INESTA: All right. And just the -- just to reference
one more time, because | do think --

HEARING OFFICER FONG: Yes.

MS. INESTA: -- it needs some cleanup, isin the prior
questions -- the entire line of questioning you repeatedly
referred to this maintenance-only area, or that maintenance-
only area, so those are the types of things that I'm really
trying to address is that they're assuming -- the questions
themselves are assuming facts not in evidence before he moves
onto what his actual question is.

HEARING OFFICER FONG: | appreciate that. | appreciate
that. The-- wedid -- we did try to reference maintenance
area building 1, maintenance area building 2, building 3.

MR. INESTA: Yeah, | appreciate that.

HEARING OFFICER FONG: But as best we can, when we speak
about conveyor belts or -- or maintenance or hazmet, let's try
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HEARING OFFICER FONG: And what's histitle again?

THE WITNESS: Aaron Lucasisafacilities general manager.
HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay. And I'm sorry, you said you
didn't know about -- you said above him, you didn't know. I'm
sorry, go on.
THE WITNESS: No, | do not know.
HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay.
Q BY MR.WEDEKING: Tell meabout what -- what do you --
what do you wear to work?
A | wear -- | wear steel-toed boots. | wear fire-resistant
pants. | actually have some here | can show.
Q That'sokay.
A laso--
Q WEe'regoing to have an exhibit on that later on.
A | aso have a-- afire-resistant shirt also, long-sleeved
shirt. Yeah.
Q Tel mewhat do your general warehouse coworker s wear ?
A | know that they have to wear steel-toe boots, but
other -- and then an orange safety, reflective vest. Other
than that, | don't really think they have a dress code.
HEARING OFFICER FONG: Can you ask him about the -- the --
if he's seen the cleaners or -- compared to a couple of the
other excluded unitsin terms of what -- if he's seen what the
other excluded units wear in terms of whether they wear a
uniform or not?
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to give alittle detail asto what particular areawe're

talking about, like the back of which building, back of this,
back of that. And thisisnormal for any witness and any
testimony, as we start alittle bit rough; with everybody's

help, welll -- we'll beef it up and improveit. So -- so with
that said, let's-- let's -- let's -- |et's proceed by the --

do try to be alittle, also, specific asto what areas we're
talking about, conveyor belt, building B; maintenance, back of
building 3; this and that. Okay? Thisisnormal practice and

we're too busy not warming up, okay? Let's proceed with that.
Thank you, Mr. -- Employer counsel.
Q BY MR.WEDEKING: Nahin, whoisyour supervisor?
A Robert Jones.
Q Who'shissupervisor?
A Aaron Lucas.
Q And what -- what positions and titles do they have?
A Robert Jones is the maintenance team leader, and Aaron
Lucasisageneral warehouse facilities manager, | believe.
Q And who doesAaron Lucasreport to?
A | do not know.
HEARING OFFICER FONG: I'm sorry, repeat the name for your
maintenance team leader, Mr. Nahin.

THE WITNESS: Robert Jones.
HEARING OFFICER FONG: And you said above him?
THE WITNESS: Aaron Lucas.
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Q BY MR.WEDEKING: Nahin, what'sa cleaner in job

classifications?

A Areyou-- | don't know what that is. 1've never heard of
that job title.

Q What isawasteorder?

A A waste order is acoworker on arear -- on the end unit,
we call them, whichisjust a-- a-- kind of like awalkie,

but with longer forks. And they go --

Q Canyou -- canyou --

A They go around gathering cardboard waste, plastic waste,
and they -- they will drop it off at asorting location in
building -- so they go around the whole -- the entire
warehouse, picking up cardboard waste, plastic waste, and they
will drop it off at the back of building 5, where they --

Q What do they wear?

A They wear fire-retardant pants, steel-toe boots, and fire-
retardant long-sleeved shirt.

Q Can -- can you givethe -- a couple names -- | mean, how
many -- how many waste orders are on your -- your shift?

A | think four.

Q Canyou namethefour of them?

A Yeah, it's Jorge Sdas, it's -- you know, one -- another
oneis named Tino (phonetic). I'm not sure on hislast name.
And I'm not sure on the other guys names.

Q But you know them aswaste orders? Their job
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1 classificationsare-- 1 A Canyou repeat that question?
2 A That'scorrect. 2 Q Your pay scale; can you tell me about that at all?
3 Q Okay. What about internal hauler; do you know what that 3 A 1think-- I'mnot -- I'm not really sure. | think --
4 is? 4 Q How much do you get paid?
5 A I'venever heard that before. 5 A I'm--1getpaid $21.21, $0.50 for ex -- including $0.50
6 Q Jockey truck drivers; haveyou heard of that? 6 centsfor being in second shift.
7 A Yeah, I'm--yes. They are-- 7 Q That'sper hour, right?
8 Q What -- what do they wear? What do they do? What do the 8 A That'scorrect.
9 internal haulersdo? 9 Q Nahin, doyou -- do you -- can you tell me who a general
10 A They moveaong -- they move -- they position trailers and 10 warehouse coworker reportsto?
11 C-trains at docking stations to be either emptied or |oaded. 11 A Hereportsto aSD operations --
12 Andthey'll just move -- yeah. 12 MR. HART: Objection. Foundation.
13 HEARING OFFICER FONG: And what did you refer them to? 13 HEARING OFFICER FONG: How -- how -- who -- how do you
14 Truck -- truck holders? Or what -- 14 know who they report to, Mr. Nahin?
15 MR. WEDEKING: Jockey truck drivers. Jockey truck. 15 THE WITNESS: What's that?
16 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Jockey? 16 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Do you know who the warehouse -- do
17 MR. WEDEKING: Jockey. Likeahorse jockey. 17 you know -- have you seen, in the warehouse, report to any
18 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Jockey -- what was it, jockey -- 18 particular manager?
19 MR. WEDEKING: Jockey truck. Truck. They just -- they -- 19 THE WITNESS: Yeah. Usually they're called an SD team
20 they back up trucks, trailers to the warehouse. They just go 20 lead, and -- you know.
21 intheyard and -- 21 HEARING OFFICER FONG: And do -- okay. And dotheS--
22 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay. 22 S-- what arethey called again?
23 MR. WEDEKING: -- and -- yeah. 23 THE WITNESS: A team leader, SD team lead.
24 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay. 24 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay. And you've seen -- do these
25 Q BY MR.WEDEKING: And what dothey wear towork, Nahin? | 25 team leaders, do they have aparticular uniform? Arethey
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1 A Steel-toebootsand | don't -- I'm not sureif they -- if 1 identifiable? The manager, team leaders?
2 they have designed pants, but | know they do wear fire- 2 THE WITNESS: Steel-toe boots and black reflective vest
3 retardant shirts, long-sleeved shirts. 3 with oran -- with the -- the reflective is green, light green,
4 Q Recovery coworkers, what do they wear? 4 | believe.
5 A Regular -- the same as -- as regular warehouse coworkers, 5 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Y ou can pick them up from the
6 steel-toe boots, and | know the only other thing | think they 6 general population of employees?
7 haveto wear isreflective vest, orange reflective vest. 7 THE WITNESS: That's correct.
8 Q Stock controllers, what do they wear? 8 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay. And -- and do you have an --
9 A Steel-toe boots and orange reflective vests. Other than 9 what -- do you have a particular name of a supervisor or ateam
10 that, no dress code. 10 lead that you've seen the warehouse report to that you have
11 Q What about an auditor? Haveyou ever heard of that job 11 seen?
12 classification? 12 THE WITNESS: Do you want me to name the -- ateam lead or
13 A | have, but | don't know what their job function is. But 13 awarehouse report?
14 1 -- you know. 14 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Yes. A -- no, ateam -- ateam
15 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Let'stake -- let's take -- 15 lead which you have personally seen giving ordersor a
16 let's-- do you want to take a five-minute break at this point 16 warehouse reporting to a particular team lead -- or ateam
17 intime? We've been on the record for two hours. Or you want 17 lead.
18 togoon? 18 THE WITNESS: Chris Bates.
19 MR. WEDEKING: | don't think | have much more. 19 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Give me -- give me more names.
20 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay. Let's continue then because | 20 THE WITNESS: Rey De Leon.
21 if thiswitness needsto go later, | think it's best to -- to 21 HEARING OFFICER FONG: So Chris Bates?
22 give, like, afollow through. 22 THE WITNESS: Sandra-- yes.
23 Q BY MR.WEDEKING: Nahin, pay scales, doyou -- canyou |23 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Who else?
24 testify about what -- what your job classification for your pay 24 THE WITNESS: Rey Dele-- Rey De Leon, Sandra Romero
25 scaleis? 25 (phonetic), Dominic Suarez (phonetic), Laura Heckman.
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1 HEARING OFFICER FONG: And -- and -- and this particular 1 retail stores.

2 team leads for the warehouse, you say that they wear like a-- 2 Q SD. Who'sin charge of -- who do those team leadsreport

3 what -- did you say -- did you say? | don't want to put words 3 to?

4 inyour mouth. 4 A | believeit'sDavid Ortiz.

5 THE WITNESS: Steel -- steel-toe boots and a black 5 Q Andwhat'shistitle?

6 reflective vest. 6 A Warehouse shift manager, | want to say. Or -- yeah.

7 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay. And isthisblack reflective 7 Q What -- what --

8 vest--isit worn mostly by -- by these team leads? Or -- or 8 HEARING OFFICER FONG: What does SD stand for? Who are

9 by-- 9 the SD people, Mr. Nahin?

10 THE WITNESS: I'veonly -- I've only seen them wearing 10 THE WITNESS: | -- | don't know. | don't remember what it

11 them. 11 standsfor, but | know their job function is to provide product

12 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay. And you've seen -- for 12 for our retail stores and to keep the warehouse in stock of

13 this-- for each of the team leads reported, you've seen these 13 product.

14 team leadsin action, so to speak, giving -- giving -- 14 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Does that sound -- does that sound

15 directing employees work flow? 15 like a stock controller?

16 THE WITNESS: Multiple employees. 16 THE WITNESS: No. No.

17 HEARING OFFICER FONG: And you've seen warehouse 17 HEARING OFFICER FONG: That's not the stock controller?

18 employees communication? Y ou've seen warehouse employees, 18 THE WITNESS: No. Stock controller isjust -- their job

19 have you seen warehouse employees go up to this particular team 19 function isto keep track of the -- of what product we have in

20 leadsand -- and -- and request for -- for -- request 20 thewarehouse, and | believe what is needed, or what we're

21 instruction for work? 21 shorton. Yeah.

22 THE WITNESS: Yes. 22 MR. HART: Okay. Mr. Hearing Officer, objection. He --

23 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay. Fine. Thank you. 23 he doesn't have persona knowledge of the stock controller job

24 Q BY MR.WEDEKING: Nahin, ageneral warehouse coworker, | 24 functions.

25 what do they wear differently than a stock control -- a stock 25 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Y eah, the record reflects that.
Page 59 Page 61

1 controller? Can -- can you -- 1 Therecord reflectsthat. I'll follow up with -- and that's

2 A | don'tthink anything at all. They -- | think they all 2 okay, Nahin, you're not expected to know everything.

3 wear the same thing. 3  THEWITNESS: Yesh.

4 Q What about recovery? 4 HEARING OFFICER FONG: I'll follow up with you, Mr.

5 A | don'tthink there's any difference. 5 Petitioner, on that. Okay. No problem.

6 Q So--okay. Canyou --theteam leadsthat you described, | 6 Q BY MR.WEDEKING: What -- what other departments -- what

7 can you tell mewhat teamsthey -- they lead? 7 other departments besides maintenance have you seen in the

8 A Yeah. SD,whichisbasicaly -- they are-- SD is 8 warehouse?

9 basicaly -- thisfunction is to provide the stores with 9 A Stock control, recovery, CDC.

10 product, our retail stores, and they will -- they are in charge 10 Q Okay. What'sCDC?

11 of thelogistics of the company for, like, having this C-train 11 A CDC'sjob functionisto deliver -- pick and deliver

12 cometo, for example, dock door 220, and having a warehouse 12 product to online customers.

13 coworker offload that trailer with a counterbalance. So the 13 Q What other departmentscan you -- that you're --

14 team lead will instruct a certain coworker to go and unload 14 A Sdfety department, | -- IT department. Let'ssee--

15 that trailer and -- 15 Q Now, the SD department, what -- what -- what other -- what

16 Q What'sthe name of theteams? 16 other departmentsarewithin SD?

17 A The-- 17 A Within SD? | do not know.

18 Q The--they'reteam leaders. The-- like, what -- like -- 18 Q Okay. Haveyou ever seen a-- atemporary employee work

19 A The names of the teams; what do you mean by that? Because | 19 at IKEA?

20 | know there's SD -- 20 A Yes

21 Q ChrisBates. What'she-- you said ChrisBateswasthe |21 Q How arethoseidentified?

22 name of ateam leader? 22 A Green reflective vest.

23 A Yes Heis--histeamisSD, whichis, likel said, 23 Q So--

24 is-- SD's-- SD's essential, general functionisto prad -- 24 A And steel-toe boots.

25 provide stock to the warehouse and provide product to our 25 Q What functionsdo -- does |KEA usethosefor, those --
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what -- what --

A Toworkin SD, to work in stock control, work in CDC. |
think mainly general warehouse coworker functions.

Q Haveyou ever seen atemp do a maintenance technician's
job?

A | have not.

Q What about internal -- an internal hauler, the jockey
truck driver? Haveyou ever seen --
Yes. A jockey truck driver, yes, | have.

Stock controller?

Yes, | have.

Cleaner, or you may know it as a waste sorter?

Yes, | have.

| think that -- COVID. Tell me about how COVID has
affected work.

A Okay. Well, we've had some cases reported. Usually, at
the -- at -- when the pandemic barely started, we were -- we
would get sent home early, or they would close down the
warehouse, so they would -- basically, the only people that
would -- we would be tasked at -- when they -- after they sent
out -- sent the general warehouse coworkers and everybody else
home, pretty much the only people that would stay would be
management safety and then maintenance would be tasked with
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prolong its -- its life or reduce the probability of -- of it

wearing down or -- or breaking or going out of service
unexpectedly.

Q Haveyou ever seen a general war ehouse coworker or
auditor, cleaner, internal hauler, recovery coworker do any of
those functionsyou just -- you just said that you do?

A | have not, although | don't know what a cleaner is.

Q When| say "cleaner" --

A When you say waste sorter?

Q Yes Yes

A Oh, okay. No, | have not.

MR. WEDEKING: So Mr. Hearing Officer, | think | should
tell you that the term cleaner isfairly new to both -- to --
to Nahin. He's never heard of that. We know it as -- he knows
them as awaste sorter.

HEARING OFFICER FONG: Yeah, | do know you -- one of the
persons you mentioned as a -- as awaste sorter, Mr. Nahin, did
you say Jorge Salas?

THE WITNESS: Yes.

HEARING OFFICER FONG: Yeah, | -- | seethat he -- he's
listed as acleaner. Can you -- can you just -- what about
Castillo (phonetic) -- these are names that are -- of employees
who are -- are -- are reflected as cleaners. Does -- do you

24 closing down the warehouse, powering down, the automation 24 know who Castillo Celestino (sic) is?
25 systemin building 6, closing fire doors in between each 25 THE WITNESS: No.
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1 building. There'stwo fire doors on each building, one on the 1 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Doesthat ring a bell?
2 south side, one on the north side, and these are located in 2 THE WITNESS: No.
3 between each building. 3 HEARING OFFICER FONG: What about Escar (sic) Malouf; does
4 Also, we -- well, the warehouse would close -- the 4 that ring abell?
5 warehouse closed down for several days, but we would have to -- 5 THEWITNESS: Yes.
6 maintenance would -- 6 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Do you know -- do you know his job
7 Q Whenyou say "we" -- yeah, say maintenance. 7 title, Escar Malouf, what he does?
8 A Maintenance -- maintenance would have to comein and 8 THE WITNESS: | know he's awaste sorter.
9 overseethisinfection of the facility. 9 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Waste sorter. | know that he's
10 Q What -- what type of training does maintenance have? What | 10 reflected asacleaner. How about Oscar Miranda, you heard of
11 typeof training do you have? 11 hisname?
12 A Thetypeof training that | have is safety training, 12 THE WITNESS: Yes.
13 power-tool training. 13 HEARING OFFICER FONG: What's hisjob title, if you know?
14 Q And--and -- and did you -- talk about the skillsthat 14 THE WITNESS: | thought -- | think it's preventative
15 you train, that you use at thejobsite, okay? 15 maintenance technician.
16 A Theskillsthat | useis-- 16 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay. What about Juan Razo; do you
17 Q Yeah. 17 know who heis?
18 A --€electrical troubleshooting, mechanical troubleshooting. 18  THEWITNESS: No, | do not.
19 By that, | mean finding continuity, determining where 19 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Jose Vaca-Mendoza; do you know who
20 electrical components go bad, mechanical components go bad, 20 heis?
21 such as contactors, power supplies, wore-down sprockets, wore- 21 THEWITNESS: I'm not sure what Jose -- which Jose, but |
22 down chains on loaders, bad motors that run conveyors. 22 know afew, but | would say no, because | don't -- | don't

N
w

Q Andwhat'saPM?

23

recognize the last names.

24 A That'sapreventative maintenance task. Basically, wetry 24 HEARING OFFICER FONG: And Christopher Wood?
25 to maintain certain object or piece of equipment so we can 25  THEWITNESS: Yes.
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1 HEARING OFFICER FONG: |she awaste sorter? 1 A CAFM isour application program where --
2 THEWITNESS: Yes. 2 Q Whohasaccesstoit?
3 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Or somebody -- okay. All right. 3 A The--asfaras| know, only maintenance. But basicaly,
4 Thenit's so noted, Mr. Petitioner. | think the record -- you 4 CAFM iswhere we create work orders for, let's say, out-of-
5 give-- | think you're giving it adecent shot in terms of 5 service equipment that needs to be addressed, or let's say,
6 reflecting the waste sorter was -- the new -- the new -- that 6 like aclogged toilet, we would writeit down. Basically, to
7 the new title waste sorter is -- might be what appears as 7 keep documentation of what's been done, what needs to be done,
8 cleanersin the job certificate in Exhibit 6. 8 what preventative maintenance task is coming up next, or what
9 MR. WEDEKING: Okay. 9 permanent -- preventative maintenance task has been done.
10 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Weéll, that actually -- actualy is. 10 Thingslike that.
11 Q BY MR.WEDEKING: Soyou said that your shift startsat 1| 11 MR. WEDEKING: Mr. Hearing Officer, | think that -- that |
12 and goesto 9:30, correct? 12 am done with Nahin.
13 A Yesh, that's correct. 13 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay. That'sfine. | have-- |
14 Q Canyou testify -- can you tell me about the other shifts 14 haveafew follow-up questions. Andif -- if subsequent to my
15 start times? Haveyou ever worked any of the other shifts 15 questions, you have additional questions thereafter, that's --
16 before? 16 that's-- you can ask them aswell, Mr. Petitioner.
17 A | havenot. | --1was-- | have been coming in from 2 to 17 Just some -- again, | just have some further questions to
18 9--t0 10:30 p.m., but that's for personal reasons, that it 18 clarify therecord and it's my -- it's my duty to do so.
19 was alowed by my manager. 19 Backtracking alittle bit, or jumping around, but your most
20 Q Okay. Training -- did wetalk about training? 1'm trying 20 recent testimony talked about skillsthat you were provided
21 toremember. Wedid, didn't we? 21 by -- by IKEA -- by IKEA, right?
22 A Thetraining that | have received is electrical safety. | 22 THE WITNESS: Y ou'retalking about skills or safety
23 havereceived fal restraint -- fall protection training. | 23 training?
24 have received mechanical tools and operations training. 24 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Maintenance skills, like -- yeah,
25 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Andisthistraining provided by -- | 25 like technical computering (sic), electrical components. The
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1 you said you have received it from who? 1 maintenance skills you said you got trained from, did you get
2  THEWITNESS: By the-- by the Employer. 2 thosetrainings from -- did you -- was that training provided
3 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay. All thesetrainingsyou're | 3 by IKEA?
4 talking about given to you by the Employer? 4  THEWITNESS: | --
5 THEWITNESS: Yes. 5 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Let me ask you, what -- what kind
6 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay. Goon. I'msorry. 6 of -- what kind of training specifically to maintenance has
7 THE WITNESS: | havereceived -- we have to -- we have to 7 IKEA provided to you as a-- as a maintenance employee?
8 receive atraining for the automated system in building 6, 8  THEWITNESS: Oh, okay. Mechanical -- mechanical
9 safety precautionsin the area, lockout, tagout procedures, 9 training, electrical training, conveyor training, like safety
10 safety trainingsin the area, and in the general warehouse, in 10 procedures for them also.
11 theentire warehouse, when it, like -- to work on equipment and 11 HEARING OFFICER FONG: And how isthis-- how isthis
12 power down things, but -- but the ASRS automation trainingisa | 12 training? Isit given to you asan -- individually or asa
13 little different. It'sjust telling us, basically, the safest 13 group?
14 proceduresto work in the area. 14 THE WITNESS: Asagroup, but | -- yeah, as agroup.
15 Q BY MR.WEDEKING: What's PPE stand for, Nahin? 15 HEARING OFFICER FONG: And where -- where do -- where does
16 A Persona protective equipment, sorry. 16 IKEA hold thistraining for you guys?
17 Q What kind of PPE do you wear around the ASRS? 17  THEWITNESS: Most of thetime, it could be on -- by the
18 A | wear ahardhat. When working on something, | wear -- 18 equipment that we are being trained on. For example, abailer
19 wear safety gloves. | will wear eye protection glasses, of 19 or the automation system and building -- so bailer would -- we
20 course, steel-toed boots. 20 have various bailersin the southside building 5 where --
21 Q Canyou tell meany paliciesthat are specific just for 21 where -- where the waste sorters drop off the -- the waste.
22 your maintenance? 22 Also, it could be at the maintenance shop, or sometimes it
23 A Podlicies, where-- | don't -- | don't know. | don't -- 23 could bein aprivate office inside of the administration area,
24 |et me think about that. 24 northside of building 1.
25 Q Wadll, okay. What about -- what's -- what's CAFM ? 25 HEARING OFFICER FONG: And when you get training as a
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Page 70
group, likethe -- isit like -- like -- like the maintenance

coworkersin your particular shift?
THEWITNESS: Yeah, it'sa--
HEARING OFFICER FONG: Orisit --
THE WITNESS: It could be -- it could be -- it could be
one or two shifts, usually, of maintenance technicians.
HEARING OFFICER FONG: And then -- and then when -- you --
when you are provided this training, you see your
maintenance -- do you see anybody else for this maintenance
training besides maintenance employees when you're being

Page 72
HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay. For the warehouse people, do

you consider them wearing a-- like, aformal uniform?
THE WITNESS: | mean, | -- | know that -- | know that all

they have to wear is steel-toe boots and orange safety vests.
HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay. So all ware -- okay. So all

warehouse workers, you -- they have to assess, like, you've

seen they all wear safety vests?
THE WITNESS: Yeah, reflective orange safety vests, or --

or -- unless they're atemp agency, then a green -- green

reflective vest.

11 trained? | mean, isit given to warehouse? Isit given to 11 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay. Let's-- let'slook at --
12 stock controllers? Isit given it to anybody else besides 12 okay. And besides the safety vests, have you seen, in your
13 maintenance employees? 13 threeyearsthere, the generd -- do the general warehouse,
14 THE WITNESS: No. 14 are-- they pretty much wear everyday clothes?
15 HEARING OFFICER FONG: It'sgiven only to you -- to 15 THE WITNESS: Yes.
16 maintenance employees? 16 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay. So besides-- and they leave
17 THEWITNESS: Yes. 17 their safety -- you witness warehouse workers wear -- wear --
18 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay. When -- when -- whenyou | 18 THEWITNESS: Yes.
19 got -- you said you've been working there for three years, 19 HEARING OFFICER FONG: -- regular clothes? Haveyou --
20 right? 20 THEWITNESS: Yeah.
21 THE WITNESS: Yes. 21 HEARING OFFICER FONG: -- witnessed warehouse --
22 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Let me backtrack. Who -- who 22 THE WITNESS: The wear gym -- gym shorts, jeans.
23 normally gives -- who normally provides this training to you -- 23 HEARING OFFICER FONG: How about shorts? Can they wear
24 maintenance training? 24 shorts?
25 THE WITNESS: It would either be our team leader, Robert 25 THE WITNESS: Yeah, I've seen them with gym shorts.
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1 Jones, or sometimes it might be the safety department, 1 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay. T-shirts underneath the
2 depending if it's more a safety training. 2 vestsin the warehouse?
3 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Again, if it'sin the safety 3 THE WITNESS: T-shirts, yes.
4 department, who from the safety department would give the 4 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Are maintenance employees allowed
5 training? Can you -- do you recall aname? 5 todothat?
6 THE WITNESS: Nick -- Nick Castenada. 6 THE WITNESS: Sometimes.
7 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Nick Castenada. 7 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Maintenance employees?
8 THE WITNESS: Yes. 8 THE WITNESS: Are alowed to wear what?
9 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay. Nick Castenada, you said? | 9 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Areyou -- are you -- are you
10 THEWITNESS: Yes. 10 allowed to wear t- -- t-shirts and shorts as a maintenance
11 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Y ou consider him -- what -- what's | 11 employee when you're working?
12 hisjob title? 12 THE WITNESS: Not shorts, no. Not shorts.
13 THE WITNESS: Safety team leader. 13 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay.
14 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Y ou sound very distant -- 14 THE WITNESS: We're allowed to wear t-shirts sometimes,
15 THE COURT REPORTER: I'm sorry -- 15 though.
16 HEARING OFFICER FONG: -- but -- 16 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay. How -- how -- how -- okay.
17 THE WITNESS: He's asafety team leader. 17 Let meshow -- okay.
18 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Thereyou go. Yesh, thereyou go. | 18 Wheat about waste -- the waste sorters, or, slash,
19 Okay. Thank you. That's better. Just stay closeto your 19 cleaners, do they -- they wear avest, too? You said they wear
20 microphone. 20 avest?
21 Okay. Let meask you alittle bit about -- just about -- 21 THEWITNESS: Yes.
22 doyou -- are you -- your position as a maintenance employer, 22 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay. Underneath the vest, isit
23 do you consider yourself aswearing, like, a-- like, aformal 23 the same wardrobe as the warehouse workers, or different?
24 uniform? 24 THE WITNESS: They -- they wear -- mainly, they -- the
25 THE WITNESS: Yes. 25 onesthat are hired on wear -- they wear uniforms like the ones
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1 | described, the fire-retardant pants and fire-retardant long- 1 make awork order for it. Or they'll explain what theissueis
2 dleeve, but | have seen them occasionally wear regular clothes. 2 tomeand | will try to addressit. If | cannot, then | would
3 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Do you consider -- do you consider | 3 create aticket, and by printing aticket, | mean send it over
4 the uniform you wear equivalent to that of what the waste 4 to our vender, Hyster Papay (phonetic), to troubleshoot or fix
5 sorterswear, or different? And explain how different it is. 5 whatever problem.
6 THE WITNESS: | -- | think -- I'm -- they look similar, 6 HEARING OFFICER FONG: And who -- who -- who -- and who is
7 but | just don't know if it's made of the same fabric, same 7 the-- do you know who the supervisor is for the internal
8 material because oursis-- oursisalot thicker in 8 hauler? Do you know?
9 maintenance. | just -- | don't know, oursis FRZ (phonetic). 9 THE WITNESS: | do not.
10 | don't know if theirsis FRZ, but it -- it's -- yeah, | think 10 HEARING OFFICER FONG: A particular order for you -- for
11 theirsis-- 11 you to do maintenance for -- related to internal hauler, who
12 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Maintenanceis FRZ? 12 would that come normally through besides the internal hauler?
13 THE WITNESS: Yes. 13 It -- would it be ateam lead?
14 HEARING OFFICER FONG: What is FRZ? 14 THE WITNESS: Yes, my team lead, yes. Or -- or ateam
15 THE WITNESS: Fire-retardant, | forget what the Z is. 15 of -- team lead from operations, but | don't know if -- if
16 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay. And then interna hauler, 16 the-- if theteam lead for operations, for example, an SD team
17 that'sajockey -- jockey truck person? 17 leader, ishisteam lead. I'm not aware of that's their team
18 THE WITNESS: Yeah, it sounds likeit, yeah. 18 leader.
19 HEARING OFFICER FONG: And do they -- do they wear normal | 19 HEARING OFFICER FONG: | see. Most of the -- okay. Most
20 clothes, or do they wear a uniform? 20 of the -- most of your work maintenance requests that you have
21 THE WITNESS: They wear normal clothes, but they also wear 21 todo, do they come from management? Who would they come from?
22 a-- afire-retardant -- well, | don't know if fire-retardant, 22 A particular team lead? More than one?
23 to behonest, but it looks -- it looks like the same material 23 THE WITNESS: Various -- various team leads. But usualy,
24 asthe waste sorter or cleaner. | -- our -- maintenance just 24 if -- if it's something that can be fixed in about 15 minutes,
25 seemsalot thicker. 25 then | will addressit on the spot, but if it's something
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1 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay. It's-- okay. Doyou 1 that -- that -- so it could be from my own team lead. It could
2 consider the same type of uniform as maintenance that an 2 befrom another team lead. But usuadly, if it's something that
3 internal hauler would wear, from what you've seen? 3 | can fix in under 15 minutes, then | can -- | will try to fix
4 THE WITNESS: No. 4 it on the spot, but if it's something that may require more
5 HEARING OFFICER FONG: How about -- did you say that you | 5 time or that the -- or if I'm aready on adifferent task that
6 know who arecovery coworker is? 6 kind of has priority -- that has priority over that, | will
7 THE WITNESS: Yes. 7 either talk to my team lead, Robert Jones --
8 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Do they wear uniforms, or dothey | 8 HEARING OFFICER FONG: And that's Robert -- Robert Jones,
9 wear normal clothes? 9 right? Robert Jones?
10 THE WITNESS: Normal clothes. 10 THE WITNESS: Y eah, Robert Jones, to seeif --
11 HEARING OFFICER FONG: What about the -- the stock 11 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Isheyour direct team lead?
12 controller; do they wear uniforms or normal clothes? 12 THEWITNESS: Yes. To seeif what they need will take
13 THE WITNESS: Normal clothes. 13 priority over what I'm already doing, or if awork order needs
14 HEARING OFFICER FONG: I'll go briefly on this, knowing 14 to be created on CAFM to address that issue later.
15 that I'll probably -- I'll elaborate more with Petitioner, but 15 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay. And you said that Robert
16 just since we have you here, what's your interaction -- you 16 Jonesisateam lead for maintenance technicians, right?
17 testified about your -- your -- your -- some interaction with 17 THE WITNESS: He's second shift maintenance team leader.
18 the warehouse coworkers. What's your interaction, if any, with 18 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay. Okay. Second shift, and
19 any -- with aninternal hauler, or the jockey trucker, if any? 19 that'syour shift. And you said some other team leads also can
20 THE WITNESS: Usually, when -- when there's something 20 giveyou orders for maintenance requests besides the -- Robert
21 wrong with aC-train, like adoor is unable to be opened, | 21 Jones?
22 would -- usualy, I'll have to saw off the latch that locks the 22 THE WITNESS: | wouldn't say -- | wouldn't say orders.
23 door. Or if there's something wrong with the -- with the -- 23 They're more like requests.
24 with the truck itself, that | meant that maybe | can -- they'll 24 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay. Requests. Besides Robert
25 letmeknow and | -- | try to fix it or lock it up, tag it out, 25 Jones, which other team leader would come next in giving you

eScri bers,
reporting@scribers. net |

(800) 257-0885 |

LLC
WWW. escri bers. net



78..81

Page 78

Page 80

1 requests? Can you mention a name and a department? 1 usualy -- it's something that happened in the moment, an
2 THE WITNESS: Wéell, above him would be Aaron Lucas. 2 issue, like an equipment crashed in aisle 400, building 4, and
3 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Oh, Aaron Lucas, okay. He'sthe 3 theaarm went off, and he'd be like, hey, can you come to
4 facility manager? 4 building 4 to reset the alarm and check out the equipment. |
5 THE WITNESS: Yesh. And he-- he can directly givemea 5 mean, everything isfine. So that ismainly to keep flow
6 task. 6 moving, to keep other coworkers, you know, from stalling, from
7 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay. Someoneinclude-- someone | 7 performing their tasks.
8 below him, like the -- the -- the level of ateam lead, can 8 Whereas an order is Bob telling me, hey, this equipment --
9 someone else besides Robert Jones, as ateam lead, give you 9 thischain broke; go fix it. This-- thischainin building 6,
10 order -- give you arequest for maintenance? 10 conveyor -- the hydro conveyor broke, or it needs to be
11 THE WITNESS: Robert Jones gives me task orders. 11 replaced; go replace that, you know. Or hey, | put thiswork
12 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay. Can some -- can another team | 12 order in your box to go unclog this toilet --
13 lead give you task orders? 13 HEARING OFFICER FONG: But again, what about aticket --
14 THE WITNESS: | would say more requests. 14 I'm sorry, what about the -- the term ticket; was |
15 HEARING OFFICER FONG: I'm sorry, requests. Can another 15 misclassifying it? What's aticket?
16 team lead give you arequest? 16 THE WITNESS: A ticketis--is--is-- aticket could
17 THE WITNESS: Yes, it's practiced, yes. 17 be-- 1 don't -- aticket isbasically amaterial handling
18 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Who? Who? Give me aname. 18 equipment that has -- is out of service and that it needsto be
19  THEWITNESS: ChrisBates, Sandra-- 19 fixed, so we will placeit to the vender to fix that out.
20 HEARING OFFICER FONG: What department -- what department | 20 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay. But doesthat exist aswell?
21 ishefrom? 21 Theterminology existsin your world -- in your work world?
22 THE WITNESS: SD. 22 THE WITNESS: What's that?
23 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Isthat warehouse? 23 HEARING OFFICER FONG: But --
24 THE WITNESS: SD operations. 24 THE WITNESS: A ticketismainly just for our -- our
25 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Remind mewhat SD operationsis? | 25 contractors, our vendors, Hyster. A work order is more
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1 THE WITNESS: SD operationsis tasked with stock -- 1 something that I'm -- | have to perform ajob function that --
2 keeping -- offloading C-trains or trailers, keeping -- 2 aPM could be awork order, like, hey, go lubricate this -- go
3 unloading product from these trailers and C-trains, putting 3 lubricate this -- this pillow block on this conveyor.
4 themin their designated locations, and then essentially 4 HEARING OFFICER FONG: And when you testified earlier that
5 providing product and stock to our retail stores. 5 Robert Jones gave you 85 percent of -- or 80 to 85 percent, you
6 HEARING OFFICER FONG: What percentage of the requests | 6 werereferring to -- to what aspect of these three terms?
7 would you say come from your immediate shift supervisor, Robert | 7 THE WITNESS: Work orders.
8 Jones? 8 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay. And what about requests;
9 THE WITNESS: 85 percent. 9 same question. Who would give you most of your requests? What
10 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay. 10 percent -- what percentage would Robert Jones give you a
11 THE WITNESS: 80 to 85 percent. 11 request?
12 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay. 12 THE WITNESS: A request, | don't know if any at all
13 MR. WEDEKING: Mr. Hearing Officer, | feel that the-- the | 13 because| just fed likeif -- if -- if --
14 term request and orders are just kind of getting confused when 14 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Who do they come from, the work
15 it comesto -- 15 request?
16 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Correct me, what's the 16 THE WITNESS: The work -- the work order comes from Robert
17 difference -- what's the terminology for that, please? 17 Jones.
18 MR. WEDEKING: | would say that -- | just feel that -- 18 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay.
19 that when you say -- when you say -- when he saysthat youcan | 19 THE WITNESS: So basically, if -- if | get arequest or --
20 reguest work be done, it's -- it's confused with -- 20 fromateam lead, and I'm -- and I'm aready on a different
21 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Because you -- 21 task, and | have to report to Robert Jones and be like, hey,
22 THE WITNESS: Can | add? 22 Bob, what do you want me to do? I'm sorry, hey, Robert Jones,
23 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Y eah, go ahead. 23 what do -- what do you want me to do, you know? So | will have
24 THE WITNESS: A reguest -- the -- the -- arequest are 24 to go with what he says, and that's basically an order versus a
25 when -- when ateam leader from operations contacts me, it's 25 request.
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1 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay. Because he'syour -- he's 1 youinteract on adaily basis or weekly basis, if any, to
2 your immediate supervisor. He's saying -- 2 the--
3 THE WITNESS: That's correct. 3 THE WITNESS: Basicaly, it's the same way -- basically
4 HEARING OFFICER FONG: -- that the ultimate asto how -- 4 the same as a general warehouse coworker. If they have -- if
5 THE WITNESS: Because he doesn't -- he doesn't really 5 there-- if there's something malfunctioning and then they need
6 requireme-- 6 tolet meknow about it so | can addressit, or they'reon a
7 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay. Hasthere beenan 7 piece of equipment that is malfunctioning, then they'll let me
8 occasion -- has there been an occasion where you got requests 8 know about it and | will addressit if | can.
9 from other -- from other -- other one than Robert Jones and you 9 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Again, when you're there addressing
10 go to Robert Jones ultimately to get approval asto which has 10 it, do they working with you, or do they stand on the side?
11 more priority than the other? 11 THE WITNESS: They stand on thesideand | will -- | will
12 THE WITNESS: That's correct. When | -- 12 kind of just tell them to describe me the symptoms of what's
13 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Ultimately -- ultimately you goto | 13 going on, but as far as them putting hands on it, they are not
14 Robert Jones when -- when -- to -- to -- to determine and 14 alowed to.
15 conclude which request from different team leads have priority? 15 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay. Isthere an occasion where
16 THEWITNESS: Yes. 16 you need assistance from another -- if you need assistance from
17 HEARING OFFICER FONG: All right. Thank you. 17 another person, like things get complicated, do you call
18 What about -- what about your interaction with -- with, 18 another maintenance coworker? Or is there anybody else that
19 like, a-- with, like, acleaner? Isthere -- isthere-- is 19 youcancall?
20 there any interaction with cleaners? Explain alittle bit on 20 THE WITNESS: Prefer -- preferably a maintenance coworker.
21 that. 21 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Why? Why amaintenance coworker
22 THE WITNESS: Yeah. Yes. Usuadly, if -- like, | have -- 22 preferably?
23 if | have -- if something's too heavy for me, then | will 23 THE WITNESS: Because they've been -- they've been --
24 req-- | will request to, hey, can you help me pick this up? 24 they've received the safety training, or they have the skills
25 Or, hey, if I'm, say, performing a preventative maintenance or 25 to help me, say, on a conveyor, whereas arecovery coworker
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1 I'madjusting amotor and I need him to hold the flashlight, 1 doesn't know how the -- how to -- how a chain might rotate on a
2 I'll belike, hey, can you hold this flashlight for me because 2 function -- on amotor. They don't have the skillsto
3 | can't-- | can't work with -- | have to have both of my hands 3 troubleshoot, whereas --
4 onthis. Or acleaner, I'll -- I'd be like, hey, can you -- | 4 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay. | just have afew more
5 would request -- I'd be like, hey, can you drop off this pallet 5 questions. We'll probably finish in 15, 20 minutes, maybe
6 over here because we need it to -- | -- | need al this 6 perhapsless. I'll let you go before lunch, okay, if that's
7 material in hereto fix this concrete floor. 7 okay for you?
8 HEARING OFFICER FONG: How about if you spill something? | 8 THE WITNESS: Yes.
9 Who -- who would you -- there's a spill, or you spill some oil 9 MS. INESTA: Mr. Hearing Officer, | just want to put on --
10 or something, has that ever happened? And if so, would you -- 10 | dowant to object to alot of thisline of questioning with
11 isthat when you would call acleaner to do? Or -- 11 respect to foundation. Witness lacks personal knowledge.
12 THEWITNESS: Yeah, | would belike, hey, can you bring 12 That -- it's beyond witness' knowledge with respect to what
13 some cones? And then -- can you bring me some cones, some -- 13 skills his coworkers have, what safety training they have or
14 to barrier off this-- 14 havenot received. | just want to make that clear for the
15 HEARING OFFICER FONG: How about turning a bolt or 15 record.
16 getting -- getting into a piece of equipment and touching it 16 HEARING OFFICER FONG: All right. So noted. So noted.
17 or-- 17 Thank you, Ms. Employer's Counsel. That will be noted. You
18 THE WITNESS: No. No, because they have not received that 18 made your objection and you're on the record and that will be
19 safety training. 19 noted for the decision writer, okay. Thank you so much.
20 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay. 20 What about your -- what about any interaction with the
21 THEWITNESS: So | -- yeah, | would not be able to press 21 stock controller? Can you talk about that?
22 that. 22 THE WITNESS: It'sthe same as a general warehouse
23 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay. I'm sorry, did | ask you 23 coworker. If there's something that they notice that needs to
24 about your interaction -- if | did, let me know, but what about 24 be addressed, for example, like a-- say again, like a-- like
25 your interaction with arecovery coworker? Do you -- how do 25 aleak ona-- ona-- onaforklift, I'd be like, hey, this--
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1 thisforklift isleaking; can you take alook at it? They'll 1 THE WITNESS: No, not that I'm aware of.
2 belike, yeah, hey -- and I'd be like, yeah, perfect; let me 2 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay. Areyou aware of any --
3 takealook at this, you know? And -- yeah. 3 any -- whether an interna hauler, recovery coworker, or a
4 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay. Okay. 4 stock employee, are you aware whether any of those have been
5 THE WITNESS: Or, hey, this chair broke. Do you think you 5 promoted to the position of maintenance coworker?
6 can put it back together, or what do | do with it? And I'll 6 THE WITNESS: Not that I'm aware of.
7 determineif it'sfixable or beyond repair and needs to be 7 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Same question for awarehouse
8 thrown away. 8 controller; any warehouse coworker been promoted to maintenance
9 HEARING OFFICER FONG: All right. | getit. | get it. 9 that you know -- are aware of ?
10 Have you -- do -- has there ever -- have you -- let me 10 THE WITNESS: Not that I'm aware of.
11 phrase this properly. Have you been asked to trans -- to do 11 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Ismost of your work -- if you can
12 work in other departments besides maintenance? | mean, asa-- 12 even answer on the question. You tell me. |smost of your
13 say if somebody -- say somebody from -- from the cleaner -- 13 work inside the -- inside the warehouse, any of the particular
14 let's say if awaste sorter or a cleaner is absent, have you 14 buildings? If you can give me a percentage, of like the work
15 ever been asked to fill up for -- for -- for that waste sorter? 15 that you do inside the warehouse as to the work that you do
16 THE WITNESS: | have not. 16 outside, like in the maintenance shed outside of the facility?
17 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Do you know any other maintenance | 17 What percentage of your work do you do inside the maintenance?
18 coworker that has ever been asked to fill up for a cleaner 18 THE WITNESS: | would say --
19 who's absent? 19 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Inside the -- | mean the buildings.
20 THE WITNESS: | have not. 20 THE WITNESS: | would say 80 percent is --
21 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay. Haveyou ever -- haveyou -- | 21 THE COURT REPORTER: | can't hear the witness.
22 have you been asked to fill up -- same question, but when an 22 THE WITNESS: | would -- | would say that 80 -- | would
23 internal hauler is absent, have you ever been asked to fill up, 23 say 80 percent of the work is inside the warehouse, 20 percent
24 to do theinternal hauler work? 24 outside. And my -- | would say that of the 80 percent inside
25  THEWITNESS: | have not. 25 thewarehouse, 80 percent of my work isat automation in
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1 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Same question for arecovery 1 building 6.
2 worker, have you been asked to fill up for absent recovery 2 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay. Who -- who else besides
3 coworker? 3 maintenance work isin building 6?
4 THE WITNESS: | have not. 4 THE WITNESS: Besides maintenance workers, it's general
5 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Same question for a stock 5 warehouse coworkers in the CDC department, and as CDC team
6 controller. 6 leaders.
7 THE WITNESS: | have not. 7 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay. When you -- when you -- when
8 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Same question for a warehouse 8 the 15 to 20 percent when you worked outside of the facility
9 coworker. 9 building, those six buildings you noted, who else -- who else
10 THE WITNESS: | have not. 10 do you see working outside?
11 HEARING OFFICER FONG: And don't worry, you know, we 11 THE WITNESS: The -- the jockey drivers.
12 understand you got family and stuff, so -- so we get it. No 12 HEARING OFFICER FONG: And obviously, because they're
13 worries. We havekids. | have a9- and an 11-year-old, so. 13 driving the trucks, right?
14 He'sbeenreally good. | would have been like -- I'm glad | 14  THEWITNESS: That's correct.
15 haven't seen a-- adap from the side, so -- 15 HEARING OFFICER FONG: That needsto be outside.
16 THE WITNESS: No. 16 THEWITNESS: Yes.
17 HEARING OFFICER FONG: -- hang in there. Hang in there. 17 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay. Besidesthejockey drivers,
18 THE WITNESS: No. 18 do you see anybody else from -- do you see any -- anybody
19 HEARING OFFICER FONG: We're amost done. Do you know | 19 else -- any cleaners outside?
20 whether any of your maintenance coworkers have any come-- have |20  THEWITNESS: | seethem -- | see-- | only see cleaners
21 any of the maintenance coworkers that you know of -- have any 21 outside when they're taking out a-- or actually, no. No, | do
22 of them been promoted from any other positions from the ware -- 22 not.
23 fromthe facility? Have they ever been promoted asa-- hasa 23 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay.
24 cleaner ever been promoted to a maintenance employee that you 24  THEWITNESS: Becausel -- because| -- because | don't
25 know of? 25 know -- I've seen Oscar Miranda outside an awful lot.
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1 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Doing what? Oscar Miranda; you've | 1 HEARING OFFICER FONG: How do you know that?
2 seen him alot outside doing what? 2 THE WITNESS: Conversations.
3 THE WITNESS: Organizing, moving around pallets, moving 3 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay. How about with the -- have
4 around just the type of material, throwing away pallets, 4 you had conversations with the clean -- asfar asyou're
5 throwing away metal waste. 5 concerned, does everybody else get paid the same, on the same
6 HEARING OFFICER FONG: He's awaste sorter? 6 day you do?
7 THE WITNESS: | -- asfar as| know, | thought he was a -- 7 THE WITNESS: That's correct.
8 | think he's a preventative maintenance technician. 8 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Isthat because you've had
9 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay. And whenyou see-- whenyou | 9 conversations with -- with particular job classifications?
10 seethisparticular Oscar Miranda outside, what percentage of 10 THE WITNESS: That's correct.
11 his-- when you say alot, what percentage of the work do you 11 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay. Did you get an employee
12 think he would be outside? 12 manual when you first started?
13 THE WITNESS: Of hiswork? 13 THE WITNESS: | got ajob description sheet. | don't know
14 HEARING OFFICER FONG: When you see him? Asfar asyou 14 if that would be amanual.
15 seeing him? 15 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Do you get -- do you get memos,
16  THEWITNESS: I'd say about -- well, | -- thething is, he 16 like -- like do you get supervisory memos, particularly to the
17 worksin first shift, so | -- he leaves at, | think, 3 or 2:30. 17 maintenance?
18 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay. WEell, that answered my 18 THE WITNESS: Y eah, that's correct, and | also give out
19 question. That answered it. So thank you; I'll move on. 19 logs of things that have gone through throughout the day, but
20 THEWITNESS: Okay. 20 yeah, | definitely -- | do receive various memos.
21 HEARING OFFICER FONG: What about recovery coworkers, do | 21 HEARING OFFICER FONG: And are those -- how do you know
22 you ever see them outside working outside of the facility? 22 those are only to the maintenance employees?
23 THEWITNESS: | do not. 23 THE WITNESS: We have a-- agroup of -- it's called the
24 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Stock controller, out -- working 24 officeof liaison and it's basically the -- the facility
25 out -- have you seen them outside of the facility? 25 department.
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1 THE WITNESS: | do nat. 1 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay. And you see -- you see --
2 HEARING OFFICER FONG: And warehouse coworker? 2 you seethe email being sent? Y ou seethe -- do you see the --
3 THEWITNESS: | do not. 3 your coworker maintenance names in the -- in the memos?
4 HEARING OFFICER FONG: You get paid -- you get paid 4 THE WITNESS: That's correct.
5 biweekly? 5 HEARING OFFICER FONG: When you issue the logs, you say
6 THE WITNESS: That's correct. 6 you givethelogsto who?
7 HEARING OFFICER FONG: When -- when is the last time you 7 THE WITNESS: It depends. | -- | hand them out to various
8 got paid? 8 departments. It could be -- it could be article
9 THEWITNESS: Let me pull up the exact date. 9 administration, which s, | believe, stock control. | -- it
10 HEARING OFFICER FONG: And what -- and on which day also, | 10 could be to SD team leaders, CDC team leaders. Just basically
11 Fridays, Mondays? 11 telling them of what -- what went on throughout -- throughout
12 THE WITNESS: Every -- every Thursday or Friday, depends 12 theday asfar as maintenance: what equipment is down, what's
13 what -- sometimesit varies on -- because | have direct 13 inservice, what's working, what's not, what conveyor is down,
14 deposit, so it depends. 14 what conveyor --
15 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay. 15 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay. But the maintenance |logs,
16 THEWITNESS: So I'm -- we're going to get paid this 16 arethey part of your duty? Part of your work duties?
17 Friday, the 16th. So thelast time | got paid was October 2, 17 THE WITNESS: That's correct.
18 2020. 18 HEARING OFFICER FONG: And you -- you issue those on a
19 HEARING OFFICER FONG: So every two weeks? 19 daily, weekly -- or on aweekly basis?
20 THE WITNESS: That's correct. 20 THE WITNESS: Daily.
21 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay. You had conversation with | 21 HEARING OFFICER FONG: And who do you give that to?
22 thewarehouse workers. Do you know what -- when -- when all -- 22 THE WITNESS: Who do | what?
23 when do they get paid? 23 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Who do you give those logs to,
24 THE WITNESS: | -- they get paid at -- as the same -- the 24 agan?
25 same dateswe do. 25 THE WITNESS: | could -- it's CDC team leaders, CD -- SD
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team leaders, and people -- people from stock control that

were -- yeah.

HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay. I'm going to follow up --
I'm going to follow up with that from with Petitioner because |
know we've gone beyond your -- your time -- your timespan, o |
appreciate that. We're almost done.

THE WITNESS: Yeah.

HEARING OFFICER FONG: Any additional questions you have,
Mr. Petitioner, as aresult of my questions, then you can go
ahead and ask. Otherwise, you can -- you're free to do with
what your witness as you wish.

MR. WEDEKING: 1 think.

RESUMED DIRECT EXAMINATION

Q BY MR.WEDEKING: Can another department give you an
order, Nahin?
A Order? I've never received an order from adifferent team
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MR. WEDEKING: So you're talking about the hierarchy?

HEARING OFFICER FONG: -- that. Yeah.
MR. WEDEKING: The hierarchy?
HEARING OFFICER FONG: Yeah. How did you come about
what -- let me ask you this, was this something you produced,
or was this something generated straight out from IKEA's
server?
MR. WEDEKING: No. No. That's something that | -- | made
to show.
HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay. And again, you know, if it's
something from IKEA's server that's public, that's okay, too.
I'm not trying to scare you or anything.
MR. WEDEKING: Thisisjust from -- from my eight years
of -- of working there, working with the team leads and the
departments in ways that -- that -- well, there'salso a-- a
big, giant monitor, if you will, of the supervisorsin the

17 lead in adifferent department. |'ve received requests, but | 17 warehouse.

18 don't--1--1can'tredly -- | don't -- it doesn't feel like 18 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay.

19 anorder. It'smore-- it feelsmorelike arequest and I've 19 MR. WEDEKING: And that is actually broken down into

20 never -- the only person | really answer to is Robert Jones or 20 departments, versus down into smaller departments and stuff.

21 Aaron Lucas, so. 21 Just work -- from working with coworkers and team leads,

22 MR. WEDEKING: That'sit. I'm done, Mr. Hearing Officer. 22 talking to them on breaks, it's -- it'sreally clear to see

23 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay. | don't have anything 23 that -- which managers are in charge of this manager. It's

24 further. Thank you so much for your time, Nahin. 24 pretty -- it'sreally common knowledge that that --

25 THE WITNESS: No problem. Thank you. 25 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay. And haveyou also seen a
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1 HEARING OFFICER FONG: We appreciateit. And then 1 chart similar to this? Have you seen achart similar to this

2 you're -- you're off the -- you're off the hook, so to speak. 2 fromIKEA?

3 THE WITNESS: Okay. Soundsgood. Thank you. | 3 MR. WEDEKING: No, not -- not exactly with that layout.

4 appreciateit for thetime. 4 Thereisa-- amonitor on the wall that -- that shows the

5 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Thank you. 5 managers, the supervisors, and if they're in the building or

6 Okay. All right. It'sabout 11:40 -- 11:48, 11:50, so | 6 not, and that thing -- and it's touchscreen, and they could,

7 think thisis probably a good bresk to -- to take. Let me-- 7 like, turn thelittle circle green to say if they'rein the

8 let mejust clarify maintenance on Petitioner's Exhibit 2, 8 building or not. And that -- that is broken down into

9 whichisthe -- the facility -- the facility map introduced by 9 departments for the team leads and stuff. Soit's--it's--

10 the Petitioner, which isthe one that's like, you know -- it 10 but I'm -- if you're talking to a coworker on a break or

11 looks like a management hierarchy by -- by job title and -- and 11 something and they're referring to their team lead, it's --

12 department. 12 it's pretty common knowledge that --

13 Mr. Petitioner, can you explain to us how you come about 13  HEARING OFFICER FONG: All right. Okay. Based on that,

14 coming -- how you came -- and you know, there'snoissuehere | 14 I'minclined to -- even over objection that | anticipate, I'm

15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

about -- | don't see any issue about confidentiality, so I'm
not going for that at all. I'm just -- I'm just want to know
the -- set some foundation for introduction of that exhibit.
Ultimately, even with the -- objections, ultimately, | intend
to introduce it, depending on what foundation we can lay out.
But can you tell me -- can you explain to us, for
everybody to know, how you came about drafting it? Or you just
pulled it from, like, one of IKEA's server or something? And
again, I'm not -- I'm just going for purposes of foundation to
establish that thisis a proper IKEA document or something
like --

N R R R
O © 0 N O U

21
22
23
24
25

inclined to introduce this Petitioner's 2. But I'll make the
ruling momentarily.

So you're saying based on your eight years' experiencein
working with the -- with the -- particularly at the facility,
thisis something that -- that -- that you see as accurate?

MR. WEDEKING: Yes.

HEARING OFFICER FONG: And then would you be ableto -- if
I -- when we come back after lunch, if | ask you the particular
names of people who are -- who hold those -- who hold -- who
fit into those boxes, would you be able to give me that
information?
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1 MR. WEDEKING: Yes. For -- theresalot of those that 1 HEARING OFFICER FONG: That seems -- that seems like the
2 are-- there's multiple ones per shifts. | cantell you the 2 proper thing to do. With that being said, can we -- perhaps
3 onesfor first and second because |'ve worked first and second. 3 during lunch break, can you guys email the parties the -- the
4 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Um-hum. 4 officia chart?
5 MR. WEDEKING: But there are third-shift counterparts to 5 MR. HART: Yes.
6 each one of those team leads, but the names of those team 6 HEARING OFFICER FONG: And then well go from there.
7 leads, | -- 1 couldn't -- because | have not directly worked 7 MR. HART: Yes.
8 with them, but | do know that there are third-shift team lead 8 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Thank you for that.
9 versions of those things. But yes, | could give you names. 9 Y ou know, Petitioner's 3, same question. |'m going to
10 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay. Employer'scounsel, I'm | 10 haveto just make the sameissue on that. If you -- Mr.
11 inclined to introduce this document. What isyour position? 11 Petitioner, where did go -- did you say you download -- you
12 MR. HART: Yes. Thisis--thisisnot properly 12 downloaded this document from the server?
13 introduced. There are anumber of problemswith this. First 13 MR. WEDEKING: From the IKEA server, yeah. Theresa
14 of al, there's -- there's not been a proper foundation laid 14 public drive and then there's a common drive, and | got that
15 with regard to this document. 15 under the maintenance common public drive.
16 Second of all, it'shearsay. It's not an official IKEA 16 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay. Based on that, I'minclined
17 record. It'snot abusinessrecord. It's-- it's-- there's 17 to enter -- alow that into -- for the -- the Petitioner's
18 absolutely not an exception to the hearsay rule that's been 18 exhibit. Again, for what it'sworth. Most of the testimony
19 articulated. 19 will be -- most of the evidence on this structure will come
20 Third, thisisn't the best evidence. Thereisan official 20 from the witnesses' testimony, but the -- the -- it's always
21 IKEA organization chart for the Tejon facility, and that isthe 21 niceto seeapictoria depiction of the facility.
22 proper record to beintroduced for purposes of showing the 22 Any issues-- what'syour -- what's your take on that, Mr.
23 organizational breakdown of the Tejon facility. Thisisjust 23 Employer, and are you willing to provide a similar chart, which
24 simply not accurate. 24 wejust cut to the chase?
25 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Areyouwillingto -- | do agree | 25 MS. INESTA: If thisis on the drive, what we would be
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1 that, obviously, the best evidence rules would be -- would 1 willing to do is provide the chart with al of the mark --
2 be-- would be to have the actual department -- departmental 2 without all of those markings.
3 management structure chart. Absent that, let me ask you this, 3 HEARING OFFICER FONG: That'sfine. | think that would
4 | mean, areyou -- I'll talk to the RD about this, but for 4 work.
5 purposes of -- you know, thisis not going to the community of 5 MS. INESTA: Yeah.
6 interest. It'sdirectly, | see, it'sjust a-- achart that 6 HEARING OFFICER FONG: There have been testimonies --
7 will help assist everyone with his testimony. 7 there's been testimony already as to, you know, maintenance
8 He has testified that he -- he did this from his actual 8 sheds behind each -- each building and that the Petitioner will
9 experience being at the facility for eight years or so. On 9 beableto, inyour direct testimony, to provide anything
10 that basis, I'm going to submit it. But with that said, | will 10 additional you want. But for purposes of -- of acleaner
11 obviously entertain the actual best evidencerule. Areyou 11 record, I'm pretty sure the Employer's assistance on that, and
12 willing to -- to provide that chart? If so, we can introduce 12 if perhaps you can locate a similar chart on that during the
13 that instead of this. Obviously, having the -- the Petitioner 13 lunch break, or you need to do it afterwards, we'll give you
14 having reviewed it and see what his thoughts on those are. |If 14 the proper timeto do so.
15 it'salegitimate chart document, | wouldn't anticipate any 15 And again, with Pet -- with the Petitioner's
16 issuesfrom the Petitioner. So are you willing to -- to -- 16 understanding, would that work for you, Mr. Petitioner?
17 then subject to having this go into record because we don't 17 MR. WEDEKING: Yes.
18 have the best evidence rule, are you -- 18 HEARING OFFICER FONG: All right. Thank you, everyone
19 MR. HART: Yes, we would provide -- we'd provide the 19 thank you for everyone's cooperation for a cleaner, more
20 official work chart for the Tejon facility. 20 accurate record.
21 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay. Then if that is provided, | 21 MS. INESTA: Thank you.
22 Mr. Petitioner, and you review it, and obviously, | assume that 22 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Red quick, and then I'll give
23 itwill be-- it will be agreeable, are you okay with 23 everyone-- I'll everyone an hour. Don't worry, we're going
24 introducing that chart as well? 24 into alunch break; everyone's going to have an hour. 1'm not
25 MR. WEDEKING: Absolutely. Absolutely. 25 hereto, like, starve anybody. And | know people have things
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1 toattendto, so I'll give everyone an hour if we go beyond 1 MR. WEDEKING: So | do believe that thisis a spreadsheet
2 noon. 2 for--for 2021, and so | don't think that any of these have
3 Again, just to foresee -- foreseeable issues, chart number 3 the-- | think that once an employee gets the training, each
4 4, that's everyone -- if everyone can look at the Petitioner's 4 yellow box will befilled in with completed or something like
5 Exhibit Number 4. It looksto me-- and | figure it out that 5 that. Thisis--thisisa-- thiswasactualy -- the team
6 it's-- 1 printed it and -- and | guess | put it next to each 6 leader that'sin charge of safety training --
7 other in ahorizontal manner, and | see that those kind of 7 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Uh-huh.
8 connect. 8 MR. WEDEKING: -- thiswas the -- was his spreadsheet that
9 Can you explain to us, Petitioner, what -- what it is? 9 he made up.
10 What Petitioner's 4 is? 10 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay. Good. Good. Good. Okay.
11 MR. WEDEKING: Sothisisalist of -- it's a spreadsheet 11 Sothisis--thisis-- this spreadsheet is-- is-- was --
12 with thelist of the people that are in facilities and their 12 was created by -- by ateam lead?
13 job classifications. And the -- the training on thetop is -- 13 MR. WEDEKING: That's correct.
14 | the maintenance training for the people in facilities. These 14 HEARING OFFICER FONG: But it givesthe information that's
15 aredll -- thered areas area all just different subjects of 15 inthe spreadsheet; you got it from one that was created by a
16 the safety training. 16 teamlead?
17 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay. 17 MR. WEDEKING: Yes. So -- so on the maintenance drive --
18 MR. WEDEKING: That we have. 18 in the public drive, the common drive, the maintenance drive,
19 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay. And then when you say -- 19 thiswasunder training and it was a read-only, so that you
20 when you say, you know, on the job classification facility -- 20 couldn't -- couldn't give yourself training.
21 facilitiestechnician first, isthat like a maintenance 21 HEARING OFFICER FONG: | see.
22 technician? 22 MR. WEDEKING: So -- so thisis a secured document from
23 THE WITNESS: That's the shift that each -- each 23 somebody tampering with it. Thisisjust aread-only version.
24 technician isworking. 24 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay. So did you print this chart
25 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay. But you know, okay. They're | 25 again? I'm not -- I'm not -- I'm not going for, again, and
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1 really -- the job classification at issue here is maintenance 1 obviously, we can talk about this later, but | don't think --
2 technician. Isthat the same as facilities technician? 2 I'venever, ever seenit and | expect -- | don't expect to see
3 MR. WEDEKING: It -- for this document, yes, it is. 3 any employer going after an employee. When it's something
4 HEARING OFFICER FONG: For this document, sowhenyousay | 4 totally confidential or something, then we can address it, but
5 facilitiestechnician, you're referring to maintenance 5 | don't expect that here. So I'm not going on that respect.
6 technician? 6 Sol'mgoing to pry more for purposes, again, for -- of laying
7 MR. WEDEKING: Correct. 7 foundation.
8 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay. And then -- okay. Okay. 8 Soisthis, like, aprintout that you got from the public
9 What about what -- okay, waste sorter. \We have evidence on 9 server?
10 that. That, | assume, that it means you're referring to the 10 MR. WEDEKING: Thiswas-- yes.
11 cleaner, right? 11 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay. Soyou didn't create it
12 MR. WEDEKING: Correct. 12 yourself, you just printed it?
13 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay. Certainly, I'm going to 13 MR. WEDEKING: No, absolutely not, no. No.
14 allow testimony on -- on what a facilities technician, as 14 HEARING OFFICER FONG: | see. And -- okay. Okay. And
15 yourself, you can go ahead and testify asto all those, and | 15 thisis-- thisis-- thiswas given to you. Which statement
16 think it will help the record for you to testify asto al 16 for -- which statement are we talking about?
17 those -- those -- those trainings that | see on red at the top. 17 MR. WEDEKING: So Robert Spivey, heisthe -- the
18 How do you know -- how do you know, let's say -- let's say 18 inventory team lead. He works under the facilities department,
19 addressing the -- the waste sorter or the cleaners -- 19 but heisalsoin charge of the -- the training for the
20 MR. WEDEKING: Yes. 20 department.
21 HEARING OFFICER FONG: -- how do you know what -- like 21 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay.
22 which -- who do you know which training has been given? And | 22 MR. WEDEKING: Or the department-specific training.
23 takeit yellow means they've gotten the training. White means 23 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay. All right. Okay. Thank
24 they haven't gotten the training. How do you know what IKEA 24 you. It seems-- it seemsto me that -- that thisisa-- you

N
a1

has -- what training IKEA has given to the cleaners?

25

already testified that you have gotten this from the IKEA's
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public server, something that was created by ateam lead. |

mean, subject to going to the specifics, | am inclined to
introduceit. | mean, obviously.

But what is your position? And again, we can -- if
there's something like this that you can provide, Mr. Employer,
that you're more comfortable with as to the authenticity,
again, then we could treat it in the same manner of the
previous two exhibits, but so far -- and if you need to check
with your Employer during lunch or after, that's fine, too.
What is your preliminary position on this Petitioner's 4?

MS. INESTA: Mr. Hearing Officer, | think it's -- clearly
lacks foundation, that even to the extent that Petitioner's
saying that he received it under the circumstances, we
certainly haven't talked to theindividual. We haven't
established how thisinformation was gathered. We haven't
established whether or not the person who put this together,

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
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HEARING OFFICER FONG: | agree.

MS. INESTA: With respect to the best evidencerule, if
there's something that we can find, we -- | will definitely
talk to the Employer and try to -- try to determine if there --
you know, what -- what we could provide. So that's something
that we would be willing to do. And | think for the same
reasons that the other documents are hearsay, | think we've got
that same situation here where this right now is hearsay.
There has been no foundation laid at thistime. And | don't
see an exception that really would apply.

HEARING OFFICER FONG: | understand your -- | understand
your waylaid -- your well-laid-out points. Thank you for --
for providing this to the Region.

Can you tell usagain, so for purposes of perhaps best
evidence rule, Mr. Petitioner, which team lead again and
when -- when exactly did you see this document on what server?

17 you know, used any information that he was putting together 17 The moreinformation you can provide and Employer counsel may
18 personally. We don't even know the circumstances under which 18 beableto--
19 thisdocument itself was created. In fact, Petitioner himself 19 MR. WEDEKING: For this document, so -- so under the
20 saidthisissomething he created for himself. Sol -- | 20 public common drive in the maintenance server, thereisa--
21 certainly don't think that we've met the standard on foundation 21 another folder called "Maintenance”, and there's another folder
22 of this document to make it something that should be admitted. 22 inthat folder called "Training". And thiswas found in that
23 With respect to the best evidence rule -- 23 training folder. And --
24 THE COURT REPORTER: Excuse me. 24 HEARING OFFICER FONG: On about what date? The last two
25 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Theresafunny echo. There'slike | 25 weeks? Thelast two weeks?
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1 aweird echo. 1 MR. WEDEKING: The 12th of this month, so two days ago.
2 MS. INESTA: Doesthat help? 2 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay. Okay. Andwereon the--
3 HEARING OFFICER FONG: That does help alot. 3 which team lead do you think again? The name of the team lead?
4 MS. INESTA: So -- 4 MR. WEDEKING: So Robert -- Robert Spivey is the team lead
5 HEARING OFFICER FONG: You know, hedid say -- | wasjust | 5 in charge of the facility'straining, and it was -- it was
6 letting you know that he did say he didn't createit. He said 6 Robert Spivey'straining and -- and in fact, | went to him and
7 hedownloaded it from the -- from the server. 7 asked him where | could find training rosters, and he told me
8 MS. INESTA: | understand, but what I'm saying is that he 8 whereto find them in the maintenance drive.
9 sat-- 9 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay. That'simportant. Okay.
10 HEARING OFFICER FONG: | hear what you're saying. 10 That'simportant. So let your -- let's see --
11 MS. INESTA: My understanding of what he said was that 11 MS. INESTA: Mr. Hearing --
12 thisteam lead created it. And we don't understand the 12 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Again, your well -- your points are
13 circumstances under -- there hasn't been afoundation. Now, 13 very strong.
14 could -- 14 MS. INESTA: Just one more point based on what he just
15 HEARING OFFICER FONG: No, | understand. | understand. | 15 said because telling somebody, oh, you want to find aroster,
16 I'mnot allowing it yet. 16 you know, there's -- there's some rostersin this drive. We
17 MS. INESTA: Petitioner -- yeah. Petitioner can say, 17 don't know if thisroster's up to date. We don't know the last
18 well, he created it for al of these reasons, but we don't have 18 timeit's been accessed. We don't know if it was completed.
19 any ideawhether even -- where this even raw data came from, 19 Wedon't know if it was a sample roster that somebody never
20 what the circumstances were with respect to this documentation, 20 redly utilized. Wedon't know if it was somebody's, just,
21 and what that person's personal knowledge with -- 21 persond roster. So thisisreally problematic, this document
22 HEARING OFFICER FONG: | understand that. Yes, that's 22 because weresdlly have no -- wereally don't have the
23 a--that'sa-- | understand that. 23 circumstances under which this roster was created, what raw
24 MS. INESTA: -- respect to how thiswas created. So | -- 24 datawas used, who put it together. And for someone to say,
25 | definitely have concerns about it. 25 oh, thisisMr. Spivey's, that doesn't even suggest -- that
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1 could mean somebody thinking, oh, I've watched Mr. Spivey and 1 MS. INESTA: -- and then we reserve the right to assert
2 thisiswhat | think hedid. So think thisrealy -- it 2 any objections at that time.
3 hasn't been authenticated, it lacks foundation, and again, we 3 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Understood. And that is-- it
4 could -- 4 is--itistheway of the-- of theland, and we'll go like
5 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Y ou make some very good points. | | 5 that.
6 noticed -- let's see with the information provided in terms of 6 All right. That said, let'sgo ahead for -- let's --
7 thebest evidencerule -- | appreciateit -- before it'sin the 7 let'sbe off the record, Madam Court Reporter.
8 record. You know, let's seeif you can provide a better 8 (Off therecord at 12:10 p.m.)
9 snapshot or at least adocument that you'd be more comfortable 9 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Thanks so much. Everyonereceived
10 with authenticating. So you can do that. Otherwise, | mean, 10 my -- my pointers, with the court reporter's assistance, on
11 youdid -- the witness -- so you're telling me the document, at 11 best practices for the Zoom audio?
12 least asto thiswitness himself, will help. And at least it 12 MR. WEDEKING: | did.
13 will -- it shows all the training and he can testify asto what 13 MS. GORDON: Yes.
14 he, as amaintenance employee, has been trained on. And 14 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Good. That -- that's -- we'll do
15 perhaps, you know, this -- obviously, because he worked with 15 our best. Appreciate everyone's paying attention on those.
16 his coworker and these employees, | don't know what testimony 16 I'll -- I'll pick up from where we |€ft off in regards to
17 welll get. But at least as to additional maintenance 17 Petitioner's exhibits. Thank you, Employer's Counsel. |
18 employees, he can testify to that document in a sense that 18 did -- | did get the Employer -- Employer confirm as well that
19 his-- for himself and from seeing his buddies next to him with 19 we got Exhibit A -- well, we got the Employer's chart on the
20 thesame. Soagain, he can tetify asto that. 20 management structure necessarily at issue.
21 | do agree that -- so beyond that, | agree that unless 21 Mr. Petitioner, do you -- what isit that you wanted to
22 it'saquestion, he maybe can specifically talk to me about 22 share with us about the -- this particular -- it is Exhibit 8.
23 each other job classification has been given thistraining, 23 You guys mentioned you had a problem with Exhibit 8. Oris
24 which | doubt he would be able to. And then beyond that, it 24 that -- am | looking at the wrong --
25 would be hearsay. Soif it'sfor the specific purpose of 25 MR. HART: | am--
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1 himself and perhaps the maintenance employees, | would allow 1 MR. WEDEKING: Mr. Hearing Officer, if they're precluded
2 it. But beyond that, | agree that unlessit has more 2 from introducing any evidence, and | allow this, will that then
3 foundation, | do see your point, Ms. Employer Counsel. 3 let them be able to do, like, anything else that's --
4 Wheat al do you have to say in addition to that, Mr. 4 HEARING OFFICER FONG: No, no, no. No, thisisonly for
5 Petitioner? 5 purpose of authentication. It's not -- it doesn't go to the
6 MR. WEDEKING: If the Employer's counsel would providethe | 6 community-of-interest issue. This only goesto establish the
7 maintenance training, 1'd be happy to take alook at it. 7 departmental management structure. So it doesn't open up the
8 HEARING OFFICER FONG: All right. So whenwe get -- when | 8 door with -- to other -- so it -- no. So to answer your answer
9 we come back at some point in time, we'll address and then I'll 9 your question, it wouldn't open up the door at all. Again,
10 make aformal ruling on the rest of the petitions -- or 10 thisisonly for purposes of supplementing the record.
11 exhibits that were discussed. 11 And you had said something about -- something -- that some
12 | don't see a problem -- actually, | don't see a problem 12 information that's lacking from this one shared, because |
13 with the picture of the maintenance uniforms. I'll have you 13 might be able to do a hybrid --
14 testify asto that, Mr. Petitioner, and | don't see a problem 14 MR. WEDEKING: So the only problem | see -- | agree with
15 introducing that. Sub -- obviously subject to Employer's 15 the structure of the management, but it doesn't show where the

16
17

objections, if any, and record -- making those on the record.
If you -- if you -- if the Employer has a nice picture of a--

PR
N o

employees in the petitioned-for unit or the additional
employees added to the petitioned unit fall within each

18 for aformal uniform they believe that -- that -- that 18 department. And aswell, like, if you looked at the ST
19 maintenance are mandated to do, we can go that route as well. 19 warehouse manager, and below him, the first -- the team
20 Otherwise, | think we have enough probably with -- with that 20 leaders, each one of those team leaders runs ateam, and each
21 picturethat I'minclined to introduce and we'll address that 21 one of those teams has employees under it. And it doesn't
22 further when we get there, okay? 22 specify which group of -- where the internal haulers work
23 MS. INESTA: Yeah. If we could just wait until we hear 23 compared to where the maintenance personnel work. Y ou know?
24 testimony about it -- 24 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Right.
25 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Yes. 25 MR. WEDEKING: That's my problem.
eScri bers, LLC

(800) 257-0885 |

reporting@scribers. net |

WWW. escri bers. net



114..117

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

Page 114
HEARING OFFICER FONG: Right. No, | seethat. No, that's

apparent from -- from the exhibit. Let's discussthisalittle
bit more to see what kind of compromise we can get. We're
looking at the -- site manager, okay. Does -- is site manager
the equivalent -- will you -- I'm thinking site manager would
be the equivalent -- like the general manager, right?
MR. WEDEKING: | would agree to that, yes.
HEARING OFFICER FONG: Right. Then going to theright, CD
warehouse manager. CD warehouse manager; | take it that that's
the equivalent of facility manager?
MR. WEDEKING: It--itisanditisn't. Soyou got SD
and CD. Like he was saying, the SD supplies the regional
stores with product.
HEARING OFFICER FONG: Um-hum.
MR. WEDEKING: The CD suppliesthe internet purchases with
product. So it'stwo separate -- they're two separate
functions, responsibilities, | guess you could say.
HEARING OFFICER FONG: Um-hum.
MR. WEDEKING: But in the same building and under the same
general manager.
HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay. Now | getit. | see, | see,
| see. Let's see, Robert Jones. Where is Robert Jones?
Anyone can jump in.
MR. GORDON: Right in the middle of the chart, the
facilities manager, to the | eft, underneath him.
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Aagain, there's some missing information. Where in this chart

do -- based on your -- you know, your knowledge of the
facility, where in this chart do the manage -- the maintenance
technicians, where would they fit in?

MR. WEDEKING: So --

HEARING OFFICER FONG: Who istheir supervisor?

MR. WEDEKING: So the facility manager has the team leads,
the maintenance team leads underneath him. So if you looked at
the facilities manager --

HEARING OFFICER FONG: Y eah, and we look -- could you
mention by name -- you can add namesto it.

MR. WEDEKING: Okay. Y eah, facilities manager, Aaron
L ucas supervises the team leaders, Mitchell Newman, Jessica
(phonetic) no longer works there, Bill -- Bill Nueva
(phonetic), and Robert Jones. Those are the three maintenance
team leaders. So the facility is actually broken up into two
departments, maintenance and sustainability, | think it's now
called. It used to be called weigh sorting, for better terms.
And if you look down, you can see that Robert Spivey was once
the weigh sorting team leader. It's now Ascind (phonetic),
which is the sustainability developer; she is now weigh
sorting. And Spivey isnow in charge of inventory and
training.

But the best -- so the maintenance techniciansfall -- so
each one of these team leaders -- Michelle Newman, Bill, and
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HEARING OFFICER FONG: Oh, | see. | see. Robert Spivey,

that'sright. That'sright. Okay.

Mr. Employer's Counsel, you were claiming you -- you

asserted that thisis an actual depiction of the management
structure at the facility at issue?

MR. GORDON: Yes.

HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay. I'minclined to probably --
hold on, let me explore this alittle bit.

But what other concerns do you see, Mr. Petitioner?

MR. WEDEKING: So the whole point of job integration or
interchangesability, if you could -- like, the first shift team
leadersin their teams, all those team leaders supervise
general warehouse coworkers and --

HEARING OFFICER FONG: Can we go -- you know, I'm probably
inclined to -- | have to explore this alittle bit further.

But let's go ahead and on my -- let's go ahead and try to see
if we can -- if you can testify asto perhaps fitting in the
chart, if we can somewhat fit in your information into this
chart. Andif it fitsin squarely and they corroborate each
other, | would like to hopefully introduce both. Let's seeif
we can do that and I'll ask you afew questions, Mr.
Petitioner.

MR. WEDEKING: Very well.

HEARING OFFICER FONG: What are -- okay, so based on this,
which -- according to, again, position, this seems similar.

25
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Robert Jones -- those -- those three are team |eaders of

maintenance for first, second, and third shift. Each one hasa
shift.

HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay.

MR. WEDEKING: And each --

HEARING OFFICER FONG: So --

MR. WEDEKING: Yesh.

HEARING OFFICER FONG: And you mentioned the three. And
who's the fourth that you excluded?

MR. WEDEKING: JessicaWong (phonetic).

HEARING OFFICER FONG: Y eah, what does she do?

MR. WEDEKING: She no longer works there.

HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay. Mitchell, Bill -- Mitchell
Newman, Bill Nueva, and Robert Jones, they supervise
maintenance?

MR. WEDEKING: Yes, for their shifts.

HEARING OFFICER FONG: For their shifts, right? Each --

MR. WEDEKING: Yes.

HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay. Which shifts again?

MR. WEDEKING: So Mitchell Newman isfirst shift.

HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay.

MR. WEDEKING: Bill Nuevaisthird shift.

HEARING OFFICER FONG: Maintenance, right?

MR. WEDEKING: Robert Jonesis second shift maintenance,
yes.
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HEARING OFFICER FONG: Thereyou go.

MS. INESTA: And Mr. Hearing Officer?

HEARING OFFICER FONG: Yes.

MS. INESTA: With respect to making sure that we get the
right full -- | mean, the right classifications and also the --

HEARING OFFICER FONG: Do you mind, Jeremy? There you go.

MS. INESTA: Thank you. With respect to making sure that
we are -- that you have the information of who -- of the right
employeesthat fall under, | guess, each of these separated
leader sections, what we would propose instead of trying to
painstakingly go through and ask questions, which, quite
frankly, we're going to, to the extent that it's outside the
facilities, object to on the grounds that we think that it's
till going to lack foundation as to what employees necessarily
fall under, what sections, particularly to the extent that
there's been any transitions or anything else, or departuresin
people recently.

So what we recommend is -- is you're right, this does not
have some of that information that was on his other chart, but
| don't think that it would be difficult to provide that, even
if it's not adding it necessarily to achart. Even, | would
think, alist of employees and who their team leader is would
be sufficient and it's something that we could provide. And to
the extent that we have a situation where we're going to offer
witnesses, that's the extent that the Hearing Officer would
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the document -- if the testimony corroborates, I'll also

introduce as Board -- I'll allow the introduction of
Petitioner's 2 into the record aswell. And | will make this
chart, the Employer provided chart, again, into the testimony
provided, Board Exhibit next in order.

So with that said, let's leave them up front now for
purposes of testimonial depiction and as best you seem fit, Mr.
Petitioner, you can testify asto which supervisors-- asit is
your right -- supervise which job classification. And we can

leave it in the short version, so be it. Otherwise -- because
| don't think we'll be able to get the documents, though. |
mean, do we have some way that we can get them?

MS. INESTA: Weretrying to -- we are trying to get
certain documents. | think we hit a-- kind of alittle bit of
alunch break time, so we have some difficulty tracking down
the individuals that we need to speak with. But we are still
working on it; and | would think that something like this, we
would be able to get relatively quickly and we'll provide it as
S00N as we can.

HEARING OFFICER FONG: All right. The way the testimony
isgoing -- it al depends -- we may just haveto go an
additional day if need beto -- in order to have an accurate
record. And --

MS. INESTA: Yeah. And with respec -- with respect to the
documents, | mean, the redlity is that we could proceed, but to
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like to proceed in questioning them, that you would also have

the opportunity to do that. But | think that evenin -- for
time's sake, it probably would be less time consuming and more
accurate.

HEARING OFFICER FONG: Let me think about this.

MR. WEDEKING: | would --

HEARING OFFICER FONG: Sometimes the Petitioner -- go
ahead with this now.

MR. WEDEKING: | wouldn't see a problem with that as long
asthat list also provided their job category, since that's
really important. And their -- that it showed their team
leader and the coworker job categories that they supervise;
that would be okay.

HEARING OFFICER FONG: | appreciatethat. | think that
makes sense. | mean, if we have documentation in that regard
that we can provide and the Petitioner will review it, | think
it will savealot of time, and the documentary evidenceis
always very helpful.

MS. INESTA: Yes.

HEARING OFFICER FONG: So subject to that, let's put this
aside. And then depending on what we get, I'll make my ruling.
Otherwise, | may just have to go through testimony to seeif we
can fit in the employee information provided in Petitioner's 2
which is not into the record yet. If we can -- if | canfill
itininto this chart by the testimony or perhaps -- again, if
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the extent that we're just proceeding with testimony, whichis

what we're doing. Maybe we deal with all the documents all
together and that would give us, of course, just alittle bit
of timeto get the information that we need on our end.

HEARING OFFICER FONG: Right, right. Okay. For thetime
being, let's go ahead. And Mr. Petitioner, let's use the
Employer -- because of authenticity purposes, let's use the
Employer's chart if you like -- it's for purposes of addressing
some -- you know, because you can look at it and tell just like
what you've been saying, which maintenance employees report to
where, which warehouse employees you believe are under. That
may fit in well into your overall testimony in any event; let's
see how the ball rolls with that. And perhaps we'll have some
other issues, and just kind of go -- go -- take it from there.
Okay? But | am -- | mean, I'll reserve my ruling for the
introduction of those exhibits, depending on how the testimony
goes. Okay?

MR. WEDEKING: Okay.

HEARING OFFICER FONG: All right. That said, why don't we
start with your testimony, Mr. Petitioner. And | understand
that -- try -- try the best to be factual, and | may, you know,
at some point in time, whether in between or thereafter or a
combination of the two, ask you some follow-up questions.

It will be helpful -- but before, actualy, | want to
backtrack alittle bit more. Were we able to get a chart for
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Petitioner's 3, the one facility map?

MR. HART: Again, Mr. Hearing Officer, that's a situation
where we ran into the lunch break. We're trying to get aclean
copy of that. | anticipate we will be able to get a clean copy
of that, but we haven't been able to get it yet.

HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay. For thetime being, you can
use -- and everyone hasiit at their disposal?

MR. WEDEKING: | can supply -- | can give some copy of it.
Then again, it'sjust coming from a source that | really -- the

other side objected to. So | don't know if it's--

HEARING OFFICER FONG: For the time being, we'll use

Exhibit 3, I'm definitely -- unless they give you something

more formal. I'll -- in base of your testimony, I'll include
exhibit -- I'll allow Petitioner's 3 to go into the record. |

won't make that ruling yet, but for purposes of your testimony,
you can refer to that exhibit because everyone hasit and it is
helpful, and it appears an IKEA document. Just testify like we
did with Mr. Nahin. Just to be -- be somewhat descriptive, use

it asamental help, be descriptive in your testimony as to

what happens in each department, what happens at each building.

And what | would like to perhaps start with isan

explanation as you understand it, documents speaking what the
facility does, you know, at some point, just the facility,
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evidence; they're going to just rely on factual evidence and

that will be so reflected. And your running objection is noted
in the record, okay?

MR. HART: Thank you.

HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay.

MR. HART: And Mr. Hearing Officer, if -- if there'sno
other preliminary matters, before we continue with Petitioner's
testimony, there is one issue that we need to raise. We had
sent you this morning an email about offers of proof for these
two witnesses; we never got a response for those. And we'd

like to know how you'd like to handle this with Mr. Wedeking at
this point?

HEARING OFFICER FONG: Yes. Petitioner, the Employer had
mentioned to me they're offering some offers of proof.
Sometimes for credibility, we use things that are normal part
of therecord. And | mentioned to them that | would confer
with the RD and get back to them. And then by this, aswell,
most likely, we would revisit that issue. At the conclusion of
either the first or second witness at this point in time, you
already mentioned to me that you want to visit the issue at the
conclusion of the entirety of your testimony. So | don't need
any of that for now. But again, we'll probably -- | do accept
that and perhaps we can allow you to make that -- some

24 break it down in terms of buildings. Who's housed in which 24 representations on the record as to what you -- as to some of
25 building and where the maintenance -- what the specific 25 the mention -- things you mentioned at that point time.
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1 maintenance work and maintenance employees who are each 1 MR. WEDEKING: Okay.
2 building. Not the -- you have your testimony and go ahead with 2 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay. But for now, | -- thank you
3 what you need to testify about. But hopefully, at some point 3 so much for that offer; we don't need it at this point in time.
4 intime, you can cover the basics that | mentioned. 4 MS. INESTA: Mr. Hearing Officer, I'm sorry, you cut out
5 MR. WEDEKING: Yes. 5 foramoment. | didn't hear what you said about the Regional
6 HEARING OFFICER FONG: And again for the partiesand for | 6 Director.
7 thereader of the record, we advise again that the Hearing 7 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Yes.
8 Officer -- the decision writer will only cover and rely on 8 MS. INESTA: You conferred about it; | just didn't hear
9 factua information; obviously, there will be some conclusive 9 quite well what you were saying. Y ou cut out.
10 statementsthat may come up upon the Petitioner's testimony, 10 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Yegh, that issueisnot -- is
11 being that he's not represented, but he's doing a decent -- a 11 appreciated, but it will be postponed until the conclusion of
12 very good job. But aside from objection every single time, you 12 the Petitioner's entire testimony. At that point in time, I'll
13 can-- at some point in time, you can make a running objection 13 allow you to -- we shall concur with the Regional Director and
14 on that respect. 14 then well make the decision. Okay?
15 MR. WEDEKING: Yeah. 15 All right. Okay, Mr. Petitioner, let's go ahead and get
16 MR. HART: Thank you, Mr. Hearing Officer. | do think at 16 started with your testimony.
17 thispoint, wed like to put a continuing objection on the 17 MR. WEDEKING: Okay. So--solama--lama
18 record with regard to any testimony that lacks foundation, is 18 maintenance technician at the facility. We are here to discuss
19 hearsay, or doesn't perform to the best evidential. We'd like 19 community of interest between us and the proposed Union.
20 to put that on the record just so that as you said, we can have 20 MR. HART: Mr. Hearing Officer, | hateto jumpin. |
21 alittle bit of acleaner transcript and we don't have to make 21 don't think that the Petitioner is under oath.
22 that every singletime. 22 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Oh, thank you so much. |
23 HEARING OFFICER FONG: | agree, | agree. | appreciate 23 appreciatethat. Yes, | appreciate that.
24 that. Again, be advised that the decision writers, again, 24 Whereupon,
25 they're not going to rely on what we al know is hearsay 25 MICHAEL PAUL WEDEKING
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having been duly sworn, was called as a witness herein and was

examined and testified, telephonically as follows:

HEARING OFFICER FONG: | appreciate it, Jeremy. Thank
you.

Goon, I'm sorry. Y ou were saying?

DIRECT TESTIMONY

THE WITNESS: So the shared community of interest between
the -- the petitioned-for unit and the proposed is what we're
here to discuss. It's my understanding that -- first of all, |
would like to look at the additional petitioned-for employees

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
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MS. INESTA: Mr. Hearing Officer, our issue with thisis,

| mean, to the extent that the numbers are what they are, and |
think that there's even something already in evidence that has
the breakdown of the employees, that we don't think thisis
either relevant or material, these percentages. That certainly
isn't -- these percentages certainly isn't something that --

under the community-of-interest standard, what we're looking at
is something other than what percentage some -- the employees
who want -- who are composed to be appropriate, how many or
what their percentageis. So we'rereally not sure what the

11 to-- the additiona proposed employees for the petitioned 11 materiaity of this document is.
12 unit. 12 MR. WEDEKING: | can explain that, Mr. Hearing Officer, if
13 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay. 13 youwant. | feel that the general warehouse coworker isthe
14 THE WITNESS: The makeup -- the makeup of it. 14 most common -- the most common employee in the warehouse. And
15 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Now you got attachment C? 15 they are the vast mgjority of it, and the stock controller,
16 THE WITNESS: Yes, attachment C. 16 recovery -- the other job classifications, athough they're
17 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay. Andthat'sinthe--sothat | 17 there--they are-- it -- | just feel that thelistis
18 you know, that'sin the record substantively speaking, okay? 18 misleading, saying that there's five job categories, and | just
19 THEWITNESS: Very well. 19 wanted to reflect that almost all of these coworkers are
20 HEARING OFFICER FONG: The same with Exhibit (sic passim) | 20 general warehouse coworkers.
21 B. 21 And when it comesto job -- I'm going to testify later
22 THE WITNESS: It saysthat there are -- there'sfive 22 that they -- general warehouse coworkers, there's abig shared
23 categories, but 90 percent of the employees on Exhibit C are 23 community of interest when it comes to job interchangeability
24 the same category. And | just want to make that on the record 24 between all these, but not the maintenance one. So that's why,
25 that -- that -- 25 you know, general warehouse coworkers, their team leads,
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1 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay. Which classification are 1 they--
2 you -- I'm thinking you're referring to which classification? 2 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay. | getit.
3 THE WITNESS: The general warehouse coworker. 3 MR. WEDEKING: -- they work between each teams, and
4 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay. And doing the math-- your | 4 they'redl interchangeable themselves.
5 mathematical computations, you would say -- 5 HEARING OFFICER FONG: | understand, | understand. You
6 THEWITNESS: Yes. 6 know, thisis simply a mathematical computation. We will have
7 HEARING OFFICER FONG: -- that's about 90 percent? 7 the exhibits here; we will have the numbers.
8 THE WITNESS: Yes. 8 MR. WEDEKING: Okay.
9 HEARING OFFICER FONG: We cannot do the math, so -- so 9 HEARING OFFICER FONG: It does give, you know, for what it
10 sorry for that. Okay? 10 is-- whether it's -- whether it is substantive material or
11 THE WITNESS: Yesh, yeash. Exhibit 1 -- my Petitioner 11 not,itiswhatitis; | think it speak for itself. I'll allow
12 Exhibit 1 kind of breaks that down. 12 it. So Petitioner's 1 isintroduced into the record, so that's
13 HEARING OFFICER FONG: All right. So look at Exhibit 1. 13 inthe record for now.
14 And | do see by looking at Exhibit 1, you've listed, like, the 14 (Petitioner Exhibit Number 1 Received into Evidence)
15 job classifications -- the additiona job classifications that 15 HEARING OFFICER FONG: | mean, at some point in time, also
16 areto beexcluded. And you -- job category, number of 16 know -- the -- we're fine with duplicating some of your
17 employees, and a percentage. | take it that the percentage, 17 testimony or adding additional testimony as the Petitioner; |
18 that you do that by way of a mathematical computation? 18 like to make sure that you testify asto what in your --
19 THE WITNESS: Yeah, acalculator. 19 what -- from your perception and your eight years working
20 HEARING OFFICER FONG: All right. You wish to introduce 20 there, what each job classification does, as best you can from
21 Petitioner's 1 into evidence? 21 what you've seen. At some point intime, I'd like to have that
22 THE WITNESS: | do. 22 inaddition to the layout of the facility, vis-a-vis
23 HEARING OFFICER FONG: And Employer? Excuseme, let me | 23 maintenance worker and maintenance employees work areas.
24 tekealook at this. What'sthe -- I'll give you -- what's 24 THE WITNESS: Sure, sure.
25 your position on that, Employer? 25 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay.
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1 THE WITNESS: | can address that now. So the cleaner -- 1 equipment that they --
2 let's start with the cleaner. The cleaner isin the same 2 THE WITNESS: That'sit. That'sall they'relicensed to
3 department as | am, the maintenance technicians, whichisin 3 drive and that's all they do. | guess how they're dressed,
4 thefacilities department. The cleaner's job, they ride around 4 they have asimilar colored shirt as maintenance, but it's not
5 the warehouse on their power equipment and they pick up -- they 5 thefireretardant, electrical, hazardous; it'sjust anice
6 pick up debris, trash. There's substations of trash cans 6 thin-- and they can have short-sleeve versions, they have
7 around the warehouse, where the product comes in wrapped in 7 long-sleeve versions. And they're allowed to wear shorts with
8 plastic, what have you. And they takeit apart and they put it 8 theirs. They have asimilar ook to the maintenance
9 inthese satellite locations. And the cleaner'sjob isto go 9 technicians, but not enough to confuse them between the two.
10 around, constantly just go around, and they gather that stuff 10 HEARING OFFICER FONG: And what -- how do you know -- have
11 up andtakeit to acertain part of the warehouse whereit's 11 you been able to talk much, or how do you know the difference
12 then shipped -- or processed and shipped for recycling. 12 inthethickness of their fire-retardant uniform?
13 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay. Canyou -- 13 THEWITNESS: Well, the service that provides us our
14 THE WITNESS: The hauler is -- 14 uniforms, they -- they -- there's a spot in the main locker
15 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Beforeyou -- I'm sorry. Before | 15 room where they hang them all up. So you can just go -- when |
16 we-- 16 pick up my uniforms from there, | can tell that -- you know,
17 THE WITNESS: Yes. 17 there-- theirsisright there, too. They do the -- their team
18 HEARING OFFICER FONG: -- move onto the next 18 leader also has adesk in the maintenance shop, so they -- they
19 classification, let mejust ask you afew questions about this 19 do have access to the maintenance shop aswell. That's --
20 one. What do they do? Do they walk around, or do they ride -- 20 that'stheir meeting place. So we work -- we don't -- we don't
21 do they ride around on something? 21 do each other's jobs, but we are close with them when it comes
22 THE WITNESS: Yeah,it'sa--it'slikea--it'slikea 22 tointeraction. Like-- like--
23 forklift, but the forks arereally, really long and they 23 HEARING OFFICER FONG: The entire group, you think you do
24 don't -- they don't sit down on it; they stand up onit. So 24 the most interaction with them?
25 they can -- they're off and on real easy without having to -- 25  THEWITNESS: Oh, absolutely.
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1 itkind of lookslike a-- 1 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay, okay. And your -- you
2 HEARING OFFICER FONG: No, | getit. | getit. That's-- 2 show -- as amaintenance locker, do you have a particular
3 that'ssufficient. Do they -- what part of their -- and then 3 locker room location?
4 you -- you have shift -- weigh sorters, cleanersin your -- 4 THE WITNESS: The maintenance technicians have lockersin
5 in-- what shift do you work? 5 the maintenance shop. For each technician -- each technician
6 THE WITNESS: | work first shift. 6 hasan issued set of tools, their set of tools, at the end of
7  HEARING OFFICER FONG: And what timeisthe first shift? 7 their shift, they put in their maintenance locker. Thereisa
8 THE WITNESS: First shiftisfrom5am. to 1:30 p.m. 8 main locker room and some maintenance technicians have a
9 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay. And what part do these 9 personal locker in that locker room that they share with --
10 cleanerswork -- the cleanersin your shift, what percentage do 10 with all IKEA employees. Even managers, | believe, have
11 you see them being on this mechanism that they ride around 11 lockersin the locker room as -- as they wish. So some -- some
12 versuswalking around? 12 maintenance technicians have a personal locker up there as
13 THE WITNESS: They're on their equipment 99 percent of the 13 wall.
14 time, amost al thetime. The only time they're off their 14 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay. So the personal -- there's,
15 equipment is when they get off to grab the debris and put it on 15 like, apersond -- there's, like, alocation for, like, all
16 their equipment. 16 the-- most of the Employer's locker room?
17 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay. Okay. And what other -- 17 THE WITNESS: Yeah, if you want to change your shoes or
18 besideriding on this-- I'm sorry, what is the mechanism? 18 get dressed before work, put your work boots on, what have you,
19 THE WITNESS: It's called a-- the piece of equipment that 19 you can do that in the main locker room.
20 they drive? 20 HEARING OFFICER FONG: And tell me about the separate --
21 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Yes. 21 you said there's a separate maintenance location for the
22 THEWITNESS: It'scaled along fork walkie (sic) 22 lockers, some of their lockers aswell? Additional lockers?
23 passim). 23 THE WITNESS: Yes, yes. So the maintenance shop -- if you
24 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Long fork walkie, okay. What kind | 24 could refer to the -- | don't know if we're allowed to --
25 of equipment do they have in addition -- any additional 25 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Yeah, you can refer to it; Exhibit
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13 1 THE WITNESS: Sointernal haulers have a similar uniform
2 THE WITNESS: Sointhe middle of the exhibit here, there 2 style asthe cleaners, just with different colors.
3 isashaded area, ahighlighted area. 3 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay, okay.
4 HEARING OFFICER FONG: What building? 4 THE WITNESS: And they can wear shorts -- the internal
5 THE WITNESS: It'sin between 1 and 4; 1 isthe one with 5 haulers can wear shorts; they have the short-sleeve and long-
6 all the dots, the black dots going Ieft to right. 6 sleeveversion. Maintenance only has along-sleeve version.
7 HEARING OFFICER FONG: And oneisunder the A, and number | 7 And theinternal hauler'sis also non -- there's no safety
8 4isunder I? 8 featuresin it; it's not electrical hazard or fire retardant.
9 THE WITNESS: Yes. So the -- the spot probably right 9 They only were issued shirts, just like the cleaners; the
10 under theK and E in IKEA, if you went straight down -- 10 cleanerswere aso only issued shirts.
11 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Um-hum. 11 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay. Okay. If you want to, we
12 THEWITNESS: -- that is the maintenance shop slash -- 12 can go onto recovery coworkers --
13 it'saso got the maintenance office, the locker rooms, it's 13 THE WITNESS: Recovery coworkers.
14 where the power equipment technician has his -- hiscart. So 14 HEARING OFFICER FONG: -- what they do.
15 that'sbasicaly the -- the maintenance hub. The 15 THE WITNESS: The recovery coworker -- alot of product
16 maintenance -- 16 gets damaged in the warehouse, just from being handled. And
17 HEARING OFFICER FONG: And who has access to the 17 recovery coworkers, they go through that damaged product, and
18 maintenance hub again? 18 if they can be salvaged, they salvageit. And they have a box
19 THE WITNESS: Maintenance personnel, cleaners, anybody in 19 machine that makes new boxes if the boxes are damaged. They
20 facilities. 20 just go through and decide what's damaged to the point of
21 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay. And do warehouseworkers | 21 needing to be recycled and what can go back to the store, or go
22 have accessto this? To the maintenance -- 22 back into the rack to be put into the store.
23 THEWITNESS: It'sre-- it'srestricted. They could -- 23 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay, okay.
24 they could walk up thereif they wanted to, but they're not 24 THE WITNESS: Stock controller keeps track of the product
25 supposed to. It'srestricted for maintenance personnel only. 25 inthewarehouse. They -- they -- they monitor it. The
Page 135 Page 137
1 HEARING OFFICER FONG: How about for interna hauler; are 1 general warehouse coworker, on his piece of equipment, has --
2 they allowed -- do they have any business -- work business to 2 likethed-log from Nahin's, it's all touchscreen and they have
3 get to do in the maintenance hub? 3 ascan gun aswell. So when -- the touchscreen will tell them
4 THE WITNESS: No other -- no other -- no other job 4 what location to go to, and there's a system. And they go to
5 category does. 5 that location and each product has a barcode on it, the label;
6 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Besides preventive maintenanceand | 6 and they take their scan gun and they scan the product, each
7 maintenance? 7 location on therack has abarcode. And the whole warehouseis
8 THEWITNESS: Yes. 8 comprised of barcodes and the scan gun and the d-log all keeps
9 HEARING OFFICER FONG: And then you said cleaners as 9 track of that. Soit's pretty -- pretty -- it's pretty easy to
10 well -- you said cleaners have access to the maintenance hub? 10 just -- it tellsyou where to go and you pick up the pallet of
11 THE WITNESS: Yes, the cleaners -- cleaners have their -- 11 productsin that spot and you take it to a dock or -- or --
12 their team lead officeisin there, as well as the maintenance 12 it'sall ran by barcodes and a scan gun. Every piece of
13 team lead's office. 13 equipment has a scan gun on it that the general warehouse
14 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay. | see, | see. Very helpful. 14 coworkersrun. And the stock controllers keep track of that
15 All right. Well, goon. Go on. 15 because sometimes they will move it without scanning it, things
16 THE WITNESS: Theinternal hauler, which is more commonly 16 get lost, so basically, they just keep track of the product in
17 referred to ajockey truck driver, and ajockey truck driver 17 thewarehouse.
18 drivesthejockey truck. And al they do isthey just maneuver 18 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay, okay. Can you elaborate on
19 containers around the yard. They back up trailersto the 19 thedistribution center? Like, what type of facility it isand
20 warehouse, the dock doors, they pull them away. They just sit 20 perhaps explain to me, you know, how were the products --
21 there and they just drive and backup trailers all day. 21 perhaps by way of the product -- who checks the products as
22 They have auniform similar to the weigh sorters, but the 22 best asthey can, when the product getsthere. Y ou know, who
23 colorsarereversed. They're like -- where one would be blue, 23 picksit up, where does it go, how doesit get distributed to
24 the other oneisyellow. So they have -- 24 the-- to different facilities. And then that will giveusa
25 HEARING OFFICER FONG: What's blue and what's yellow? 25 nice structure for seeing with more detail asto job
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description.

THE WITNESS: Sure. Sothewarehouseis 1.6 million

square feet. The product, it'sthe foreign -- it's called the
foreign trade zone, which means the product comes from overseas
to the port, it bypasses customs and comes straight to our
warehouse. And in return, we have -- it has the same security
interest that they would have at the ports. So basically, IKEA

and the government have made adeal that if we keep the

security like we would have at customs at the port, that the
containers don't have to stop at customs, they can come

straight from the ship to our warehouse.

So the product could come from anywhere in the world, from
the ship. That the ship's unloaded in Long Beach, and the
container with the product comes from the port to our
warehouse.

HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay. In 18-wheelers?

THE WITNESS: Yes.

HEARING OFFICER FONG: Those are big -- those are -- you
know, straight to the other side, those are big trucks.

THE WITNESS: Yeah.

HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay. So the 18-wheeler getsinto
the facility; what's the next step? | mean, if you can limit
it -- if you can direct your discussion in terms of, like, the
job classifications at issue. | mean, there's nothing -- if
there's people who unload them and they're outside, so noted,
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operation side. Operation -- inbound and outbound.

HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay.

THE WITNESS: Buildings2 and 5 have silos. So -- so the
product either comesin, they put it on the pallet and it
either goes into the rack, which a general warehouse coworker
does with the -- their piece of equipment, or it goes onto the
conveyer systems which is a system ran by a bunch of different
components. But basicaly, it takes the product on the pallet,
drives the product all the way to the front of the building,
liftsit up, and gets put into the building -- the silos.

HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay.

THE WITNESS: And those -- those buildings hold the silos,
and the silos are forklifts that are on tracks that a operator
sitsin and he drivesit. Andit'skind of like -- it'sreally
kind of hard to explain. But basically, it's just another way
to efficiently store the product.

HEARING OFFICER FONG: All right, all right.

THE WITNESS: It's -- the buildings are higher; they hold
alot more -- alot more product than the other buildings due
to --

HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay.

THE WITNESS: -- the height of them. And so they put away
pallets and take pallets out of their racks and silos.

HEARING OFFICER FONG: Right. You aready testified to
the recovery worker employees -- one of their job functionsis
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1 okay? 1 to seewhat the -- through this process and product gets
2  THEWITNESS: Okay. So the product comesin and the 2 damaged, they'll go ahead and -- that's only because of --
3 outside contractor with the truck will drop it off somewhere. 3 provide stock control in terms of this procedure. Go on. Go
4 Not up against the building, but anywhere in the yard, 4 on with the explanation of what -- of how the product
5 there's-- there's like 600 parking spots for trailersin the 5 eventually gets distributed to the facilities.
6 yard, something like that. And then the jockey trucks will get 6 THE WITNESS: So then it gets put in the rack, and --
7 a-- they also have ad-log that tells them where to put things 7 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Relateit to the job
8 andthingslikethat. And they will get ordersto grab this 8 classifications as best you can.
9 trailer from thislocation and put it at this dock door. And 9 THE WITNESS: Okay, okay. Thesilosareran by genera
10 all the-- 10 warehouse coworkers aswell.
11 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Thejockey truck'sinternally 11 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay.
12 based/internal hauler, right? 12 THE WITNESS: The inbounds -- the employees that take it
13  THEWITNESS: Yes. Once the container gets parked at the 13 off -- out of the containers are general warehouse coworkers as
14 door, the southside of the whole warehous, it's what called 14 well.
15 inbound; that meansit's probably coming from the ship into the 15 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay.
16 warehouse. The northside is outbound, which is probably 16 THE WITNESS: Then once the store wants some product,
17 leaving the warehouse and going to the retail stores. 17 they -- they will let us know and then there's a system that |
18  HEARING OFFICER FONG: Canyou break it downintermsof | 18 can't testify to that | don't know how that works. But the
19 buildings? Is 1, 2, 3 southside, buildings 3, 4, 5 northside? 19 team leadsin operation and the inbound and outbound, they
20 THEWITNESS: Sure, sure. So buildings 1 through 5 are 20 will -- they will tell the general warehouse workers, viathe
21 SD, which suppliesthe retail stores. And building 6is CDC 21 d-logs and stuff, what products need to come out of the rack
22 for theinternet commerce. 22 and put to the dock door --
23 HEARING OFFICER FONG: All right, very helpful. 23 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay.
24  THEWITNESS: Theinbound -- so the trailers are unloaded 24  THEWITNESS: -- to go outbound.
25 by forklifts and equipment ran by general coworkers; that's the 25 HEARING OFFICER FONG: | see.
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1 THE WITNESS: And that'swherewereat. And then they're 1 team leader has both the departments. And those are kind of
2 loaded into regular semi-trailers. So they comeinon 2 self-explanatory with -- with, you know --
3 containers like you would see on a ship, that they just put on 3 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Because stock and recovery job
4 atruck chassis, the chassis, the trailer body. But they leave 4 classification are under which job -- branch on the chart?
5 thewarehouse in semi-trailers. They don't -- they don't leave 5 THE WITNESS: Operational support manager, and they --
6 thewarehouse in the same containers that they camein. 6 they have one team |lead between the two. Even though it'stwo
7 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Do any job -- any of the supposed | 7 departments, most departments-- al of them | can think of
8 job classification get involved into putting those things out 8 have oneteam lead per department except for stock.
9 tothe -- for distribution? 9 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay. And then the recovery
10 THE WITNESS: All general warehouse coworkers. 10 coworker would be what chart?
11 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Oh, okay, general -- okay. 11 THE WITNESS: Underneath operational support with the
12 THE WITNESS: All right. And then the product leaves the 12 stock control and recovery team lead. If you look at the
13 warehouse and goes anywhere from Canada to Denver, or whatever | 13 bottom -- bottom |eft-hand square of the -- the Exhibit 3.
14 retal storeisnearby. Sometimes we send them to other 14 HEARING OFFICER FONG: | see stock control recovery lead.
15 distribution centers. 15 Okay, | appreciatethat. It's self-explanatory, but obviously,
16 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay. All right. That's helpful. 16 when we have abig huge transcript, this system is very
17 Now -- okay, | think that's a good background. Now -- okay, go 17 helpful.
18 on. Gooninany -- what else does the employer -- go on. 18 And what about the internal hauler; where would you
19 THE WITNESS: So the people that operate the cranes, that 19 classify them under this chart, on Board Exhibit 3?
20 also operate the product coming in and out of the warehouse, 20 THE WITNESS: So actually, they are ran by the safety and
21 thoseareall the actual functions are general warehouse 21 security department. So their team lead is going to be the
22 coworkers. Recovery, stock control, internal haulers, those 22 safety and security team leader. And | believe that safety and
23 areadll operations support departments. 23 security runs those because of the risk of reliability that
24 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay. Andyou said that's-- when | 24 comes with running atruck like that. Although they work very
25 you say operational support, what do you mean? What does -- 25 closely with operational support, they are actually underneath
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1 that's the maintenance -- 1 the supervision of safety and security.
2 THE WITNESS: Yeah. The Employer's -- the one they just 2 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay. And refresh my recollection
3 provided for us during the break, it has -- you can see that -- 3 again. You said that general warehouse coworkers are under
4 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Y ou know, I'll refer to that as 4 which branch?
5 tentative Board Exhibit 3, okay? 5 THE WITNESS: So when it comes down to the -- the bottom
6 THE WITNESS: Okay. Just look at Board Exhibit -- 6 of the supervisory scale, general warehouse coworkers run all
7 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Board Exhibit 3, it'sgoingtobe, | 7 operations and handling material is also made up of general
8 tentatively speaking, is the Employer-provided chart. 8 warehouse coworkers. And I'd like to put on the record that --
9 THE WITNESS: Okay, thank you. If youlook at -- if you 9 that alot, not all, but alot of stock controllers and
10 look at that, you can see that there is a manager for 10 recovery coworkers started out as general warehouse coworkers.
11 operate -- or SD warehouse manager, it's the operations -- what 11 HEARING OFFICER FONG: How do you know that?
12 everybody refersto as operations. And then the support 12 THE WITNESS: Well, | am friendswith alot of those
13 manager -- 13 people outside of work; and watching them be in one department
14 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay. | seethat there, | see. 14 and getting moved to another department. IKEA doesn't like to
15 And then SD again, to remind me? SD stands for? 15 keep you -- the general -- the general warehouse coworkersin
16 THE WITNESS: Y ou know, just like Nahin -- something 16 one spot too long, so there's constant interchange. Like, |
17 distribution, I'm sure. 17 wouldn't say promotions, but transfers between departments just
18 HEARING OFFICER FONG: That'sfine. That'sfine. We 18 to keep everybody and to keep their skills --
19 don't understand operational. Okay, go on. 19 HEARING OFFICER FONG: And again, for the record, thisis
20 THE WITNESS: And so those departments support operations. | 20 a perfect example where he says IKEA doesn't like to do this
21 Handling materials, they're in charge of, like, the pallets. 21 andthat. Obviously, the decision writer, you know, he going
22 Flow isin charge or keeping track of the logistics of the 22 to get that -- so that lacks foundation. So just for an
23 trailers and the containersin the warehouse. 23 example. We'll move on, but he's doing extremely well, but
24 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay, okay. 24 there's some things -- but there's some things that we don't

N
6]

THE WITNESS: The stock control recovery team |eader, that

25

know whether the decision writer will allow it to be.
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1 And you were saying -- I'm sorry. Y ou were saying that 1 classification, except auditor, which | can't refer to, and

2 because -- the factual testimony, which you did testify to as 2 maintenance technicians.

3 wall, isthat you know based on your experience -- I'm sorry, 3 HEARING OFFICER FONG: How so? What do temps wear?

4 who get promoted to go ahead and do that? 4 THE WITNESS: Temps wear a high-visibility green, lime

5  THEWITNESS: So recovery coworkers, stock controllers, 5 greenvest. Compared to IKEAs general -- to IKEAs vests, which

6 not al of them but alot of them were once general warehouse 6 areorange; unless you're amanager, which is ablack vest.

7 coworkers. 7 HEARING OFFICER FONG: And you're saying you've seen temps
8 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay. 8 wearing a-- you've seen temps doing internal hauler work; you

9 THE WITNESS: | can tell you -- 9 personally have seen them?

10 HEARING OFFICER FONG: What do you consider theentry | 10 ~ THEWITNESS: Yes, yes.

11 position -- the low level -- the low-level entry position to 11 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Y ou've seen temps doing recovery
12 be, based on your experience at work? 12 work -- coworker work. You have seen them?

13 THE WITNESS: For IKEA, it's the general warehouse 13  THEWITNESS: Yes. Yes.

14 coworker. 14 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Same question for stock controller?
15 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay. All right. 15  THEWITNESS: Yes.

16 THE WITNESS: But alot -- I'd say alot of our ranks are 16 HEARING OFFICER FONG: And as you know, I'm going to back
17 filled by employees that were once temporary warehouse 17 thisall up. Likel said, it'sreally going to be additional

18 coworkers from our temp agency. 18 testimony where you're going to testify about all your

19 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay, okay. Andisit your 19 whereabouts, what you do specifically, all the types of the

20 testimony -- was your testimony again, with which positionscan | 20 facilities. So | will back up in terms of filling the record

21 befilled through temps and which cannot of the unit positions 21 that you've had and you've been able to have been at every

22 hereatissue? Thetopics. 22 position. | know you'rein the facility department, that's why

23 THE WITNESS: To address the auditor job classification. 23 | take you've seen what I'm asking you, correct?

24 | have no ideawhat the auditor -- |'ve never heard of it or 24 THEWITNESS: Correct.

25 anything else. I'm pretty sureit exists, but it'sreally 25  HEARING OFFICER FONG: I'm about done on there with facts
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1 obscure, and | don't know. | couldn't tell you what department 1 asthe-- asthe watchdog on the record, | needed to do that.

2 that's under, who that team leader is, or any of the sort. 2 You've seen in your whereabouts, personally, warehouse workers
3 HEARING OFFICER FONG: You've never seen an auditor? 3 wearing those green temp vests?

4 Never talked to an auditor? 4 THE WITNESS: Yes, yes. So thelayout of the recovery --

5 THE WITNESS: No. No, I have no idea. 5 where the recovery coworkerswork isin a-- the back of

6 HEARING OFFICER FONG: All right. Itiswhatitis; is 6 building 5. There'sasection in the warehouse where recovery

7 that your testimony? 7 and stock control, the two job classifications that have the

8  THEWITNESS: Yes. Sol cannot testify to that at all. 8 sameteam lead. There'sa-- and they even have their own

9 HEARING OFFICER FONG: All right. 9 office, kind of like maintenance. Although the team leader

10 THE WITNESS: Now, what was your question, Mr. Hearing 10 doesn't have his desk there like maintenance had, but they have
11 Officer? 11 aseparate headquartersin the back of building 5 for the

12 HEARING OFFICER FONG: You answered it in terms of the 12 recovery -- for the stock control and recovery coworkers, yes.

13 promotional opportunities for warehouse -- general warehouse 13 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Areyou saying -- so correct me if
14 into what you testified to. 14 I'mwrong; you're saying that the recovery and stock control

15 THE WITNESS: Except for theinternal hauler, you have to 15 unit classifications are exclusive -- | mean, their main job

16 be-- those guysarereadly skilled. They back trailers -- 16 hubisintheback of 5 -- building 5? Or just -- if you

17 semi-trailersup all day. Although there are tempsthat hold 17 didn't say that, please explain it to me.

18 that position, even currently; that is still a pretty highly 18 THE WITNESS: The office -- so they have -- thereisan

19 skilled job, that it's-- | can't think of any general 19 officethere for them to do their computer work. But their
20 warehouse coworker that's ever gone to driving atruck from -- 20 main -- when their -- most of their eight-hour shiftsis
21 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay. Andyouweregoingto--I'm | 21 somewherein the warehouse. But that is where they come to do
22 sorry. You were going to proceed in telling for the record 22 certain things.
23 which -- what temps wear and how -- and whether you've seen 23 HEARING OFFICER FONG: | see, | see. So theoffice--
24 tempsin the different job classifications? 24 their officeislocated in the back of 5 -- building 5.
25 THE WITNESS: | have seen -- | have seen in every job 25 THE WITNESS: Yes, yes.
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1 HEARING OFFICER FONG: But in terms of their work, where 1 second have four technicians underneath them. Third shift has
2 they normally work out of, you're saying that recovery and 2 afew more, but basically, there's four maintenance techs for
3 stock contral, it can be at any of the five -- any of the six 3 each team lead in the maintenance departments. And a
4 building facilities? 4 maintenance tech -- so there's --
5 THE WITNESS: Stock control and recovery has -- they will 5 HEARING OFFICER FONG: And what shift -- tell -- of --
6 stay in the back of building 5. There's abig location there 6 go -- go over there while you're -- while we're on the topic of
7 wherethey just sort through all the damaged product; they'll 7 shifts, can you tell me the three shifts for -- applicable for
8 openit up, they'll look at it, and if it's trash, they throw 8 maintenance employees and then perhaps compare it to the shifts
9 it away for recycling. Andif it'snot, then they -- they 9 of the other employees?
10 patchit up and it'll go back into the warehouse. 10 THE WITNESS: Sure. So first shift's maintenance starts
11 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay. 11 at1or5to1:30. Second shift maintenance startsat 1 to
12 THEWITNESS: Sowhen -- al that packaging is donein the 12 9:30. Third shift startsat 9 to 5:30. So there's a half-hour
13 back of 5, yes. 13 overlap between the three shiftsin maintenance. Soin your
14  HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay. Let's-- | mean, you know 14 shift, you're going to see -- you're going to see the other two
15 what you need to do. Y ou already have your setup already. But 15 shiftseither at the beginning or at the end. Thereare --
16 at some point in time, perhaps walk us through the main -- 16 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Arethere four-ten -- you know,
17 starting with the maintenance employees and yourself, what you 17 what's afour-ten schedule?
18 do at each of thefive -- I'm sorry, at each of the six 18 THE WITNESS: So four-ten's operations -- general
19 buildings. And what you do outside as well, explaining the 19 warehouse coworkers, they have an option to work four ten-hour
20 hazmat and the maintenance sheds outside. At some pointin 20 daysif they'd like to and there are some that chose to do
21 time, perhaps -- we'll go over that and then from then on, 21 that. | can seethat there are none that -- or at least
22 well extrapolate as to what everybody €l se did, the additional 22 working four tens but there are. | don't see four-tens on the
23 that maintenance do. 23 shift but that's -- maybe that's not a shift that's just a
24 THE WITNESS: Sure. 24 schedule. The four-tens start from -- they work Friday through
25 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Also, and remind me to cover power | 25 Mon --
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1 equipment maintenance people -- maintenance person because we 1 HEARING OFFICER FONG: No, there's -- we have no -- we
2 haven't had any testimony on that. 2 understand what afour-ten shift is. But you're saying --
3 THE WITNESS: Sure, sure. Let'sdo that now. So the 3 you're saying that which job classifications qualify for four-
4 power equipment technician, he is the one that does the most 4 tens--
5 turning of awrench on the power equipment. He -- he's got -- 5 THE WITNESS: The general warehouse crew workers and
6 he'sgot an areawithin our own maintenance shop area, in the 6 operations.
7 middle of building 2, that he -- he just pretty much will stay 7 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay. What about -- okay. Who --
8 thereall shift, and he just works on forklifts and reaches, 8 what about which job classification doesn't qualify for four-
9 and all the power -- general power equipment. That'swhat he 9 ten schedule?
10 does. Now -- 10 THE WITNESS: Handling materials. Oh, job
1 HEARING OFFICER FONG: So he'slimited to -- he's limited 11 classifications. Recovery coworkers -- recovery coworkers,
12 to mostly what area again? 12 stock controller, internal hauler, cleaner, and | don't know
13 THE WITNESS: Inside of the maintenance shop, in the 13 about the auditor.
14 middle of the -- where the maintenance -- 14 HEARING OFFICER FONG: What about the maintenance? Do
15 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Oh, in the middle between buildings | 15 they qualify for four-tens?
16 land2. 16 THE WITNESS: No. No, they don't.
17 THE WITNESS: Yeah. 17 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay. All right. | see.
18 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Or between 1 and 4. 18 THE WITNESS: So a maintenance technician can have very
19 THE WITNESS: Yesh, underneath the E, yes. 19 many duties. One of themis-- so we have arotation. There's
20 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay, okay. 20 four of us per shift. You might -- you work one week on the
21  THEWITNESS: And he'sjust basically amechanic that 21 floor. And what the guy on the floor does is he drives around
22 turnswrenches on the power -- 22 in his carts and the conveyor systems have a system of warning
23 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay, al right. 23 when something's broken down. And when the guy on the floor
24 THE WITNESS: Now, amaintenance technician. So each team 24 getsthat warn -- the technician on the floor duties gets that
25 lead -- each team lead has a shift and they have -- first and 25 warning, he will go and address that breakdown of that function
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1 for the conveyor systemsthat go into the silo in buildings 1 would say, and they just drive --

2 1--orbuildings2 and 5. 2 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay.

3 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay. 3 THE WITNESS: -- this crane up and down the racks and then

4 THE WITNESS: Healso will handle any calls that come over 4 up and down, back and forward. And they just -- which they're

5 theradio. Weall carry radios to communicate with each other 5 standing on just like a -- other co -- warehou -- the general

6 and operations. 6 warehouse coworkers. They just -- they -- it'sjust another

7 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Do you know whether the general 7 system of putting the product in and out of the rack.

8 warehouse have radios? 8 HEARING OFFICER FONG: All right. All right. That's

9  THEWITNESS: They do not. Their team leads have -- their 9 fine. Thank you. Going back to -- going back to what the

10 team leadsdon't even haveradios. There'saradio at the hub 10 maintenance coworker does. You --

11 whichislike their headquartersin the front of building 1 for 11 THEWITNESS: So --

12 operations. There'saradio there. 12 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Yeah.

13 HEARING OFFICER FONG: And they call your name; you 13 THE WITNESS: So you'll do onerotation. Each shift does

14 communicate over with the radio? Who do you mainly communicate | 14 it alittle bit different, but you'll be on the floor. And the

15 with -- 15 floor guy will also -- he'll handle any calls. He also handles

16 THE WITNESS: Other -- other maintenance. Other -- 16 thefaults of the conveyors.

17 HEARING OFFICER FONG: -- on the -- other maintenance? 17 The other maintenance technician, in his rotation, will

18 THE WITNESS: Yes, yes. Stock -- I'm sorry. Cleaners 18 either -- so then one technician can do PMs, which isthe

19 asocarry radios. 19 preventative maintenance, whichisalist. You can get alist

20 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay. What about internal hauler? | 20 of -- man, we've got PMs for everything. Like the bathrooms.

21 Do they carry radios? 21 There'sarestroom PM and what you do is you go through and you

22 THEWITNESS: Thereisaradioin their truck, yes. 22 got achecklist and you take your toolbag and you'll go through

23 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Similar to them, can you 23 the checklist and go through whatever PM that that PM isfor,

24 communicate with anybody -- do they have -- do they have a 24 and if you see something broke, you fix it, and if you can't,

25 maintenance -- | mean, aradio similar to the same radio that 25 youjust make anote of it, but the purpose is to go through
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1 you have? 1 and make sure that you prevent a breakdown from happening.

2 THE WITNESS: Yes, yes. There are four different channels 2 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Do you havealog for this? |

3 that the FCC has given IKEA to -- to have and maintenanceis on 3 heard --

4 one of those channels. The -- the other two, like safety and 4 THE WITNESS: Yes.

5 security, ison achannel. 5 HEARING OFFICER FONG: -- in testimony.

6 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay. Sothejob classifications | 6 THE WITNESS: Yes. There's some software on -- in the

7 that you've got to have this -- have the same maintenance -- 7 maintenance shop that every -- every maintenance technician

8 radios are the maintenance employees, interna hauler, cleaner, 8 havealogin for and it keeps -- you put your timein the

9 youtestified to so far. Anybody else? 9 workorder. Yes, yes. Soit'sall donethrough CAFM.

10 THE WITNESS: The general warehouse coworkersthat arein | 10 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Do you know, do they just have a

11 thesilos, the guys, the coworkers, the employees that run the 11 signature log that they have to turn in?

12 silos, they're -- they radio in these -- the cab of the silo. 12 THE WITNESS: They do not.

13 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay. So okay, but. Okay. So | 13 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay. They do not. Okay.

14 whoever isassigned to the silos, they'll have aradio there 14 MS. INESTA: Mr. Hearing Officer -- and I'm -- and my

15 for what purposes? 15 apologies for interrupting -- but | just have to get on the

16 THE WITNESS: Mainly to -- to call maintenanceif their -- 16 record we have to put a special objection to thistestimony. |

17 their silo breaks down, a product gets tipped or falls out, or 17 understand that as a member of the maintenance department, he

18 the compactor isjammed. 18 probably has some firsthand knowledge and some information with

19 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay. 19 respect to the work that's done in the maintenance department.

20 THE WITNESS: It can -- 20 Butthelevel of detail that he's providing and the level of

21 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Oh, okay. Tell mewhat asilo-- | 21 information which, quite frankly, | mean, | have to just state

22 whatisasilo, again? Remind me. 22 for therecord is even inconsistent with, you know, through our

23 THE WITNESS: Soasiloisadifferent -- it'slikea 23 investigation, what we've learned. Thisisan awvkward

24 forklift on atrack that a coworker will operate and they 24 situation in terms of evidence. But since the Board is charged

25 got -- they got controls like a-- like afighter pilot, | 25 with trying to find what an appropriate unit is, it also needs
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1 tobeableto get information that is accurate and from people 1 isamaintenance only, strictly us. So you can spend a shift

2 with firsthand knowledge. 2 onthere, working it.

3 So | just want to state for the record. | know that we 3 And then you could be also be on projects, which is--

4 have an ongoing objection that, in particular, this testimony 4 CAFM, the system that does our PMs, aso has ways that if

5 that's been discussed with respect to each of these positions, 5 somebody wanted a guard put up or -- or something in the

6 we're going to put an objection on that it lacks foundation. 6 building because building maintenance -- the building alone,

7 HEARING OFFICER FONG: That'sfine. Sonoted. Sonoted. | 7 without any operations, is still pretty -- is till very high

8 And | understand. He'sobviously -- he's -- he'stestifying as 8 maintenance.

9 to what maintenance employee does -- do, so obviously, he'sa 9 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay.

10 maintenance employee. Y our objection may be more -- better 10 THE WITNESS: The building alone hasissues and -- like,

11 placed for -- were -- were he to be testifying about what's -- 11 wegot 30 -- 30 toiletsin the facility. Sothere'salot that

12 thejob responsibilities of what other coworkersdo. But so 12 happensthat -- that that third maintenance -- the guy on

13 noted. So noted for the record. 13 projectsdoes. And we have arotate so nobody gets burnt out

14 MS. INESTA: And what I'm talking about really is when 14 between being on the floor al the time or being at the ASRS.

15 he's describing what's being -- what's being done by the 15 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay. Tak to mealittle more

16 counterpart. Because he's made alot of statements related to 16 about the -- your work outside of the facility, the testimony

17 who carries radios, to what certain warehouse workers do, how 17 about --

18 they perform their job. And -- 18 THE WITNESS: Sure. A PM can take you outside. The one

19 HEARING OFFICER FONG: | getit. No, | understand. He's | 19 that comesto mind s, like, the fence PM, so you might have to

20 not really testifying -- 20 walk the whole fence line.

21 MS. INESTA: Just want to be clear for the record. 21 HEARING OFFICER FONG: What'saPM again?

22 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Yes, for therecord. That'sright. | 22 THE WITNESS: Preventative maintenance. It's-- it's

23 Wewant to reach aconclusion, so. Soitiswhat itis. But 23 going through something and making sure there's not going to be

24 your objection is noted for the record in case of -- at the 24 abreakdown any time soon. So you're going to go through it

25 timethat you want to, if need be, do -- take the DD -- DD&E up 25 and make sure that it's working good; you clean it. If you see
Page 159 Page 161

1 for Board review. So noted. 1 something that looks likeit's going to break, you fix it

2 Again, | do seethistestimony as factually -- what he 2 beforeit does, basically.

3 thinks about factually relevant or at a specific time, | want 3 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay. Okay. Thisiswork that you

4 to ask him what he does as a maintenance employee, so | think 4 do outside?

5 that that's appropriate for the time being. But I'm sorry, the 5 THE WITNESS: Some PMsare outside. Some projects will

6 objection isnoted. 6 takeyou outside. Sometimes being on the floor will take you

7 And so Petitioner, you can carry on on the maintenance 7 outside. Maintenance could be -- maintenance could be anywhere

8 employee duties -- 8 at any time. Our jobs could put us on the roof for eight hours

9 THE WITNESS: So -- 9 orit could, you know -- yeah, soit'sredly -- it'sreally

10 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Go on, please. 10 not thesame. It'sreally hard to pick where we --

11 THE WITNESS: Okay. So you're either on the floor or 11 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay. Tak to me about restricted

12 you're doing PMs. 12 areas. Therewas some prior testimony about maintenance-only

13 Y ou can also be on the ASRS system which, isthe 13 accessareas--

14 automatic -- automated storage and retrieval system, and that's 14 THE WITNESS: Sure.

15 theoneinbuilding 6. That isa--it'sahighly -- it's-- 15 HEARING OFFICER FONG: -- for log activity.

16 it'spretty -- it's pretty impressive, really, but it's just 16 THEWITNESS: Sure. So the building, itself, has -- it

17 thishigh-tech way of -- another way of sorting the products. 17 consumes avery vast amount of electricity. So we have solar

18 The products, put in thistote. Our job asthe ASR assistant 18 panelsand stuff. So we -- the roof is maintenance only. We

19 isto -- isto monitor the system for -- for faults and 19 got keysto the roof. We have keys to the electrical panel,

20 breakdowns, anything that would slow the production of -- of 20 which are maintenance-only areas. A lot of those. The pump --

21 thesystem. And we aso perform preventative maintenance on 21 we got aelaborate fire system for -- you know, fire

22 all the components of the ASR system. 22 suppression system. Maintenance has keys to those |locations.

23 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay. And that'sin building 6? | 23 The hazardous material. We get training on the hazardous

24 THE WITNESS: Yes. And building 6, again, isthe CDC for | 24 materials from bloodborne pathogens to biohazards to --

25 theinternet purchases that -- that come from online. And that 25 anything that might hurt the environment if it's not disposed
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1 of properly take you outside the warehouse. 1 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Do you ever see that from any other
2 We have -- we have just anything outside the warehouse. 2 job classification at issue here?
3 Thereare-- there'slights. There's electrical out there that 3 THE WITNESS: No. No.
4 we-- wemaintain. 4 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay. All right. You were --
5 The jockey trucks are out there. We can get called out 5 there was some previous testimony about training, skills, about
6 theretowork onthem or try to fix them. 6 electrical, plumbing, things like that. Talk to me about that
7 There are -- sometimes some plumbing issues might take you 7 inreference to the maintenance employees.
8 outsideif you're backtracking it out there. To the solar 8 THE WITNESS: So the maintenance training we get is mostly
9 pands, likel said. 9 sofety training. We have very little technical training on the
10 If it'sraining sometimes. It's got alot of skylights on 10 skillsthat -- or the thingswe do. Thetraining we do get is
11 thewarehouse. Rain -- sometimesthey lesk. You got to get up 11 for safety and we have alot of safety training that's --
12 and go shut the -- shut the skylight so the water doesn't get 12 that's special to maintenance -- or maintenance has alot of
13 in. 13 training that's for hand tools, hazardous materials, and you
14 All those are something that is strictly for maintenance. 14 know, the --
15 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Y ou talked about having -- there | 15 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Who provides this training and
16 wastestimony earlier about 20 keys. Isthe -- what isit 16 where?
17 about the 20 keys that -- 17 THE WITNESS: Thetraining is provided by the safety
18 THE WITNESS: So -- 18 department, or our team lead will sometimes. Or there'salso a
19 HEARING OFFICER FONG: -- that's specia to the 19 program that the maintenance safety team lead guy, Robert
20 maintenance employees? 20 Spivey, he'sin charge. There's also some safety training
21 THE WITNESS: It'sjust another example of -- of how we 21 that's done over the computer.
22 havejob duties that are vastly different than the rest of the 22 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay. And thenwe're-- normally,
23 proposed -- or the proposed unit. Like | said, maintenance 23 we're -- | think there was testimony where -- yeah, there was a
24 could bring usin somebody's office. We have keysto -- to all 24 little bit of testimony on this, but elaborate on where hereis
25 theé€lectrical panels, to -- oh, man, I'm drawing a blank -- 25 thistraining held and how often?
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1 the maintenance hubs, the cranes. We have keysto thefire 1 THE WITNESS: Soif it's on the compuiter, it's held in the
2 suppression system, the -- the emergency doors. We have keys 2 maintenance shop. If it'sdone by safety, it will beheldina
3 to-- wehave-- wehavealot. 3 conference room. Andif it's done by your team leader, it will
4 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Do all the cleaner -- do all the 4 be held at the shop, too.
5 cleaners have an equal number of keys? 5 HEARING OFFICER FONG: And in thistraining, how -- can
6 THE WITNESS: They areissued no keys. 6 you -- how -- can you elaborate on how -- isthistraining
7 HEARING OFFICER FONG: How do you know that? 7 limited to maintenance employees only or anybody else?
8 THE WITNESS: Well, we work really closely with -- with -- 8 THE WITNESS: Sure.
9 their job function wouldn't take them anywhere that would need 9 HEARING OFFICER FONG: How do you know that?
10 them. 10 THE WITNESS: The cleaners do have alot -- they have --
11 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Haveyou ever seen-- | mean, | 11 we share sometraining. They have pieces of equipment that --
12 obvioudly, | -- you know, we all know -- we've seen people come | 12 that's specia to them for trash. Like they have compactors
13 to our home; they're, like, wearing a big sack of keys. You 13 and bailers that compress the trash that we work on but we
14 cankind of hear it. Isthat how you can -- where do you -- 14 don't operate. So they would be the only ones that share --
15 where do you guys wear your keys? 15 all right, that's not -- so there istraining that all
16 THE WITNESS: On our hips. 16 employees get from safety every year, the annual training. And
17 HEARING OFFICER FONG: So they're visible? 17 everybody, no matter what department, we all go through that
18 THE WITNESS: Yes, yes. 18 sametraining and that's just the basic training that everybody
19 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Big sack of keys? Loud, make | 19 needsto satisfy the requirements by the State or -- okay.
20 noise? 20 And then there is specific true maintenance training
21 THE WITNESS: Yes, exactly. Exactly. They'reona-- on 21 for -- for the -- our job duties like electrical. There's
22 alanyard so you don't lose them. 22 training for hot work permit, for welding. Fireisabig
23 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Do you ever seethat from the-- | 23 concern at the warehouse so there's alot of training with
24 from the cleaners? 24 fire.
25 THE WITNESS: No. No. 25 HEARING OFFICER FONG: And do you -- you obviously -- you
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1 participated in this preventative-maintenance-only training? 1 year. Sol'd say there's probably -- for us, there's probably
2 THEWITNESS: Absolutely. 2 atleast -- at least 30 hours of training ayear, | would say.
3 HEARING OFFICER FONG: How many -- isit -- how many -- 3 | mean, that's -- again, I'm guessing so maybe | shouldn't say
4 |et's say on the -- in the past six months, how much -- have 4 that. Thereis--1 can-- | can say at least -- yeah, no --
5 you gotten any training specific to maintenance? 5 30 hours. | can -- safe to say there's 30 hours of training
6 THE WITNESS: Yes. Wejust had -- so your -- the training 6 that maintenance technicians do.
7 comesin various bouts of times, but | think we just had fire 7 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Based on your recollection --
8 extinguisher training. That comes to mind. 8 THEWITNESS: Yes.
9 HEARING OFFICER FONG: And for the fire extinguisher 9 HEARING OFFICER FONG: -- of the -- for the past four
10 training, wasit just preventative maintenance employees only? 10 months?
11 THE WITNESS: Maintenance technicians and supervisors. 11 THE WITNESS: Yes.
12 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay. All right, so fire -- give 12 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay.
13 me another example of training you've had specific only to 13 THE WITNESS: Now, to get to the COVID training. COVID
14 maintenance employees. Givemea-- 14 also brought some training that's specific to maintenance
15  THEWITNESS: Sothereis-- there's SOPs, standard 15 because we had supervised cleanup. When a coworker would get
16 operating procedures, for alot of the functions that we do and 16 sick, we would have the company come in and disinfect the
17 that training is held, too. We have an SOP for -- for getting 17 warehouse, and maintenance was tasked with overseeing that
18 things-- products that's tilted on the rack, likeif it's 18 function.
19 falling down. There'san SOP for that. We just had that. 19 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay.
20 Every -- 20 THE WITNESS: So there'sall this COVID training and stuff
21 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Do that one -- and that one's 21 likethat that we had to go through.
22 specific only for maintenance employees? 22 HEARING OFFICER FONG: All right. Arethere any
23  THEWITNESS: Yes. 23 particular promotions or promotion opportunities or bonuses
24 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Y ou saw nobody else from the other | 24 that apply to maintenance that you know of?
25 unitsin that training? 25 THE WITNESS: None.
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1 THE WITNESS: No, nobody €lse. 1 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Do you know of any promotions that
2 All the training specific to maintenance | can think of 2 apply to any other of the unit classifications?
3 is, like, hand tools. We have vast amount of power tools. 3 THE WITNESS: Not --
4 Sdofety training for that. We have -- 4 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Ifit's--
5 HEARING OFFICER FONG: And only maintenance employees | 5 THE WITNESS: Not any different than any other coworker,
6 again at thistraining? 6 no.
7 THE WITNESS: Yes, yes. 7 HEARING OFFICER FONG: All right. Let'slook at
8 MS. INESTA: Mr. Hearing Officer, I'm just going to put 8 Petitioner's Exhibit 5, and thisisthe -- | believe that's
9 for the record that I'm going to object on the grounds that it 9 the-- the uniform.
10 isassumesfacts not in evidence. 10 THEWITNESS: Yes. Sol'm sorry about the picture, but --
11 HEARING OFFICER FONG: So noted. Fine. Thank you. 11 HEARING OFFICER FONG: No, that'sfine. Describe
12 You -- and you participated in these trainings. You 12 Petitioner's 5 please.
13 participated in these particular trainings for maintenance? 13 THE WITNESS: Okay. So this picture was taken yesterday
14 THEWITNESS: Yes-- 14 at the end of abresk and we'rein part of the break room. And
15 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Arethisby -- working by shift or | 15 | just took it to show --
16 by -- orisit just one training that everybody goesto, if you 16 HEARING OFFICER FONG: You don't have to identify -- don't
17 know? 17 identify the employees by name, but --
18 THE WITNESS: It'sjust broken down by shifts. There'sa 18  THEWITNESS: Yesh.
19 time for each shift to get sometraining in. 19 HEARING OFFICER FONG: -- you do testify that this -- tell
20 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay. On average, that -- you've | 20 me person on the left and person on theright; are they
21 tedtified that you participated along with afew or many of 21 maintenance employees?
22 your maintenance employees. How many trainings for -- let's 22  THEWITNESS: Soif you'relooking at the picture, | am on
23 say, inthelast year that you attended to participate only -- 23 theleft and a coworker ison theright. And the -- that

only for maintenance --
THE WITNESS: So all the training has to be done every

N N
(S0

coworker isjust like with her IKEA orange vest, and he's
wearing a T-shirt and | think he was wearing jeans. | can't
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1 tell, sol shouldn't say that. But | took that picture to show 1 I'm sorry. Hang on. Go on. Say again?
2 thedifferencein thelook -- 2 | have some log -- some audio issues. Speak up,
3 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Y ou're the one wearing the -- 3 Petitioner.
4 the-- the mask? 4 THE WITNESS: What was the question?
5 THE WITNESS: Yes. 5 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Yeah. Do the recovery cowork -- do
6 HEARING OFFICER FONG: I'm sorry. Everyoneswearinga | 6 the-- does the clothing specification of recovery coworker,
7 mask. You'rethe one wearing the black -- the -- the 7 arethey -- do they wear thisvest, the orange vest?
8 sunglasses? 8 THEWITNESS: Yes. Yes.
9 THE WITNESS: Yes, yes, yes. 9 HEARING OFFICER FONG: You said yes? I'm sorry.
10 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay. Break itdown. So--so | 10 THE WITNESS: Yes.
11 bresk it down. Break down the uniform that you're wearing. 11 HEARING OFFICER FONG: What about stock controller? Did
12 Break it down in terms of with the little walkie-talkie and -- 12 they wear those vests?
13 THE WITNESS: So -- 13  THEWITNESS: Yes.
14 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Afterwards, | intend to introduce | 14 THE COURT REPORTER: Mr. Hearing Officer? I'm sorry, it's
15 thisexhibit into the record. Okay? 15 Claudine.
16 THE WITNESS: Very well. Youreally can't tell from the 16 HEARING OFFICER FONG: What about --
17 picture, but you seethat it'slong sleeve, it's-- it'sa 17 THE COURT REPORTER: Your voiceis--
18 fire-retardant electrical hazard material. Every -- every 18 HEARING OFFICER FONG: -- cleaners?
19 employee hasto wear their badge for the reasons of security. 19 THE COURT REPORTER: -- alittle muffled. It's hard to
20 You can seethat that coworker -- that coworker isjust -- just 20 understand what you're actually saying.
21 likeagenera -- that coworker is dressed just like a general 21 HEARING OFFICER FONG: I'm sorry. I'm having some audio
22 warehouse coworker, stock controller, recovery. 22 issues.
23 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Doesis-- isit your testimony 23 THE COURT REPORTER: From that interruption, yes.
24 that the person next to you with the orange vest, that 24 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Say something, Mr. Petitioner.
25 that's -- that -- tell me again what your testimony is for that 25 THE WITNESS: Test, test, test. One --
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1 person on the -- with the orange vest? 1 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Can you guys hear me?
2 THE WITNESS: That personis-- | believe he'sa genera 2 THE WITNESS: Barely.
3 warehouse coworker. But he -- heisdressed just likea-- | 3 MR. HART: Not very well.
4 know he's ageneral warehouse coworker, but that is also how 4 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Hold on.
5 the other departments, minusinternal haulers, cleaners, and 5 Nancy, can you hear me now?
6 maintenance, dress of the hourly employees. 6 MS. INESTA: Yeah, that's much better.
7 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay. So say it in another way. 7 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Hold on. I'm having some audio
8 Therecov -- thisvest -- 8 issues.
9 THE WITNESS: Thisvest -- 9 All right. | was having some technical difficulties. Can
10 HEARING OFFICER FONG: -- apply to warehouse -- general 10 everybody hear me right now?
11 warehouse workers. Who else? 11 MS. INESTA: Yes, we can hear you.
12 THE WITNESS: 90 percent of the -- the peoplein 12 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Mr. Petitioner, speak up. Let me
13 attachment C wear just -- 13 see?
14 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Which are the general warehouse | 14 THE WITNESS: Tedt, test, test. Can you hear me?
15 coworkers, right? 15 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Oh, hold on asecond. Okay, I'm
16 THE WITNESS: Actually, and then if you also add the 16 back on. For some reason --
17 recovery and stock controller coworkers so, you know. But, 17 Mr. Petitioner, say something again.
18 yeah, over 90 percent of the petition for -- or additional 18 THEWITNESS: A,B,C,D, 1,2, 3.
19 employees for the petition for aunit wear that same vest. And 19 HEARING OFFICER FONG: So weird.
20 that -- besidestheir steel-toed shoes, which you can't see, 20 Nancy, can you say something.
21 but that's -- that's their required dress. And everybody has 21 MS. INESTA: Yeah. Canyou hear me now?
22 to have the policy -- everybody signed the policy on that, too, 22 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Hold on.
23 so. 23 MS. INESTA: It'sdoing thisvery weird thing whereit's
24 HEARING OFFICER FONG: The -- the recovery -- the recovery | 24 amost like cutting out with static for amoment and then it's

25

coworkers, did they (audio interference)?

25 hard to hear you after that.
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1 HEARING OFFICER FONG: All right. Give me one second. 1 MS. INESTA: We've had hiccups that have not gone away.
2 Okay? Hold on. 2 They'rejust, like, persistent in these --
3 Mr. Petitioner, say something again. 3 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Thank God. | think | may have
4 THE WITNESS: Can you hear me now? 4 accidentally pressed the mute button on my keyboard and that
5 HEARING OFFICER FONG: | don't know why | can't hear you. | 5 finally compressedit. Sol think | did it.
6 Hold on. Nancy, can you say something again? 6 Jeremy, we're back on. | think | can hear everybody now.
7 MS. INESTA: Yeah, | can hear the Petitioner. 7 MR. HART: Okay, great.
8 THE COURT REPORTER: Mr. Hearing Officer, would you like | 8 HEARING OFFICER FONG: | can hear you, too. Right. Nice.
9 to go off the record? 9 MS. INESTA: Perfect.
10 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Claudine, can you hear me? 10 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Nice, nice. Okay. Very nice.
11 THE COURT REPORTER: Yes, Sir. 11 Thank you so much. Let me pull -- let me go ahead and go back
12 HEARING OFFICER FONG: For some reason, | cannot hear 12 to Exhibit 5, which isthe uniforms. I'll just put it on my
13 anybody'svoices. Hold on. You know what? Why don't we -- 13 second screen. Okay. All right. Back on.
14 why don't we leave the meeting and sign back on because for 14 Exhibit -- everyone got Petitioner's Exhibit 5 out in
15 somereason, | cannot hear anybody's audio. Hopefully, that 15 front of them?
16 will reboot the system. Okay? 16 MS. INESTA: Yes.
17 MS. INESTA: Okay. 17 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Thank you so much.
18 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Thank you, everyone. Soletme | 18 Mr. Petitioner. Okay. Sotak to mealittle bit more
19 leave the meeting and everybody sign back on. Okay? 19 about your uniform. Are those stripesthat | see? Are those,
20 MS. INESTA: Okay. 20 like, sewed on?
21 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Thank you. 21 THE WITNESS: Yes, they are. So our uniforms comes from a
22 (Off therecord at 2:46 p.m.) 22 uniform company that -- that launders them and brings them to
23 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay. It seemsto be back on. 23 and from the warehouse. They -- those stripes. So thereisa
24 Let's hope that this works better. 24 high-visibility requirement for you to be in the warehouse, and
25 THE COURT REPORTER: | can hear you. Canyou hear me? | 25 that isour way to satisfy that, that requirement.
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1 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Mr. Petitioner, can you say 1 The orange vest is standard issue to the employees of IKEA
2 something. 2 if you aren't asupervisor. And that's standard to whatever
3 THE WITNESS: Test, test, test, 1, 2, 3. Can you hear me? 3 department you work in.
4 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Say something again. 4 HEARING OFFICER FONG: And you got that -- are you guys --
5 THE WITNESS:. Test, test, test, 1, 2, 3. 5 areyou guys-- isyour uniform requirement wearing that orange
6 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Say something again. 6 vest?
7 Wait. We're back -- we're back on. Sounds good. | 7 THE WITNESS: Not -- not for me. My requirement is my
8 accidentally may have pressed the mute button on my keyboard. 8 fire-retardant thing.
9 | think we're good. I'm back on. That's good. Sorry about 9 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Shirt.
10 that. 10 THE WITNESS: For the other employees, yes. Yes, that is
11 Mrs. Court Reporter, Madame Court Reporter, you can hear 11 arequirement that IKEA --
12 me. 12 HEARING OFFICER FONG: You mean all the other employee
13 THE COURT REPORTER: Yes, sir. | can hear you. 13 classifications excluding the maintenance; is that what you
14 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Very nice. Okay. | think were | 14 mean?
15 back on. | see Nancy coming onboard. 15  THEWITNESS: Excluding the maintenance, the internal
16 Hi, Nancy. I'm back on. | think we're back to normal, 16 haulers, and the cleaners.
17 thank God. 17 HEARING OFFICER FONG: All right.
18 MS. INESTA: Oh, good. Can you hear me? 18 THE WITNESS: Currently.
19 HEARING OFFICER FONG: | can hear you very well now. | 19 HEARING OFFICER FONG: All right.
20 MS. INESTA: Turn on my video. 20 THE WITNESS: And supervisors. Their -- their vestisa
21 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Y eah, thank you for that. Little | 21 little bit different than the orange one, but it's still high
22 hiccup right there. Thank God -- you know, | think | 22 visibility and the supervisor's vest dictates that they are a
23 accidentally -- 23 supervisor.
24 MS. INESTA: | fixed it because -- 24 HEARING OFFICER FONG: There was some earlier testimony
25 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Yesh -- 25 from Mr. Nahin about some employees other than maintenance and
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1 the power equipment technician, the petition -- the per -- unit 1 HEARING OFFICER FONG: All right.
2 wearing some fire retardant, but what | recall from -- alot 2 MS. INESTA: -- don't have an objection to the document
3 thinner grade. Could you elaborate on that? 3 that just basically speaksfor itself.
4 THE WITNESS: Yes. Sol do believethat -- that he -- 4 HEARING OFFICER FONG: All right. With those qudlifiers,
5 he'snot correct in that. The thinner gradeisjust the 5 I'll admit Petitioner's 5 into the record.
6 regular version of the uniform. 6 (Petitioner Exhibit Number 5 Received into Evidence)
7 Thefire retardant is -- is the ones that the maintenance 7 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Madame Court Reporter, will you be
8 personnel are required to wear that are only issued to them. 8 sokind. | think that this might be agood time for a
9 Sotheinternal haulers and the cleaners have a uniform similar 9 refresher in terms of what petitions -- what Petitioner
10 to maintenance, but theirsis either -- it can be short sleeve, 10 exhibits have gone into the record so far.
11 aswell. They havelong sleeve and short sleeves which are 11 THE COURT REPORTER: Just 1 and 5.
12 only for them. And their stripes are similar, aswell. But 12 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Just 1 and 5, right?
13 theinternal haulers-- where my shirt isblue, theirsis-- is 13 THE COURT REPORTER: Yes, sir.
14 tan. 14 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Thank you so much.
15 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay. Canyou wear ashort sleeve? | 15 And Board exhibits, with -- we areat 1, 2 and -- isit
16 Doyou -- 16 just1land 2 sofar?
17 THE WITNESS: No. 17 THE COURT REPORTER: Yes, Sir.
18 HEARING OFFICER FONG: No short. Missing -- o, like, 18 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Yes. And Number 3 isthat chart
19 what | see here on your -- blueis exactly the -- your 19 that | will make aruling on mom -- shortly.
20 maintenance uniform. 20 All right. For everyone's sake, let's see. We have
21 THE WITNESS: Yes. Some maintenance technicians like to 21 Petitioner's 1 into therecord. 2, 3, and 4, we'll reference
22 roll their sleeves up. 22 them shortly but not into the record yet.
23 HEARING OFFICER FONG: | see. 23 Petitioner 5isintherecord. All right.
24 THE WITNESS: But that -- that's -- technically, that's 24 All right. Let me gather my documents here to proceed.
25 not -- that's not allowed. 25 What else -- what -- what additional testimony you like to
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1 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay. And then can you wear 1 provide, Mr. Petitioner?
2 shorts? 2 THE WITNESS: Sowe-- | --
3 THE WITNESS: No. No. 3 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Subject to some additional
4 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Can cleaners wear shorts? 4 clarification questionsthat | have. Okay?
5 THEWITNESS: Yes. 5 THE WITNESS: Okay.
6 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay. What about the -- thejust | 6 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Talk to me about -- talk to me --
7 say redl brief, that walkie -- that little voice thingy, 7 no, go ahead. I'm sorry, go ahead.
8 walkie-talkie you have there. 8 THE WITNESS: So pay scales. | can testify that -- that
9 THE WITNESS: Yeah. So that'sthe microphone and it's 9 they --
10 connected to aradio that's probably on the back of my belt. 10 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Just let's start with testifying
11 And that's how we communicate with other maintenance 11 about your -- your salary. Okay?
12 technicians, with our team lead, and with -- there's other 12 THE WITNESS: Yeah. | make -- | make 22 and some change.
13 radiosin jockey trucks. The cranedrivers, the silo drivers 13 | can't -- honestly, | can't tell you. 1t's $22.65 | think |
14 haveradios aswell as safety and security. They carry radios, 14 make an hour.
15 too. 15 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Have you had discussions with the
16 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay, al right. 16 other co -- have you had discussions with any of your other
17 What is your position of the authenticity of this exhibit, 17 maintenance coworkers asto their rate of pay?
18 Employer? Employer's counsel? 18 THEWITNESS: In--inaway. | haven't-- | can't tell
19 MS. INESTA: Mr. Hearing Officer, we -- | don't have an 19 you exactly what they pay, but -- but | can tell you that they
20 issue with the -- with the photo to the extent that it really 20 don't make over acertain dollar amount. | have asked them
21 justisbeing included as a photo of him and awarehouse 21 all, like, have -- if they make a certain dollar amount or not,
22 coworker. | know there was some testimony as to, you know, 22 and they said no.
23 thisexact same thing that, you know, all of these other 23 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay. And what isthat amount?
24 classifications. So without -- without conceding any of that, 24 THE WITNESS: Nobody makes over $26 an hour in
25 of course, we -- 25 maintenance.

eScri bers,
reporting@scribers. net |

(800) 257-0885 |

LLC
WWW. escri bers. net



182..185

Page 182 Page 184
1 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay. And that's based on -- 1 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay. And elaborate on the HO-4.
2 THE WITNESS: It's technicians, maintenance technicians. 2 What do you mean by that?
3 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Maintenance technician -- 3 THE WITNESS: So reading the policies that -- that we all
4 THE WITNESS: Victor in power equipment, | have no idea 4 haveto sign, the HO-4 ishourly. Your job scaleisbased on
5 what he makes, but | know that he's -- he's been there for a 5 the hours you work and it's up to the individual location to
6 long time and he's probably maxed out. 6 decide what your pay scaleis. So our pay scale in maintenance
7 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Do you know the salary range of 7 wasHO-3 and now we're HO-4, and so are the internal haulers as
8 the-- of the cleaners? 8 well asthe power equipment technicians. And you know what?
9 THE WITNESS: Sol can't say with certainty. | do -- 9 Tobehonest, | cannot tell you what the other -- what the
10 okay. 10 other job classificationsare. | don't --
1 HEARING OFFICER FONG: I'm only asking if you have spoken | 11 HEARING OFFICER FONG: | appreciatethat. No, |
12 to-- if you know -- if you have spoken at |east with one 12 appreciate that. What's your -- what's your hourly -- number
13 cleaner and they've given you their salary, then you can say. 13 of hours per week?
14 Otherwiseg, if you haven't, then just say -- state it as exactly 14 THE WITNESS: | definitely get 40 hours a week.
15 what you just said, you can't say with -- for certain. Okay? 15 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Do you -- are -- do you get
16 THE WITNESS: Oh, but salaries -- 16 overtime? Areyou subject to overtime?
17 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Yeah. Go ahead. 17 THE WITNESS: If it's necessary, | will work overtime.
18 THE WITNESS: | can't say for certain that Oscar -- Oscar 18 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Can you -- in the past six --
19 that was once awaste -- a preventative maintenance technician, 19 THE WITNESS: An hour or two aweek, on average.
20 like Nahin testified, is now a cleaner. He was making that pay 20 Sometimes there's been an incident or something that we --
21 rate as a preventative maintenance tech and | don't -- you know 21 HEARING OFFICER FONG: In the past six months, how many
22 what, | can't testify. 1'm sorry, so. 22 times have you worked overtime?
23 HEARING OFFICER FONG: That'sokay. That's okay. It 23 THE WITNESS: Oh, many times, many times. But it's
24 happens. 24 only -- it'sonly maybe an hour or so each time and it's maybe
25 Do you know the salary range of -- of warehouse coworkers? 25 onceaweek or 0.
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1 THE WITNESS: | do not. 1 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Do you know if -- do you know if --
2 HEARING OFFICER FONG: How about of -- do you know the 2 do you know of -- do you know if any of the other job
3 sdary range for any of the other job classifications at issue? 3 classifications are subject to overtime? Do you know?
4 THE WITNESS: Internal hauler isthe same pay scale asthe 4 THE WITNESS: | do -- | do know that they put up for
5 maintenance technicians, which is HO-4, and they -- they max 5 operationsalist if you want to work an extra ninth hour on
6 out and that's the same pay scale as maintenance. 6 your shifts that you got sometimes, operations.
7 HEARING OFFICER FONG: They max out a what, if you know? | 7 HEARING OFFICER FONG: And you see -- and you see that
8 THE WITNESS: $32. 8 where?
9 HEARING OFFICER FONG: And the maintenance maxesout. Do | 9 THE WITNESS: It isin the hub, which isbasicaly the
10 you know what time -- at what rate the maintenance maxes out 10 headquarters of the operations department, and they'll go and
11 at? 11 announceit over the speaker, the PA system, sometimes if -- if
12 THE WITNESS: The exact? No, | can't tell you the exact 12 they need coworkersto stay over.
13 number. | know it's over $32, though. 13 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay. I'vegot to say let me pull
14 HEARING OFFICER FONG: But you had testified earlier that 14 upthat chart. Board 5 -- Board Exhibit -- potential Board
15 maintenance capped out at 27. What do you mean by that? Did | 15 Exhibit 3. One second.
16 get that wrong? 16  Okay. I'msorry. The company decided who else -- who
17 THE WITNESS: You must have. The middle of the -- so 17 elsefrom operationsis subject to overtime as you have seen
18 thereisalow end of the scale, which is 19 or $20 and some 18 it?
19 change. 19 THEWITNESS: | believe everybody is.
20 HEARING OFFICER FONG: For maintenance, we're talking 20 HEARING OFFICER FONG: And how certain -- and what do you
21 about? 21 basethat on again?
22 THE WITNESS: Yes, yes. HO-4 -- maintenance fallsinto 22 THEWITNESS: | do know that -- that the operations -- the
23 HO-4 and that -- that category is right around 20 bucks to 23 operations department at SD, they -- they will -- they will
24 begin and 32 at the max, and so the middle is 26 and some 24 announce it over the loudspeaker if they need people to work
25 change. That's-- that's maybe what | was referring to, 26 -- 25 overtime sometimes. Sometimesthey'll just hang up asheet in
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1 the--inthe-- the common area where they -- they meet to see 1 name.
2 who wantsto work overtime. | do believeit's-- it's -- their 2  HEARING OFFICER FONG: All right. Thank you for that.
3 team lead hasto approveit, though, but most of the time, 3 Okay. What -- can you give me aquick example of the last
4 it's--it'sthe-- | do believe they're -- they're alowed to 4 timeyou had to work overtime, for what issue, what happened?
5 work alot of it. 5 THEWITNESS: Therewas an issue with one of the components
6 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Do you haveto -- doyou havetoget | 6 of a-- of a-- of the pallet system that -- the conveyor
7 approval for overtime yourself, and from whom? 7 systemfor thesilos --
8 THEWITNESS: No, I donot. | donot. | -- 8 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Uh-huh.
9  HEARING OFFICER FONG: Youdo not -- youdonot havetoget | 9 ~ MR. WEDEKING: -- it wasdown, and | stayed over because |
10 preapprova for overtime? 10 wasaready on it and it was almost done. And the shifts --
11 THEWITNESS: No, | do not. 11 the second shift did not have the personnel to take over at
12 HEARING OFFICER FONG: What happens? 12 that time, and so | just finished -- finished fixing it,
13 THEWITNESS: If thereisa-- the situation that they 13 basicaly.
14 would require maintenance to -- to continue working, then we 14  HEARING OFFICER FONG: All right. Have you had any
15 will -- we will stay to -- to finish it. But it's usually not 15 discussion with any of the other excluded job classifications
16 more than 15 minutes, a half hour, an hour sometimes. 16 where anybody on those have told you that they need approval
17 Because -- because our shifts overlap each other, there's not 17 for overtime?
18 that much reason for overtime. But in some situations, it 18 THEWITNESS: No.
19 will -- it will happen. 19 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Have you had any discussions with
20 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay. And how do you backtrack -- | 20 managers as to whether any of the other job classifications
21 how do you -- who do you report the overtime to? How do you do 21 need approva for overtime?
22 it? 22 THEWITNESS: No. No. They did have a-- they did have a
23  THEWITNESS: So everybody's, including al the -- all the 23 sign at the overtime sign-up sheet. There's a sign-up sheet
24 coworkers, have a-- a badge that they wear around their neck 24 operation pass for -- for overtime when it'savailable. And
25 that they -- they clock in to a clock with their badge, and 25 there was asign above that sign-up sheet that said that --
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1 then clock out with -- with the same badge that edits. It'sa 1 that managers have to approve overtime.
2 timeclock. 2  HEARING OFFICER FONG: You still remember -- do you
3 HEARING OFFICER FONG: | see. And thetime clock applies 3 remember reading that in that such language?
4 to everybody? 4  THEWITNESS: Yes. Yes, yes.
5 THEWITNESS: Yes. 5 HEARING OFFICER FONG: When did this happen? When did you
6  HEARING OFFICER FONG: The maintenance, al -- and the 6 seethis--
7 excluded unit classifications? 7  THEWITNESS: So therewasn't -- | don't really pay
8 THEWITNESS: Yes. 8 attention that much, but it wasn't -- it wasn't recently, by
9 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Same badge? 9 any means.
10 THEWITNESS: Same -- same badge. 10 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Six months, three months?
11  HEARING OFFICER FONG: Doesyour badge specify your 11 THEWITNESS: Yesh, | would say probably. Maybe even
12 department? 12 longer. It might still bethere, for al | know. | can't
13 THEWITNESS: It -- it saysyour hire date. Department? | 13 redly testify if it's still there or not.
14 donot think so. | -- 14  HEARING OFFICER FONG: Whereisit that you saw -- saw this
15 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Do you happen to haveit with you? | 15 language again? Where wasit?
16 THEWITNESS: Yeah, yeah. Hold on. 16 THEWITNESS: It was right above the overtime sign-up sheet
17 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Why don't you look it up. 17 for operations.
18 THEWITNESS: | do have my keys. 18 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Andwherewasit located? Where was
19 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Oh. 19 that located at?
20  Lettherecord reflect the Petitioner is holding a stack of 20 THEWITNESS: Atthe--thehub. The-- the operations --
21 keysinacircle key ring with about, what, 20 -- 15 to 20? 21 operational hub.
22 THEWITNESS: Yeah, I'd say probably. 22 HEARING OFFICER FONG: And what building is that again?
23 HEARING OFFICER FONG: All right. Thank you. 23  THEWITNESS: Thefront one.
24  THEWITNESS: And our badge, it does not say our 24 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay. For the entire facility
25 department. It just says our hire date and employee number and 25 building, isthere apoint or access for everyonetowalk in

eScri bers,
reporting@scribers. net |

(800) 257-0885 |

LLC
WWW. escri bers. net



190..193

© 00 N O O b~ WDN PP

=
o

Page 190
through, or one, two, more than one?

THE WITNESS: No, no. The safety -- the -- the --
everybody comes in through the same entrance.

HEARING OFFICER FONG: Including the maintenance employees?
Everybody?

THE WITNESS: Everybody, yes. It'sa-- it'sasafety
thing, yes.

HEARING OFFICER FONG: All right. Cafeteria. Maintenance
employees; normally, where do you guys take your lunch?

THE WITNESS: In the -- in the -- in the common break rooms
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around will -- will show up. But the only time that we would

really interact with them would be if they had an issue that
they needed fixing with their truck.
HEARING OFFICER FONG: The same question with the recovery
coworker. What interaction, if any, would you have? And if
so, explainit.
THE WITNESS: The recovery coworkers, they run power
equipment, too. So if they had an issue with their power
equipment and they -- they -- they would just come up to -- if
they see amaintenance guy -- if somebody has an issue, they'll

11 or you could -- you could take off to -- to leave the facility 11 cometo the first maintenance guy they see, and bring it to
12 to--to havelunch. But-- 12 their attention. So that would be how. Or they also have
13  HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay. 13 bicycles. Thewarehouse has afleet of bicyclesthat -- that
14  THEWITNESS: -- dl the employees share the common -- 14 they usefor their computers and -- and stuff that -- recovery
15 common areafor lunch. 15 coworkers also use computers and bikes. And if they had an
16 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay. So no particular, like, 16 issue with that, they -- that would be another reason why they
17 lunch -- lunch break area for the maintenance employees? 17 would -- | would interact with them.
18  THEWITNESS: No. 18 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay. What about the stock
19 HEARING OFFICER FONG: All right. 19 controller?
20 THEWITNESS: If --if | may, | just want to touch on it 20 THEWITNESS: Samething. The bikes, if their piece of
21 red quick, some of the skillsthat -- that -- that a 21 equipment hasissues. Likel said, they also have an office.
22 maintenance technician might go through in aday. Like| said, 22 Soif they had an issue with, like, their lightsin the office
23 it'svery --if -- if you don't mind, it's very -- 23 or something like that and there was somebody in there at the
24  HEARING OFFICER FONG: No, no. Of course. 24 time, that would be an interaction that we would -- we would
25 THEWITNESS: --it'svery -- there'sawide range that -- 25 have with them.
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1 you could be a plumber, you could be troubleshooting alight 1 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay. Looking at Petitioner's --
2 fixture. Soyou've got to be alittle bit of electrical savvy. 2 looking at Petitioner's 3, you testified -- you testified that
3 You could be -- you could be welding. Y ou could be working on 3 thisisamap of the IKEA, which you received on -- you grabbed
4 apneumatic system. We read schematics and blueprints. 4 them from there -- from the IKEA server, correct?
5 Carpentry; sometimes we're -- we're erecting a podium or -- or 5 THEWITNESS: Yes.
6 building something that -- that came by on awork order. 6  HEARING OFFICER FONG: At thispointintime, I'm going to
7 Schematics. Hydraulic systems. There's -- there'sa-- 7 go ahead and introduce -- I'm going to allow introduction of
8 there's hydraulic systemsin the -- in the warehouse for -- for 8 Petitioner's 3 into the record.
9 various balers and -- and compactors. 9  MR.HART: Mr. Hearing Officer, we --
10  So metal fabrication, we can't return wrenchesto. We were 10 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Uh-huh?
11 issued atool bag with various amounts of tools from various 11  MR.HART: -- actudly, literaly, like, a minute ago,
12 trades. Concreterepair. We do concrete work. Electrical, 12 received aclean copy of the -- what is Petitioner's 3, an
13 likel said. Just avast, vast array of -- of skills. 13 officia copy from IKEA that we can provide.
14  HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay. Talk to mealittle bit about | 14 ~ HEARING OFFICER FONG: Perfect timing. Can you -- can you
15 your interaction, if any, with like, you know, with an internal 15 email that to all the parties?
16 hauler, that job classification. Do you have any interaction 16 MR.HART: Yeah. Let meget the--
17 through your workday with an internal hauler? And if so, how 17 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Takeyour time.
18 would that play out? 18  Why don't we take -- why don't we take a ten-minute break,
19 THEWITNESS: The only interaction during the work times 19 aten-minute water break.
20 would beif they had a-- amechanical issue with their truck 20 MR.HART: Okay.
21 orif they couldn't get their trailer door open, something like 21  HEARING OFFICER FONG: WEe've been on the record for two
22 that. Anditwould only beif the maintenance technician was 22 hours.
23 onthefloor, because, like | said, that -- that would be the 23  MR.HART: Okay.
24 floor guy's duty to go and -- and deal with that. Sometimes 24  HEARING OFFICER FONG: And that will give you -- that will
25 they will just get on the radio and -- and call, and whoever's 25 giveyoutimeto --
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1 MR. HART: Okay. 1 (Off therecord at 3:15 p.m.)
2  HEARING OFFICER FONG: -- go through and download and email | 2~ HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay. We're back on the record.
3 and forward it to us. 3 There has been some -- there was considerable discussion
4 And Petitioner, it's 3 -- 3:15. So come back at -- at 4 between the parties, including the Hearing Officer, in terms of
5 3:25. And then perhaps seeif you can get that additional 5 resolving some matters. But it related to some of the
6 chart. | think, actually, we might be able to finish today. 6 Petitioner's exhibits. Asaresult of the discussions, the
7  I'minclined to introduce a clean copy -- | will introduce 7 Employer has provided documents that supplement part of my --
8 theclean copy as Petitioner's 3. | think there's been enough 8 asisadditional testimony that will provide corroboration to
9 testimony as supplementing the chart from the Employer's 9 some of the testimony. We are -- so we're looking at
10 counsel asto where each team goes. 10 documents. The Petitioner will take -- he's going to -- he's
11  Doyou intend -- do you still intend to -- do you still 11 going to have to review them before he makes afinal decision,
12 want to introduce Petitioner's -- Petitioner's 2, Exhibit 2, 12 aswell asthe Hearing Officer.
13 Mr. Petitioner? 13 Based on that, we are going to adjourn momentarily and
14  MR. WEDEKING: Exhibit 2, the -- 14 continue with the Petitioner's case-in-chief tomorrow. At that
15 HEARING OFFICER FONG: That's the chart that you created. 15 point intime, we'll reconsider -- we'll make some
16 MR.WEDEKING: If --if -- | think it's really important 16 considerations as to whether the Employer wishes to provide
17 that it be shown where the vast majority of the additional 17 additional voluntary testimony from management witnesses, and
18 employeesfor the petitioned-for unit fall within each -- each 18 well determine then where they are, wel'll get an offer of
19 classifications. And if we could get that, | think that that's 19 proof, and then we'll decide whether the Petitioner wants to
20 something that -- 20 call them, or we'll decide the procedure for doing it tomorrow.
21  HEARING OFFICER FONG: Yeah. I'msorry. Youdeliverupto |21 Okay?
22 mine. Seeif the Employer can -- see what you can get usto do 22 Anything additional from Petitioner for today?
23 thecharts. Andwe would have talked about that, if we were 23 MR. WEDEKING: Not at thistime, no.
24 ableto get documents that show which job classification at 24  HEARING OFFICER FONG: Anything additional from Employer's
25 issue, it's under -- where the employees names belong to under 25 counsel?
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1 which supervisor. If the Petitioner is okay with that, we'll 1 MS.INESTA: Nothing here. Thank you.
2 introduce those. If we cannot get them, then based on the 2  MR.HART: No, sir.
3 testimony that the Petitioner has testified about in terms of 3 HEARING OFFICER FONG: | want to thank again, everyone, for
4 this particular document, | will introduce Petitioner's 2 4 today'swork. Therell beavirtual soon. And we'll continue
5 absent, again, the best evidence such as provided by Employer's 5 this procedure tomorrow. Until then, everyone get some good
6 counsel. 6 rest, and welll -- you can sign on the same email. It will be
7  Sodoyou guys-- do you want -- do you want 15 minutes to 7 active for tomorrow. Okay?
8 dothat? 8  MS. INESTA: Thank you very much.
9 MS. INESTA: Yeah. If wecould get alittle bit of time -- 9 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Okay. Thank you.
10 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Yeah. 10 MS.INESTA: And thank you, Mr. Wedeking.
11  MS.INESTA: --onthatto-- 11 MR.WEDEKING: Thank you. Thank you.
12 HEARING OFFICER FONG: Sojust know that if wedon'tget | 12~ HEARING OFFICER FONG: All right.
13 the documents, | will alow introduction of Petitioner's 2, and 13  MS.INESTA: All right.
14 I'll make Board Exhibit -- the official chart, I'll make that 14  HEARING OFFICER FONG: Thank you, everyone.
15 Board Exhibit 3. 15 Thank you, Madam Reporter. Welll see you tomorrow.
16  Andseeif -- most likely, | will alow -- | mean, not most 16 (Whereupon, the hearing in the above-entitled matter was
17 likely. 1 will allow for the Petitioner's 4 subject to my 17 recessed at 4:19 p.m. until Thursday, October 15, 2020 at 10:10
18 earlier qualifiersasto only allow -- I'll get him to testify 18 am.)
19 onthat and ultimately will only allow for the substantive 19
20 partsof testimony. It may be only for the maintenance 20
21 techniciansthat you're going to talk about. Okay? 21
22 Allright. Solet'stakeabreak. | will seeyou guys 22
23 back at 3:30. 23
24 MS. INESTA: Thank you. 24
25  HEARING OFFICER FONG: Thank you. 25
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CERTI FI CATI ON

This is to certify that the attached proceedi ngs before the
Nat i onal Labor Relations Board (NLRB), Region 31, Case Number
31- RC- 266527, | KEA Distribution Services, Inc. and United

Mai nt enance Technicians O Tejon, at the National Labor

Rel ati ons Board, 11500 West O ynpic Boul evard, Suite 600, Los
Angel es, California 90064, on Cctober 14, 2020, at 9:09 a.m
was hel d according to the record, and that this is the
original, conplete, and true and accurate transcript that has
been conpared to the reporting or recording, acconplished at
the hearing, that the exhibit files have been checked for
conpl et eness and no exhibits received in evidence or in the

rejected exhibit files are m ssing.

(Ydsa Pacoogn

CLAUDI NE METOYER
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